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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K contains certain forwalabking statements within the meaning of Sectioz 2f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
amended, regarding, among other things, the aatmipfinancial and operating results of the Compdwy this purpose, forwardoking
statements are any statements contained hereiartaiot statements of historical fact and inclumg,are not limited to, those preceded k
that include the words, “estimate,” “could,” “shdyl “would,” “likely,” “may,” “will,” “plan,” “inte nd,” “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,”
“projected,” or similar expressions. Those statements are dutgidmown and unknown risks, uncertainties anceiofactors that could cat
the actual results to differ materially from thasmtemplated by the statements. The forwaaking information is based on various fac
and was derived using numerous assumptions. Impgdidators that could cause the Compangttual results to differ materially from th

projected, include, for example:
e general economic, market or business conditi
e the ability of the Company to generate sufficieales to generate operating profits, or to condpetations at a profi

e the ability of the Company to raise funds in theufa through sales of securities in order to snstaioperations if an unexpec
or unusual event would occt

e the ability of the Company to compete with its catitprs to obtain market shal

e whether the Compang’customers purchase or rent ePort devices orthar products in the future at levels currentlyicpatec
by our Company, including our JumpStart Progr

e whether the Company’customers continue to operate or commence opgraforts received under the JumpStart Progr:
otherwise at levels currently anticipated by thenpany;

e whether the Company’s customers continue tozetilhe Companyg’ transaction processing and related services,asustome
agreements are generally cancelable by the customiirty to sixty day notice;

e whether the significant increase in the interchafeges charged by Visa and MasterCard for smalkticlebit card transactic
effective October 1, 2011, would adversely affeat business, including our revenues, gross proéite] anticipated futu
connections to our networ

e whether our current ongear agreement with VISA relating to interchangesahat expires in October 2012 will be rene
although management believes that the agreemdritevibnewed

e the ability of the Company to obtain sufficient flnthrough operations or otherwise to repay itst dddigations, or to fun
development and marketing of its produ

e the ability of the Company to satisfy its tradeigations included in accounts payable and accrupdreses

e the incurrence by us of any unanticipated or ualisoneperating expenses, such as in connection wittbayprontest, whic
would require us to divert our cash resources fagimeving our business ple

e the ability of the Company to predict or estimatefuture quarterly or annual revenues and expegises the developing a
unpredictable market for its produc

e the ability of the Company to retain key custonfessn whom a significant portion of its revenuesléived,;
e the ability of a key customer to reduce or delascpasing products from the Compa

e whether the actions of the former CEO of the Compahich resulted in his separation from the Compian@ctober 2011 or tl
Securities and Exchange Commissginvestigation would have a material adverse eftat the future financial results
condition of the Company; ar

e as a result of the slowdown in the economy andiertightening of the capital and credit markets, austomers may modi
delay or cancel plans to purchase our productemices, and suppliers may increase their pricziyge their output or char
their terms of sale

Although we believe that the expectations refledtethe forwardiooking statements are reasonable, we cannot giagréunure results, leve
of activity, performance, or achievements. Actugdults or business conditions may differ materifilm those projected or suggeste:
forward-looking statements as a result of vari@aedrs including, but not limited to, those desedlabove and in the “Risk Factos®ction o
this Form 10K. We cannot assure you that we have identifiedhallfactors that create uncertainties. Moreovew risks emerge from time
time and it is not possible for our managementrégliet all risks, nor can we assess the impact ofsits on our business or the extent to w
any risk, or combination of risks, may cause actesallts to differ from those contained in any farddooking statements. Readers shoulc
place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.



Any forward-looking statement made by us in thigrkdlO-K speaks only as of the date of this FormK1Q3Jnless required by law, \
undertake no obligation to publicly revise any fardrlooking statement to reflect circumstancesvents after the date of this Form KQar to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.



USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
P ART I
| tem 1 . Business.
OVERVIEW

USA Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”, “We”, “USAT or “Our”) was incorporated in the Commonwealth of Pennsydvandanuary 199
We are a provider of technology-enabled solutidres facilitate electronic payment transactions ealde-added services primarily within t
unattended Point of Sale (“POSftjarket. We are a leading provider in the smallgtckheverage and food vending industry and areralipe
our solutions to kiosk and other unattended maskgments. Since our founding, we have designedraréieted systems and solutions
facilitate electronic payment options, as well e®rmetry and machine-to-machine (“M2M8grvices which include the ability to remot
monitor, control, and report on the results ofrilisited assets containing our electronic paymelutisns. Historically, these distributed as:
have relied on cash for payment in the form of sain bills, whereas, our systems allow them to piccashless payments such as throug
use of credit or debit cards and contactless fosmah as mobile payment.

We derive the majority of our revenues from licease transaction fees related to our ePort Corseeice. Connections to our service €
from the sale or lease of our POS electronic paymewnices or certified payment software or the isamg of similar thirdparty installed PO
terminals. The majority of ePort Connect custonpeng a monthly fee plus a blended transaction ratdhe transaction dollar volume proces
by the Company. Customers with higher expectedsaetion rates might pay a lower or no ePort Connearithly fee, but a higher blenc
transaction rate on dollar volume processed byChimpany. Connections to the ePort Connect serthieeefore, are the most significant dri
of the Company’s revenues, particularly revenuesiflicense and transaction fees.

As of June 30, 2012, the Company had approximdi@y000 connections to its ePort Connect servioeblg the number of connections a
June 30, 2010. During the year ended June 30, 22 Company processed approximately 103 millioshless transactions total
approximately $172 million, representing a 43% @ase in transaction volume and a 43% increase liarslgprocessed from the 72 milli
cashless transactions totaling approximately $1@@mduring the previous fiscal year ended JufeZ011.
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The above chart shows the increase, during thehees fiscal years, in the number of connectiaesenues and the dollar value of transac
handled by us. The vertical bars show the revemagsed during the fiscal years, broken down by rréay revenues and equipment s
revenues. Our connection base, showing the numbeormections, as of the end of each of the lasetHiscal years, is indicated by
beginning of the solid line and the two arrow psitttat appear thereafter. Similarly, the dolldugaof transactions handled by us during
of the last three fiscal years is indicated byhkibginning of the dotted line, the mid-point of thated line, and the end of the dotted line.

Our solutions have been designed to simplify thedition to cashless for traditionally cashly based businesses. As such, they are tu
and include our comprehensive ePort Connect seck POS electronic payment devices or certifiegmeat software able to proc
traditional magnetic stripe credit and debit cam@sg] contactless credit and debit cards. Our swluidr near-field communication (“NFE”
equipped mobile phones that allow consumers to npakenents using their cell phones is currentlyustomer trials. Services through el
Connect are maintained on our proprietary operasiygtems and include deployment planning, merchaobunt setup on behalf of
customer, automatic processing and settlement saporting and 24x7 customer support. In additibe,functionality of our solutions inclu
the flexibility to execute a variety of payment Apgations on a single system, transaction secudbnnectivity options, compliance w
certification standards, and centralized, accura@time sales and inventory data to manage distribagsets (wireless telemetry and M2
By December 31, 2012, we anticipate the commelaiaich of other consumer engagement services suldyaty and prepaid programs.






Our customers primarily consist of the followingverage and food vending machine owners and opsrét@nd marketers wishing to prov
their products or services via kiosks or vendingchiges; commercial laundry operators servicing egmb, universities and mufamily
housing; and equipment manufacturers who incorparat ePort Connect service into their productrofigs.

The Company also manufactures and sells energy geament products that reduce the electrical powaswmption of equipment, such
refrigerated vending machines and glass front espldus reducing the electrical energy costs @ssatwith operating this equipment.
derive equipment revenues through the sale of nergy management products both in the United Statdsn approximately seven count
worldwide.

We have a twentyear history, a recognized brand name, value prdpogor our customers and reputation of innovatin our product ar
services. We believe that the foregoing positiansoucapitalize on industry trends.

THE INDUSTRY

We operate primarily in the small ticket electropiyments industry and, more specifically, the iemated POS market. We also plan to ¢
customers with ancillary attended business segnikatability to accept cashless payment “on thetodugh mobilebased payment servic
which are generally higher ticket transactions. ®olutions facilitate electronic payments in indigst that have traditionally relied on ¢
transactions. We believe the following industryntte will drive growth in demand for electronic pagmb systems in general and
specifically within the markets we serve:

L] the shift toward electronic payment transactiors amay from cash and checl
| the increase in both consumer and merchant/opetatoand for electronic transaction functionalitygl.
[ improving POS technology and NFC equipped mobilenghpayment technolog

Shift toward electronic payment transactions and away from cash and checks

There has been a shift away from paper-based methiopayment, including cash and checks, towarestrinichased methods of payme
While consumers continue to use checks and caphytdor goods and services, there is a migratisratds the use of catthsed payment
purchase items. According to The Nilson Reportewsiand research publication on consumer paymstgrag, electronic payment transac
volume surpassed papeased transaction volume for the first time in 20€@ntinuing the trend of migration of consumemnsactions fror
paper-based to electronic payments. According ® Nitson Report, December 2011, papased methods of payment continued to decli
2010, representing 38.97% of transaction dollarasuneed compared to 50.45% in 2005. The four casgdaystems-eredit, debit, prepai
and electronic benefits transfegenerated $3.81 trillion in the United States id@0or 48.12%, compared to 39.98% in 2005. Delsid<an:
prepaid cards showed the largest increase in tiosadollars over this fivgrear period. By 2015, The Nilson Report projectergfing a
merchants on credit, debit and prepaid cards issutttt U.S. to total over $6 trillion, an increadeapproximately 57% from 2010.

Increase in Consumer and Merchant/Operator Demand for Electronic Payments

Increase in Consumer Demand . The unattended, vending and kiosk POS markehisaarically been dominated by cash purchases. Ken
oftentimes, cash purchases at unattended POSdbpsatépresent a cumbersome transaction for theuomrsbecause they do not have
correct monetary value (paper or coin), or the norer does not have the ability to convert theishiito coins. We believe electronic payn
system providers such as USA Technologies thahteet consumersiemand within the unattended market will be ableffer retailers, cai
associations, card issuers and payment processtisuginess owners an expanding value proposititreaPOS.

Increase in Merchant/Operator Demand . Increasingly, merchants and operators of unag@mhyment locations (e.g., vending machines
wash, tabletop games, etc.) are utilizing electrguayment alternatives as a means to improve besiresults. The Company works witk
customers to help them drive increased revenubedf tistributed assets through this expanded nhanggortunity and many continue to
positive results. In addition, electronic paymeydtems provide merchants and operators real-tines sand inventory data utilized for back:
office reporting and forecasting, helping them tanage their business more efficiently.

Increase in Demand for Networked Assets . M2M (machine-tomachine) technology includes capturing value froimeless modules al
electronic devices to improve business productigityl customer service. The term M2M describes amy &f 2way communication syste
between geographically distributed devices throagleentrally managed software application withoutmbn intervention. As such, 1
Companys integrated POS and ePort Connect remote datagaareamt capabilities fall into this category of ¢mn. Our M2M technolog
provides value to our customers. For example, thmg@anys networked assets have the ability to remotelyitnomerchandise and tra
inventory in real-time. In addition, networked assean provide valuable information regarding comsts’ purchasing patterns and payn
preferences, allowing operators to more effectivallor their offerings to consumers. Market awasnof M2M applications is consideret
be in its nascence. According to a Verizon Wire@8%1 whitepaper (When Machines Talk, Businesssteh) within ten years the numbe
machines that can be connected should exceed l&nhilnits. The Company believes that its abilibygrovide machines capable of be
networked, its scalable network data capacity, B&pee with high transaction volume and high gyahind reliable data managerr
capabilities make it well suited for the growingpoptunities in the M2M market. During Fiscal 20#2¢ Company engaged in a &y, M2M
Connected Technology Tour with Verizon Wirelesd fhatured USA Technologies as an M2M solutionnpart






POS Technology and NFC Equipped Mobile Phone Payment | mprovements

Increased Consumer Interest in Mobile Payment . Goldman Sachs, in its June 19, 2012 Equity ResdRegiort, explains that the “base case
for mobile payment relies on near field communmatiNFC), which allows for a secure, tw@y communication between a mobile phone

a POS. In this report, Goldman Sachs looks at hé ldnd mobile payments are projected to continuaronpward trajectory, with sugges
growth in the value of mobile payments increasm@®17 billion by 2016 driven by nearly 448 milliaisers. This same report cites thai
value proposition for consumers will make purchgdister and easier which potentially translatés increased purchasing and transact
Mobile payment technologies, such as Né&i@&bled POS terminals and digital wallet applicatjsuch as ISIS, Google Wallet and others, :

to benefit from these evolving trends. Digital vealls essentially a digital service, accessed wavieb or a mobile phone application
serves as a substitute for the traditional creditlebit card. Providers and consumers can alsofibérmm other ancillary offerings such
coupons and loyalty programs.

With approximately one-half of the Company’s cortimts NFC-enabled as of June 30, 2012, we belieaevte are welpositioned to bene
from this emerging space.

OUR TECHNOLOGY-BASED SOLUTION

Our solutions have been designed to be turnkeyirsaidde ePort Connect service and POS electronjmpat devices or certified paym
software able to process traditional magnetic stapedit and debit cards, contactless credit afnit dards, as well as NFC equipped mc
phones that allows consumers to make paymentsthegih cell phoneswWe believe that our ability to bundle our produatsl services, as w
as the ability to tailor them to individual custanmeeds, makes it easy and efficient for our custsno adopt and deploy our technology,
results in a service unmatched in the small-tickegttended retail market today.

The Product. The Company offers its customers several diffedmvices or software to connect their distribuéesdets. These range fr
software to hardware devices consisting of usetrobhoards, running our SDK, magnetic strip cagdders, and NFC readers. The devic
software can be embedded inside the host equipmch, as ePort SDK software which reside in thérabprocessing unit of a kiosk or table-
top game; it can be integrated as part of the égsipment, such as our eP@&tG8 or EDGE hardware that can be attached to the afoe
vending machine, or a payment hub in a self semécavash; or it can be a peripheral, stand-alermainal.

The Network Our network is designed to transmit payment imfation from our terminals for processingnd sales and diagnostic data
storage and reporting to our customers. Also, teévork, through servesased software applications, provides remote maneg
information, and enables control of the networkedice’s functionality. Through our network we have thdigtto upload software and upd;
devices remotely enabling us to manage the deyicgs change protocol functionality, provide sater upgrades, and change terminal dis
messages).

The Connectivity Medium3he client devices (described above) are intercctedefor the transfer of our customedsita through our eP:
Connect network that provides multiple connectivogtions such as phone line, ethernet, and wireléssater wireless connectivity optic
coverage and reliability have allowed us to serdogreater number of geographically dispersed oustdocations. Additionally, we make
easy for our customers to deploy wireless solutlmnacting as a single point of contact. We havareated with Verizon Wireless and AT«
in the United States and Rogers Wireless in Caimadeder to supply our customers with wireless rmetcoverage.

Data Security Visa has listed the Company as a PCI DSS Comp8entice Provider in the North American region agsult of validatio
conducted by a third party as of January 1, 2012e USAT listing on Vis& list of compliant companies can be found onlin
http://usa.visa.com/download/merchants/dispof-pcidsscompliantserviceproviders.pdf

OUR SERVICES

As of June 30, 2012, license and transaction feaesmted by our ePort Conn&tservice represented 81% of the Compamgvenues. ePs
Connect is a unique solution in the marketplace ghavides customers with all of the following, @wndne cohesive service umbrella:

e Diverse POS options. Ability to connect to a brgadduct line of cashless acceptance devices ovandt

e Card Processing Services. Through our existingioglships with card processors and card assoc&time provide merche
account and terminal ID set up, pregotiated discounted fees on small ticket purchaaed direct electronic funds trans
(EFTs) to our customerdank accounts for all settled card transactionwedsas ensure compliance with current proces
regulations



e Wireless Connectivity. We manage the wireless actaativation, distribution, and the relationshithwireless providers fi
our customers

e Customer/Consumer Services. We support our Iadtélase by providing 2deur help desk support, repairs, and replacem
impaired system solutions. In addition, as the fma&nt of record on all transactions, all inboundirml inquiries are handl
through a 24our help desk, thereby eliminating the need foramants and operators to deal with customer biliiegiries an
potential chargeback

e Online Sales Reporting. Via the USALive online repm system, we provide customers with a hostatés and operational de
including information regarding their credit andsharansactions, user configuration, reporting achine and region, by di
range and transaction type, data reports for ojpeatand finance, graphical reporting of sales, aoddition monitoring fc
equipment service, as well as activation of newiasvand redeployment

e M2M Telemetry and DEX data transfer. USA Techgas is able to push DEX data to customeosite management syste
through its DEX partner program. USA Technologigeserates within the VDI (Vending Data Interchang@ndards establish
by NAMA (National Automatic Merchandising Associat) and sends DEX files compatible with most magonote manageme
software system:

e Over-the-Air Update Capabilities. Automatic ovbe-air updates to software, settings, and securityopmd from our network 1
our ePort card reader keep our customers’ hardu@te-date and enable customers to benefit from any advaent made aft
their hardware or software purcha

e Value-added Services. Access to additional sesvitich as twter pricing, customer engagement programs anduenggymer
programs such as JumpStart, which help operatoxsracthe ePort hardware without ar-front capital investmen

e Deployment Planning. Access to services to helgaipes successfully deploy cashless payment systéemhsntegrated vendi
management solutions. Our program is based on @ixtemarket and customer experience data, whighshwlide operators to 1
locations where cashless vending machines wouldds successfu

We enter into a processing and licensing agreenoergPort Connect Services Agreement, with ourarusts pursuant to which we act ¢
provider of cashless financial services for thet@mmer's distributed asset, and the customer agrees tapan activation fee, monthly sen
fees, and transaction processing fees. Our agréermengenerally cancelable by the customer updiy th sixty days notice to us.

It typically takes thirty to sixty days for a newrmection to begin contributing to the Companiitense and transaction fee revenues.
Company counts its ePort Connect connections upipment of an active terminal to a customer unaettract, at which time activation on
network is performed by the Company, and the teafri;icapable of conducting business via the Coryiganetwork and related services.
ePort Connect connection does not necessarily iedithe unit is actually installed by the custoroera machine, or that the unit has be
processing transactions, or that the Company hgarbeeceiving monthly service fees in connectiothwhe unit. Rather, at the time
shipment of the ePort, the customer becomes obligat pay the oneme activation fee, and is obligated to pay monthrvice fees
accordance with the terms of the customer’s contréb the Company.

OUR PRODUCTS

ePort® is the Company’s core device, which is atyebeing utilized in selbervice, unattended markets such as vending, kindkcar was
Our ePort®product facilitates cashless payments by captysamgnent information and transmitting it to our netiwfor authorization with tt
payment system (e.g., credit card processors).tiadedi capabilities of our ePort@onsist of control/access management by authorizeds
collection of audit information (e.g., date anddiwf sale and sales amount), diagnostic informatfothe host equipment, and transmissic
this data back to our network for welsed reporting, or to a compatible remote managesystem. Our ePort products are availab
several distinctive modular configurations, anchasiware, software or as an APl Web service, affeour customers flexibility to install
POS solution that best fits their needs and custa@mands.

e ePort® G-8 provides the same benefits as itsguesgbor, the G-7, plus important new featured@awer price. The & solution i
65% smaller than the-7 and combines traditional magnetic strip and NEGiped mobile phone payment capabiliti

e ePort Edge™ product became available for sale $tomers during the fourth quarter of the 2009 figear. The ePort Edge™
a one-piece design and is intended for those irvéimeling industry who want a magnetic swipdy cashless system with be
features at a lower price poi



e ePort SDK (software development kit) captureseRort® technology in software form for R@sed devices such as kiosks. €
SDK offers customers access to the same turnkesiceemreporting and customer support available wfitb ePort hardwa
platform.

e ePort QuickConnect™ was introduced in August 20Q8ickConnect™ is a Web service that allows a cligmplication t
securely interface with the Comp¢s ePort Connect service to process transactiongamsfer files

Other trademarked forms of our ePort technologyuthe eSuds™, our solution developed for the commeraiahdiry industry that enab
laundry operators to provide customers cashlessadcions via the use of their credit cards, deditls and other payment mediums suc
student IDs. eSuds™ offers anmail alert system to notify users regarding machaweailability, cycle completion, and other eventsd
supports a variety of value-added services suatuatom branding or subscriptidrased payments. In addition, our eSuds™ serviceces
operational costs through utilization of our rematenitoring technology, thereby maximizing the sl g of service visits and increasing
machine up-time.

Energy Management Produc. Our Company offers energy conservation produtEngrgy Misers"®)that reduce the electrical pov
consumption of various types of existing equipmexuich as vending machines, glass front coolers adher “always-on”appliances k
allowing the equipment to selectively operate ipaaver saving mode when the full power mode is restessary. Each of the Company’
Energy Miser®products utilizes occupancy sensing technologyéiterhine when the surrounding area is vacant ouped. The Enerc
Miser® then utilizes occupancy data, product terapges, and an energy saving algorithm to seldgtigentrol certain highenerg)
components (e.g., compressor and fan) to realieetraedal power savings over the loteym use of the equipment. Customers of
VendingMiser®product benefit from reduced energy consumptionscaepending on regional energy costs, machine, gpd utilization ¢
the machine. Our Energy Misersi#so reduce the overall stress loads on the equiprhelping to reduce associated maintenance desesg)
Miser products are not currently networked to deort Connect service.

SPECIFIC MARKETS WE SERVE

Our current customers are primarily in the salfve, small ticket retail markets including begerand food vending and kiosk, commel
laundry, car wash, tolls, amusement and gaming,ddfick coffee. While these industry sectors repnésonly a small fraction of our to
market potential, as described below, these ararés where we have gained the most tractiordditian to being our primary markets, th
sectors serve as a proof-of-concept for other andéd POS industry applications.

Vending.According to Vending Times2011 Census of the Industry, annual U.S. sale®iénvending industry sector were estimated t
approximately $42 billion. The Company believesstheevenues are transacted over millions of tedsirepresenting a significant mar
opportunity for electronic payment conversion whmympared to the Comparsy’existing ePort Connect service base. In anothety
conducted by Automatic Merchandiser (State of tlending Industry, June/July 2012) that included prasentative 5.4 million locatior
cashless adoption was estimated to be only 3.720114, increasing from 3.5% the prior year as s&baosed by the Durbin amendment
Risk Factors) were offset by operatonged for a mechanism to support rising retail gic®@mpetitive pressure and a stronger understg
by operators of the benefits that cashless provillesording to the Automatic Merchandiser Repdrg tlecline in revenues experienced by
vending market segment over the last few yearsrasudt of price increases and fewer serviceatdations began to slow in 2011. At the s.
time, their report noted a concurrent uptick in oééechnology, as more operators recognized theltt services as DEKased manageme
remote machine monitoring and cashless transacpability can improve sales and profitability. Withe continued shift to electro
payments and the advancement in mobile and PO&dlgy, we believe the traditional beverage andifeending industry will continue
look to cashless payments and telemetry systeingtease sales and margins and help growth.

Kiosk. According to IHL Consulting Group Market Studyteld July 1, 2010, approximately $678 billion weaansacted through sedervice
kiosks in 2009, which represents an increase #%rom the previous year. Furthermore, IHL projetist spending at se#fervice kiosks wi
grow approximately 10% during 2010 and that denfandelfservice kiosks should push sales at these termioaiser $1 trillion by 201
Kiosks are becoming increasingly popular as selfise “specialty” shops within larger retail environments as credébit or contactle:
payment options enable kiosks to sell an increasetkty of items and at a higher price point as pared to caslbnly kiosks that limi
consumers to the amount of available castirand. As merchants continue to seek new ways thréeir customers outside of retail locati
and mobile and electronic payment technology make dxpansion more plausible, we believe electrgaigment system providers who
service the payment needs of kiadkven transactions will be able to offer retailerard associations, card issuers and payment §socea
expanding value proposition at the POS. Our e®o8DK currently powers the POS solutions for unatéehtliosk providers such as A
Entertainment’'s Megatouch, Teknovation, Cup CakesKiand Indiana Toll Road, while our ePort G8 ieduen kiosks manufactured by Air-
Serve and Innovative Foto.

Laundry. Our primary targets in laundry consist of the yagion of coin-operated laundries and cojerated machines as well as a secot
customer base consisting of over 2 million residetiege and university students in the US (U.Shgtie Bureau, 2004). The Dry Cleaning
Laundry Facilities Industry Profile published bydti Research dated July 11, 2011, states thatativediy services industry includes at
30,000 companies with combined annual revenue pfaxpmately $10 billion. Major companies include iQmoach Service, DRYCLEA
USA, MacGray, and Martin Franchises. The industry includbsut 20,000 companies that provide retail lauradrgt dry cleaning servict
and 10,000 that provide services through coin-dpdriaundromats.



Mobile MerchantNew mobilebased payment acceptance technology has madesfotraational impact on an entire base of merchdret
previously had almost no access to electrtmised payments. Goldman Sachs (Equity ResearchrtRédpoe 19, 2012) sees the arrive
mobile technology at the micro/small merchant leagdiressing an estimated 13 million Ub&sed micro merchants that are likely to be
from the ability to accept electronic payment fromobile devices. The Company anticipates mobédeed acceptance technologies, partict
for its existing customers that need a cashlesspay solution for route collections, events, andeotancillary segments of their busin
aligns well with the Company’s existing turnkey\see platform and is therefore taking steps to lethtis market in fiscal 2013.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
We believe that we benefit from a number of advgesegained through our twenty year history in adustry. They include:

1. One-Stop Shop, End-to-End Solutidvie believe that our ability to offer our customerse point of contact through a bundled casl
payment solution, as well as the ability to taifloeem to individual customer needs, makes it easlyedficient for our customers to ad
and deploy our electronic payment solutions andlt®sn a service unmatched in the small tickelf- service retail market today. Ot
cashless payment solutions available in the maddsty require the operator to set up their own aetofor cashless processing, mai
multiple service providers (i.e., hardware terminanufacturer, wireless network provider, and d¢redrd processor), as well as
implement their own cashless syste

2. Trusted Brand NameThe ePort and Energy Miser brands have a strongnatreputation for quality, reliability, and inmation. We
believe that card associations, payment procesandsmerchants/operators trust our system solutmhgndle financial transactions i
secure operating environment. Our trusted branceriarhest exemplified by our high level of customedention, national level agreeme
with partners like Visa and Verizon Wireless andesal oneway exclusive relationships, averaging three yeadiiration, which we ha
solidified with several leading organizations witlthe unattended POS industry, including AMI Ergientnent Network, Inc., Innovati
Foto, and Ai-Serv.

3. Market LeadershipWe believe we have the largest installed base aftended POS electronic payment systems in thdéewnuketd small-
ticket retail market for vending and we continuestgpand to other adjacent markets. As of June @02,2we had approximately 164,(
connections to our network. Our installed base stppour sales and marketing infrastructure by eoimg our ability to establish
expand our market position. Finally, our installedse provides several opportunities for referralsrfew business, either from
merchant or operator of the deployed asset or girame of our several strategic relationsh

4. Attractive Value Proposition for Our Custome. We believe that our solutions provide our custaran attractive value proposition. (
solutions make possible increased purchases byowrs who in the past were limited to the physieah value on hand while makin
purchase at an unattended terminal, thereby inoigdise universe of potential customers and thergupctivity of those customers.
addition, offerings such as Twider Pricing and M2M telemetry provide operatorghathe ability to pursue additional opportuniti@
reduce costs and improve operating efficienc

5. Increasing Scale and Financial StabiliDue to the continued growth in connections to tlen@anys ePort Connect service, 81% of
Company’s revenue now stems from licensing andgwsing fees which are recurring in nature. GivenGompanys strong record
customer retention, we believe that this growinglessprovides us improved financial stability and thotprint to market and distribute «
products more effectively and in more markets tmmst of our competitors, and to provide our custemeéth innovative, comprehensi
and reliable system solutior

6. Customer-Focused Research and Developntumt.research and development initiatives focusading features and functionality to
electronic payment solutions based on customertiapd emerging market trends. Since we began opesain 1992, we have be
granted 84 patents (US and International) and otlyrdvave 10 patent applications pending and hareeated considerable intellect
proprietary and kno-how associated with creating a seamless-to-end experience for our custome



OUR GROWTH OPPORTUNITY

Our objective is to enhance our position as a teadirovider of technology that enables electroragment transactions and valadeel
services primarily at small-ticket, sedérvice, retail locations such as vending, kiosianmercial laundry, car wash, and other sir
markets. The Company believes its service-apprdmsiness model creates a higlargin stream of recurring revenues that will aez
foundation for long-term value and continued gravithe key elements of our strategy are to:

Drive Growth in Connections

Leverage Existing Customers/PartneWe have a solid base of key customers across faultimrkets, particularly in vending, that h
deployed our solutions to just a small portiontadit deployed base. As a result, they are a keypooent of our plan to drive sales. We
worked to build these relationships, drive futuepldyments, and develop customized network intesfa®©ur customers have seen the bel
of our products and services first-hand and repitethe largest opportunity to scale our solution.

Expand Distribution in Core MarketWe are intently focused on building a broader lissistomers within our targeted markets to droec
term revenue and value by expanding our sales r@adtdistribution. Our efforts in this regard hdee to the addition of approximately 1,:
new ePort Connect customers, additional resellatioaships, and the introduction of the CompangPort and ePort Connect solution
Verizon Wireless’ M2M sales toolkit in fiscal ye2012.

Further Penetrate Attractive Adjacent MarkeWe plan to continue to introduce our turnkey solusi to various markets such as the broa
based kiosk market, car wash, commercial launddy @her similar markets. Using wired and/or wirsle®tworks and centralized, server
based software applications, our solutions addressieeds of these customers for cashless tramssctiales analysis, remote monitoring,
optimized machine maintenance.

Capitalize on High Growth Opportunities in Interf@tal Markets. We are currently focused on the U.S. and Canadiarkets for our ePc
devices and related ePort Connect service but @ely t® establish a presence in emerging, high grebeictronic payment markets in Eurc
Asia, and Latin America. In order to do so, howewes would have to invest in additional sales aratk@ting and research and developr
resources targeted towards these regions. At ithis, the Company believes the most efficient raotehese markets will be achieved
optimizing and coordinating opportunities with @#obal partners and customers. Our energy managedeuices have been shippec
customers located in North America, Europe, an@Asi

Expanding the Value of our Service

Capitalize on the growing NFC and mobile paymerdads.With approximately ondwalf of our connected base NFC and mobile payn
ready, the Company believes that the continueceas® in consumer preferences towards contactlgssepés represents a significant gro
opportunity for the Company.

Continuous InnovationWe will continue enhancing our solutions in ordersatisfy our customers and the ermhsumers relying on ¢
products at the POS locations. Our product innowateam enhances the design, size, and speedafrdasmission, as well as security
compatibility with other electronic payment solutiproviders'technologies. We believe our continued innovatialh lead to further adoptic
in the unattended POS payments market.

Leverage Intellectual PropertyWe have been granted 84 patents which assedusaciaims, including claims relating to unattengagimen
processing, networking and energy management deviceddition, we own numerous trademarks, copysigdesign rights and trade sec
We will continue to leverage this intellectual pesty to add value for customers, attain an incréabare of the market, address compet
and attempt to generate licensing revenues.

SALES AND MARKETING

The Companys sales strategy includes both direct sales andnehadevelopment, depending on the particular dycsrof each of ot
markets. Our marketing strategy is diversified amududes media relations, direct mail, conferenees| client referrals. As of August 31, 2C
the Company was marketing and selling its prodtiotsugh its full and part-time staff consistingtbirteen people.

Direct Sales

We sell directly to the major operators in eacloof target markets. Each of our target market®midated by a handful of large compar
and these companies comprise our primary custorase.ln the small ticket beverage and food vendiecior, approximately ten lai
operators dominate the sector; in the commercislday sector, seven operators currently controhtlagrity of the market.

Within the small ticket beverage and food vendinduistry, our customers include soft drink bottlarsl independent vending opera
throughout the United States and Canada. On thedsiok bottler side, we are attempting to secutldittonal distribution agreements ¢
servicing our existing customer’s requirementscishless locations and the related network services

Indirect Sales/ Distribution

We have entered into agreements with resellerdatdbutors in connection with our energy manageinpeoducts. We also have agreem
with select resellers in the car wash, amusemestgaming, and vending markets in an effort of besadur reach and subsidize direct <



efforts in these markets.
Marketing

Our marketing strategy includes advertising andeadh initiatives designed to build brand awarenesake clear USAT s competitivi
strengths, and prove the value of our servicesutotarget marketgoth for existing and prospective customers. Atiigi include creatir
company and product presence on the web including.wsatech.conand www.energymisers.cordigital advertising, SEO (Search Enc
Optimization), and social media; the use of dimeeil and email campaigns; educational and insioneti online training sessions; advertis
in vertically-oriented trade publications; participating in intiysradeshows and events; and working closely witstomers and key strate
partners on co-marketing opportunities and newgvative solutions that drive customer and consuwedeption of our services.
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IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIPS
Verizon Wireless

In April 2011, we signed an agreement to use Ve'gadligital wireless wide area netwofkr transport of data, including credit c

transactions and inventory management data. Thelitérm of the agreement is three years, expiApgl 2014. At the end of the initial ter

the agreement automatically renews for successiee month periods unless terminated by either papiyn thirty days ’'notice. Verizol

Wireless operates the natisrfastest, most advanced 4G network and largest ratable 3G network. The company serves 104ionillota

wireless connections, including more than 88 milli@tail customers. We offer Verizon’s wirelessvgass in connection with our eP@rt
devices which are utilized in the traditional sntetket beverage and food vending market in thedéhBtates.

On September 21, 2011, the Company and Verizorrezhiato a Joint Marketing Addendum (the “Verizogréement”)which amended tt
three year agreement described above. Pursuahetvdrizon Agreement, the Company and Verizon waoubdk together to help identi
business opportunities for the Compangroducts and services. Verizon may introduceCiwmmpany to existing or potential Verizon custor
that Verizon believes are potential purchaserbi@Q@ompanys products or services, and may attend saleswiithe Company made to thi
customers. The Company and Verizon would collaleocat marketing and communications materials thatldvbe used by each of then
educate and inform customers regarding their jmatketing work. Verizon has the right to list then@anys products and services in its C
Solutions Guide for use by its sales and markegimgloyees and in its external website. The Combasyagreed to pay to Verizon a dimee
referral fee for each customer introduced to then@any by Verizon that would become a customer ®Q@bmpany. The Verizon Agreemer
terminable by either party upon 45 days noticeraftemonths.

VISA

On April 1, 2009 we entered into a Contactless TeahSupport Agreement with VISA U.S.A. INC. (“VISA pursuant to which VISA wou
pay us the amount of $200 for each ethat we deployed prior to December 31, 2009. Theemgent covered up to a maximum of 4.
ePorts® . These ePort® would accept credit and debit cards utilizing VISAContactless technology as well as VISAhagnetic strif
payment cards. In June 2009, the agreement wasdauiea provide funding for up to an additional Z)¥Ports®vhich may be installed «
vending machines owned by The Compass Group. VISAdvway us an aggregate of $800,000 if all 4,d06res® were timely deployed. O
customer (i.e., the location owner) would enteo iatthreeyear exclusive processing agreement with us in ection with the vending machi
utilizing the ePor® . The Company deployed a total of 2,961 units, or28830, under this agreement during the period lyf Ju2009 throug
December 31, 2009.

On August 16, 2010, we entered into an AcceptandeRaomotional Agreement with VISA. Pursuant to dyeeement, VISA agreed, amu
other things, to pay to the Company up to $250@8£0year, for total payments of up to $750,000. pagments to the Company are to be
by the Company over the three year term of theeagest to support and promote the installation aamlayment of at least 50,000 additic
ePort®, or other payment terminals, in vending nraeh If the Company does not install at least @0,8Ports®pr other payment termina
over the term of the three year agreement, the @agnprould be required to refund a pro-rata portibthe funds.

As of October 12, 2011, following implementationtbé Durbin Amendment, we entered into a new agesg¢iwith VISA to establish a ne
fixed debit interchange rate. The agreement sugedsall previous agreements between Visa and tmep&oy. The agreement covers a
year term and expires on October 11, 2012. Managebadieves that the agreement will be renev

Compass/Foodbuy

On June 30, 2009, we entered into a Master Purchgegement (“MPA") with Foodbuy, LLC (“Foodbuy”the procurement company
Compass Group USA, Inc. (“Compassihd other customers. As per its website, Compass $8.9 billion organization with locatic
throughout the US, Mexico, and Canada, is the leedeending, food service management and supgovices, is the largest national venc
operating company, operating 200 branches, ha®8dzations, and is one of the leading owners gretators of vending machines in
United States. Compass is a division of UK-basesh@ass Group PLC.

The MPA provides, among other things, that for eqaeof thirty-six months, Foodbuy on behalf of Compass shalizetilUSAT as the sc
credit or debit card vending system hardware atata@ software and connect services provider fdarlegs than seventiive percent of th
vending machines of Compass utilizing cashless paysnsolutions. The MPA also provides that for agokeof thirty-six months, USAT she
be a preferred supplier and provider to Foodbuyindustomers, including Compass, of USAPproducts and services. The MPA provide:
initial pricing for the ePort hardware and montkBrvice and DEX telemetry fees at USAT's standardny. Foodbuys customers have 1
right under the MPA to acquire USAT’s G-8 or Eddrod devices through USA3'Quick Start Program. The MPA also provides ferdbility
of the customer to obtain DEX telemetry servicesftUSAT in connection with vending machines utilizithe ePort devices.
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On July 1, 2009, USAT and Compass, in conjunctiath ihe MPA described above, entered into a QuitktSMaster Lease Agreem
pursuant to which Compass could purchase USAT'sdB#Bdge ePort devices utilizing USASTQuick Start Program. The Quick Start Proc
enables Compass to acquire USAT'’s ePort through m@th noncancellable lease. Under the Quick Start Progranmgass will pay USA
a monthly amount, per terminal, that includes #asé of the ePort hardware and activation feetdhémonthly payment due under the Qi
Start Program would be deducted by USAT directly afuithe gross revenues generated from the Compasting machines. Compass wc
be able to utilize the Quick Start Program to aegaPorts during the three year term of the Md3techase Agreement referred to above.

On July 1, 2009, USAT and Compass, in conjunctidth the MPA described above, also entered intove theee year ePort Connect Serv
Agreement pursuant to which USAT will provide Corepavith all card processing, data, network, comeations and financial services, i
DEX telemetry data services required in connectiith all Compass vending machines utilizing ePorts.

On June 30, 2012, the agreement automaticallydaier for an additional one year term.
AMI Entertainment

On August 22, 2011, we entered into an exclusiveetlyear agreement with AMI Entertainment (“AME$ their exclusive processor of cr
and debit cards and other electronic paymentsrnimection with equipment operated on ABIhetwork in the U.S. and Canada. The agree
is subject to renewal for one year periods theeeafubject to notice of naenewal by either party. AMI manufactures varioypes o
amusement, entertainment and music equipment l@taahird party users.

Crane Payment Solutions

In December 2010, Crane Payment Solutions (“Crarge)usiness unit within the Merchandising Systemgntmt of Crane Co. and !
Company entered into a thrgear Strategic Partnership Agreement to delivasmhined cashless vending solution to Crane cus®me\ortt
America. Under the agreement, USA Technologies lvéittome the lead provider and supplier of all gantessing, wireless communicatic
and data services for Crane’s customers in conjpmatith the new Currenza®ashless bill validator card reader. In additiorthie car
processing capabilities of the Company, the Compaitlyprovide certain hardware solutions and gr@néane a license for designated U<
patents as a part of the relationship.

JUMP START PROGRAM

In order to accelerate adoption in the marketplasewell as increase the Companyicense and transaction fee revenues, the Cor
commenced a program for its customers referredsttha JumpStart Program (*JumpsStaiti)December 2009. Pursuant to the Jump
Program, customers acquire the ePort cashlessn&rati no upfront cost by paying a higher montldywice fee, avoiding the need to mal
major upfront capital investment. The Company watddtinue to own the ePort device utilized by itstomer. At the time of the shipmen
the ePort device, the customer is obligated to feathe Company the standard ditee activation fee, is obligated to pay monthlyod
Connect service fees, adjusted for JumpStart irordemce with the terms of the customsei¢ontract with the Company, and
Company receives transaction processing fees geddram the device.

In fiscal 2012, the Company funded approximatelg-thirds of its new connections through JumpStline Company anticipates using
JumpsStart Program for approximately 55% to 60%toanticipated connections in Fiscal 2013 as altre$the potential diversification fro
the kiosk market, where many customers only requireePort SDK or our newly introduced Quick Corineeb service.

MANUFACTURING
The Company utilizes independent third party congmafor the manufacturing of its products. Our nfanturing process mainly consists
quality assurance of materials and testing of lfieis goods received from our contract manufactues have not entered into a lotegsr

contract with our contract manufacturers, nor hageagreed to commit to purchase certain quantitiesaterials or finished goods beyt
those submitted under routine purchase orders;allpicovering short-term forecasts.

COMPETITION
The electronic payment and energy conservationsitnidis are competitive markets. While the Compaffigre unique products and servi

within smaller niche markets of these industriesumber of competitors in the broader market mégrqfroducts and services within our ni
market in the future.
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In the electronic payment market there are a watéety of companies that develop hardware and soéwolutions for our addressable ma
While several of the competitors below have formadnerships in an attempt to offer customers ahte®®nd solution, we are not aware
any direct competitor that provides a complete &nelnd solution like ours. We are aware of at least iompetitors that offer a cashl
hardware device: Crane Payment Systems, MEI, Caiteptors Inc. (Coinco), Cantaloupe Systems, Ind, \dend Screen. We are awart
four competitors that offer a remote monitoring idev MEI, Cantaloupe Systems, Inc., InOne Technglag.C, and Crane Streamware.
are aware of several competitors that offer a w#®l service for cashless processing: Apriva, Gaupal Systems, and InC
Technology/CoinCo. In addition, the National AutdinaMerchandising Association (“NAMA™)an association serving the vending, cc
service and food service management industriesr# program through Bank of America Merchant i8esv There are also numerous ci
card processors that offer card processing serticgsditional retail establishments that couldide to offer similar services to the indust
that we serve.

In the cashless laundry market, we are aware ofdoweet competitor, Ma&ray Corporation. In the energy management mavkeite we ar
aware of one direct competitor for our Energy Mipesducts in the United States; competition is gngnwas more energy efficient prodt
enter the market. The businesses which have dexelopattended, credit card activated control systeorrently in use in nomending
machine applicationsd.g., gasoline dispensing, public telephones, prepdaphone cards, and ticket dispensing machineghtrbie capab
of developing products or utilizing their existipgoducts in direct competition with our eP@t control systems targeted to the veni
industry. Finally, the production of highly efficievending machines and glass front coolers orradtére energy conservation products |
reduce or replace the need for our energy managgmaafucts.

The Company’s key competitive strengths are desdrib detail above, under the heading “OUR COMPEYESTRENGTHS”
CUSTOMER CONCENTRATIONS

Financial instruments that subject the Company toracentration of credit risk consist principalliyaash and cash equivalents and accc
and finance receivables. The Company maintains aadicash equivalents with various financial ingiins. Approximately 46% and 22%
the Companys accounts and finance receivables at June 30, 20d2011, respectively, were concentrated with &wvd one customer(
respectively. Approximately 43%, 48%, and 52% & ompanys license and transaction processing revenuedéoyears ended June
2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, were concarttrafith two customers: 25%, 23%, and 17%, respelgtiwith one; and 18%, 25%, ¢
35%, respectively, with another. There was no commaéon of equipment sales revenue for the yededrune 30, 2012. For each of the y
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 approximately zerd &% of the Companyg’ equipment sales revenue was concentrated witlcusteme
The Company’s customers are principally locatetheUnited States.

TRADEMARKS, PROPRIETARY INFORMATION, AND PATENTS

The Company received federal registration approsflthe following trademarks: Blue Light Sequence®M2iQ®, EnergyMiser®
ePort®, ePort Connect®, ePort Edge®, Intelligenndieg®, PC Express®, Public PC®, SnackMiser®, THéic® That Never Sleeps®
TransAct®, USA Technologies & Design®, USALive®, MiingMiser®, and VM2iQ®.The Company has three trademarks per
registration: Pay Dot™, Creating Value Through etion™, and eSuds™.

Much of the technology developed or to be develdpethe Company is subject to trade secret prateciio reduce the risk of loss of tri
secret protection through disclosure, the Compasydmtered into confidentiality agreements witlkég employees. There can be no assu
that the Company will be successful in maintairsngh trade secret protection, that they will b@gaized as trade secrets by a court of la
that others will not capitalize on certain aspedtde Company’s technology.

Through June 30, 2012, 73 United States patentekeven foreign patents have been issued to thep@oyn and five United States and -
foreign patent applications are pending.

The Company believes that one or more of its patémtluding U.S. Patent No. 6,505,095 entiti&ystem for providing remote audit, cash
payment, and interactive transaction capabilittsaaivending machine” and U.S. Patent No. 7.131&ntkled ‘MDB Transaction Strin
Effectuated Cashless Vending”, are important inquoiing its intellectual property used in its edR®rcontrol system targeted to the venc
industry. The aforesaid patent expires in July 2021

The Company filed for reexamination of U.S. Patiot 7,131,575 (Reexamination Control No. 90/008)4&7d for reexamination of U.
Patent No. 6,505,095 (Reexamination Control No0@8/448). On January 6, 2009, the U.S. Patent ©ffisued an Ex Parte Reexamine
Certificate in connection with U.S. Patent No. 1.B35 confirming patentability without any amendinenthe claims. On August 11, 20
the U.S. Patent Office issued an Ex Parte Reexdimm&ertificate in connection with U.S. Patent Mg505,095 which, among other thir
approved amendments to certain of the prior clainsapproved twelve new claims, for a total of kdnes.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development expenses, which are éttlid selling, general and administrative expems¢he Consolidated Statements
Operations, were approximately $1,768,000, $997,806 $1,864,000, for the years ended June 30, 2004, and 2010, respectively.

EMPLOYEES

On August 31, 2012, the Company had forty-two funle employees and five part-time employees.
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| tem 1A . Risk Factors.
Risks Relating to Our Business
We have a history of losses since inception andwi continue to incur losses, the price of our shasecan be expected to fall.

We have experienced losses since inception. Althdhg Company anticipates nearing profitabilityidgrthe 2013 fiscal year, profitability
not assured. From our inception through June 30226ur cumulative losses from operations are apmrately $199 million. For our fisc
years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, weihaweed net losses of $5,211,238, $6,457,067 $411¢571,495, respectively due prima
to the fact that our revenues have not been seffidb sustain our operations. If we continue tuirlosses, the price of our common stock
be expected to fall.

We may require additional financing to sustain ouroperations and without it we may not be able to cdinue operations.

At June 30, 2012, we had working capital of $2,897, We had an operating cash flow of $78,236, §&2#¥), and ($9,841,900), for the fis
years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, resggctieflecting a reclassification of cash useddoquisition of property for the JumpS
Program. We may not currently have sufficient ficiahresources to fund our operations after JulgQ1,3. Therefore, we may need additic
funds to continue these operations. Should thenfiimg we require to sustain our working capital deede unavailable or prohibitive
expensive when we require it, the consequences dmila material adverse effect on our businessatipg results, financial condition a
prospects.

Our existence is dependent on our ability to raiseapital that may not be available.

There can be no assurance that our business willepfinancially profitable or generate sufficiemvenues to cover our expenses. F
inception, we have generated funds primarily thiotlte sale of securities. Although we believe thathave adequate existing resource
provide for our funding requirements through atsteduly 1, 2013, there can be no assurances thatilvee able to continue to gener
sufficient funds thereafter. We would expect teeaiunds in the future through sales of our deldquity securities until such time, if ever
we are able to operate profitably. Subsequentlp1Jl2013, our inability to obtain needed fundicen be expected to have a material ad
effect on our operations and our ability to achipvefitability. If we fail to generate increased/emues or fail to sell additional securities,
may lose all or a substantial portion of your irtueant.

Our products may fail to gain widespread market aceptance. As a result, we may not generate sufficierevenues or profit margins tc
become successful.

There can be no assurances that demand for oungisodill be sufficient to enable us to generatffigent revenue or become profitat
Likewise, no assurance can be given that we wilable to have a sufficient number of eP@tgonnected to our network or sell equipn
utilizing our network or our energy management pias to enough locations to achieve significanenexes or that our operations car
conducted profitably. Alternatively, the locatiowkich would utilize the network may not be succakgfcations and our revenues woulc
adversely affected. We may in the future lose looat utilizing our products to competitors, or m@agt be able to install our products
competitors’locations, or may not obtain future locations whigbuld be obtained by our competitors. In additithhere can be no assura
that our products could evolve or be improved t@ntiee future needs of the marketplace.

We may be required to incur further debt to meet fuure capital requirements of our business. Should & be required to incui
additional debt, the restrictions imposed by the tans of such debt could adversely affect our finanal condition and our ability to
respond to changes in our business.

If we incur additional debt, we may be subjecthe tollowing risks:

° our vulnerability to adverse economic conditiond anmpetitive pressures may be heighte

° our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, ahges in our business and industry may be lim

° our debt covenants may affect our flexibility imphing for, and reacting to, changes in the econanayin our industry

° a high level of debt may place us at a competitisadvantage compared to our competitors that ese leveraged a

therefore, may be able to take advantage of oppitiea that our indebtedness would prevent us fpomsuing;

° the covenants contained in the agreements govemingutstanding indebtedness may limit our abiiityporrow addition:
funds, dispose of assets, pay dividends and makartavestments
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° a significant portion of our cash flows could bediso service our indebtedne
° we may be sensitive to fluctuations in interestsat any of our debt obligations are subject toakde interest rates; at

° our ability to obtain additional financing in thetfire for working capital, capital expendituresqaisitions, general corpor:
purposes or other purposes may be impa

We cannot assure you that our leverage and sutiictiems will not materially and adversely affemir ability to finance our future operatic
or capital needs or to engage in other businegeiteed. In addition, we cannot assure you thatitoithl financing will be available whi
required or, if available, will be on terms satcttay to us.

Current conditions in the global financial markets and the distressed economy may materially adversebffect our business, results «
operations and ability to raise capital.

Our business and results of operations may be rabiyeadversely affected by the continued advesaditions in the financial markets and
economy generally. Declining business and conswuefidence and the risks of increased or continugemployment, have precipitated
economic slowdown and ongoing recession. Thesetewael the continuing market upheavals may havadaarse effect on us, our suppl
and our customers. The demand for our productddmeiladversely affected in an economic downturnaamdevenues may decline under ¢
circumstances.

We have historically relied on the equity markeisfiinding our business by issuing equity secwiti&e may find it difficult, or we may n
be able, to access the credit or equity marketsyeomay experience higher funding costs as a re$ulte current adverse market conditit
Continued instability in these markets may limit ability to access the capital we may requireutedfand grow our business.

The loss of one or more of our key customers coukignificantly reduce our revenues and profits.

We have derived, and believe we may continue tivelea significant portion of our revenues fromimiled number of large custome
Approximately 46% and 22% of the Compamyiccounts and finance receivables at June 30, @0d 2011, respectively, were concentr
with two and one customer(s), respectively. Appradiely 43%, 48%, and 52% of the Companljcense and transaction processing reve
for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 28&Pectively, were concentrated with two custom2586, 23%, and 17%, respectively, v
one; and 18%, 25%, and 35%, respectively, with fegrotThere was no concentration of equipment galsnue for the year ended June
2012 and 2011. For the year ended June 30, 201@xprately 11% of the Comparsg/'equipment sales revenue was concentrated wil
customer. The Company’s customers are principatiptied in the United States.

Our customers may buy less of our products or sesvilepending on their own technological developsy@mduser demand for our produ
and internal budget cycles. A major customer in gaar may not purchase any of our products or eesvin another year, which n
negatively affect our financial performance. If asfyour large customers significantly reduce omlgtgdurchases from us or if we are require
sell products to them at reduced prices or unfdereerms, our results of operations and revenuéddoe materially adversely affected.

We depend on our key personnel and if they would éve us, our business could be adversely affected.
We are dependent on key management personnelgiarly the Chairman and Chief Executive Officetefhen P. Herbert. The loss

services of Mr. Herbert or other executive officersuld dramatically affect our business prospeCestain of our employees are particul
valuable to us because:

° they have specialized knowledge about our compadyogerations
° they have specialized skills that are importarguooperations; ¢
° they would be particularly difficult to replac

We have entered into an employment agreement withHdrbert that expires on January 1, 2013. We leds@ entered into an employm
agreement with another executive officer, whichtaors confidentiality and nooempete agreements. We have obtained a key peife
insurance policy in the amount of $1,000,000 on iN&rbert. We do not have and do not intend to alkay person life insurance coverage
our other executive officer. As a result, we arpased to the costs associated with the death ©k#yi employee.

We also may be unable to retain other existingogsemanagement, sales personnel, and developmergragideering personnel critical to

ability to execute our business plan, which coasuit in harm to key customer relationships, Idskey information, expertise or knotwew
and unanticipated recruitment and training costs.
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Our dependence on proprietary technology and limitd ability to protect our intellectual property may adversely affect our ability tc
compete.

Challenge to our ownership of our intellectual mndp could materially damage our business prosp€ais technology may infringe upon
proprietary rights of others. Our ability to exexwdur business plan is dependent, in part, on bilityato obtain patent protection for ¢
proprietary products, maintain trade secret praiacnd operate without infringing the proprietaights of others.

Through June 30, 2012, we had 10 pending UniteteStand foreign patent applications, and intenfilécapplications for additional pate
covering our future products, although there candassurance that we will do so. In addition, éhean be no assurance that we will mait
or prosecute these applications. The United S@ateernment and other countries have granted uahis as of June 30, 2012. There cz
no assurance that:

° any of the remaining patent applications will barged to us

° we will develop additional products that are paabfe or do not infringe the patents of othi

° any patents issued to us will provide us with anmpetitive advantages or adequate protection fopoaducts
° any patents issued to us will not be challengedlidated or circumvented by others;

° any of our products would not infringe the patesftsthers.

If any of the products are found to have infringet patent, there can be no assurance that weevidible to obtain licenses to continu
manufacture and license such product or that wenetl have to pay damages as a result of suclmgdgment. Even if a patent applicatio
granted for any of our products, there can be sarasce that the patented technology will be a ceroial success or result in any profit
us.

If we are unable to adequately protect our progrietechnology, third parties may be able to compestre effectively against us, which cc
result in the loss of customers and our businesgybedversely affected. Patent and proprietarytsiditigation entails substantial legal :
other costs, and diverts Company resources asawdlie attention of our management. There can ssurance we will have the neces
financial resources to appropriately defend or @cage our rights in connection with any such litiga.

Competition from others could prevent the Company fom increasing revenue and achieving profitability.

Competition from other companies, including thokattare well established and have substantiallatgreresources may reduce
profitability or reduce our business opportunitiggny of our competitors have established reputatfor success in the development, sale
service of high quality products. We face compeatitirom the following groups:

° companies offering automated, credit card activatedtrol systems in connection with facsimile maelsi person
computers, debit card purchase/revalue statiomgjing machines, and use of the Internet amebé-which directly compe
with our products

° companies which have developed unattended, cradit activated control systems currently used imection with publi
telephones, prepaid telephone cards, gasolinerdismgmachines, or vending machines and are capélieveloping contri
systems in direct competition with the Company;,:

° one direct competitor, Elstat Electronics Ltd.he €nergy management indus

In addition, it is also possible that a company aotrently engaged in any of the businesses destriibove could develop services
products that compete with our services and prad@dmpetition may result in lower profit margins @ur products or may reduce potet
profits or result in a loss of some or all of oustomer base. To the extent that our competit@sble to offer more attractive technology,
ability to compete could be adversely affectedadidition, NAMA, an industry association serving trending, coffee service and foodser
management industries, offers a program for its bremthat competes with our cashless solutionsighr@ank of America Merchant Servic

The termination of any of our relationships with third parties upon whom we rely for supplies and serices that are critical to out
products could adversely affect our business and iy achievement of our business plan.

We depend on arrangements with third parties feairgety of component parts used in our products.Hal&e contracted with various suppl
to assist us to develop and manufacture our eRPmm@ucts and with various suppliers to manufactuneEnergy Mise® products. For oth
components, we do not have supply contracts withadrour thirdparty suppliers and we purchase components as thdemia time to time
We have contracted with DBSi to host our network isecure, 24/7 environment to ensure the relighifiour network services. We also h
contracted with multiple land-based telecommunaredi providers to ensure the reliability of our ldabed network. If these busin
relationships are terminated, the implementatiomwf business plan may be delayed until an altesnaupplier or service provider can
retained. If we are unable to find another sourcene that is comparable, the content and quafityuo products could suffer and our busin
operating results and financial condition coulchbemed.
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A disruption in the manufacturing capabilities of our third- party manufacturers, suppliers or distributors would negatively impact oul
ability to meet customer requirements.

We depend upon thirdarty manufacturers, suppliers and distributordetiver components free from defects, competitivéunctionality an
cost, and in compliance with our specifications detivery schedules. Since we generally do not taaifarge inventories of our products
components, any termination of, or significant dgion in, our manufacturing capability or our teaship with our thirdparty manufacture
or suppliers may prevent us from filling custometers in a timely manner.

We have occasionally experienced, and may in theduexperience, delays in delivery of products delivery of products of inferior quali
from thirdparty manufacturers. Although alternate manufactueand suppliers are generally available to produgeproducts and prodt
components, the number of manufacturers or sugplérsome of our products and components is limitedl a qualified replacemi
manufacturer or supplier could take several morith&@ddition, our use of thirgarty manufacturers reduces our direct control @reduc
quality, manufacturing timing, yields and costssmption of the manufacture or supply of our pradugnd components, or a thipaity
manufacturer’s or suppliex’failure to remain competitive in functionalityyality or price, could delay or interrupt our atyilto manufacture
deliver our products to customers on a timely haghsch would have a material adverse effect ontugsiness and financial performance.
Substantially all of the network service contractswith our customers are terminable for any or no reaon upon thirty to sixty days’
advance notice.

Substantially all of our customers may terminatrtihetwork service contracts with us for any orreason upon providing us with thirty
sixty-days’advance notice. Accordingly, consistent demandafat satisfaction with our products by our custonersritical to our financic
condition and future success. Problems, defectdjssatisfaction with our products or services dozduse us to lose a substantial numb
our customers with minimal notice. If a substantiaimber of our customers were to exercise themiteation rights, it would result in
material adverse effect to our business, operaénglts, and financial condition.

Our reliance on our wireless telecommunication serge provider exposes us to a number of risks overhich we have no control
including risks with respect to increased prices athtermination of essential services.

The operation of our wirelessly networked devicepahds upon the capacity, reliability and secuaiftgervices provided to us by our wirel
telecommunication services providers, AT&T Mobiland Verizon Wireless. We have no control overdperation, quality or maintenance
these services or whether the vendor will imprageservices or continue to provide services thatemsential to our business. In addi
subject to our existing contracts with them, oureldss telecommunication services providers masease their prices, which would incre
our costs. If our wireless telecommunication sexsiproviders were to cease to provide essentigicssror to significantly increase prices,
could be required to find alternative vendors foese services. With a limited number of vendors,cagld experience significant delay:
obtaining new or replacement services, which cdeédl to slowdowns or failures of our network. Indiéidn, we may have to replace
existing ePort® devices that are already installed in the markegpland which are utilizing the existing vendoservices. This coL
significantly harm our reputation and could causéallose customers and revenues.

Our products may contain defects that may be diffialt or even impossible to correct, which could redtiin lost sales, additional cosl
and customer erosion.

We offer technically complex products which, whéstfintroduced or released in new versions, mayaia software or hardware defects
are difficult to detect and correct. The existen€alefects and delays in correcting them could Itéeunegative consequences, including
following:
delays in shipping product
cancellation of order:
additional warranty expense;
delays in the collection of receivabl
product returns
the loss of market acceptance of our prodt
diversion of research and development resources frew product development; a
inventory writedowns.

Even though we test all of our products, defecty omtinue to be identified after products are phigh In past periods, we have experiel
various issues in connection with product launclmduding the need to rework certain products atabilize product designs. Correci
defects can be a tinmsnsuming and difficult task. Software errors malet several months to correct, and hardware emans take eve
longer.
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We may accumulate excess or obsolete inventory thabuld result in unanticipated price reductions andwrite downs and adversel
affect our financial results.

Managing the proper inventory levels for componeants finished products is challenging. In formudgtiour product offerings, we he
focused our efforts on providing products with geeacapability and functionality, which requires wsdevelop and incorporate the n
current technologies in our products. This apprdeals to increase the risk of obsolescence fafymts and components we hold in inven
and may compound the difficulties posed by othetdis that affect our inventory levels, includimg tfollowing:

° the need to maintain significant inventory of gaments that are in limited supply;
° buying components in bulk for the best pricing;

° responding to the unpredictable demand for prisguc

° responding to customer requests for short laad-tielivery schedules;

° failure of customers to take delivery of ordepedducts; and

° product returns

If we accumulate excess or obsolete inventory epraciuctions and inventory writlswns may result, which could adversely affect i@sult:
of operation and financial condition.

We may not be able to adapt to changing technolog@nd our customers’ technology needs.

We face rapidly changing technology and frequent reervice offerings by competitors that can rendgisting services obsolete
unmarketable. Our future depends, in part, on bilitato enhance existing services and to deveioppduce and market, on a timely and
effective basis, new services that keep pace vdthrtological developments and customer requireméseloping new products a
technologies is a complex, uncertain process rigguinnovation and accurate anticipation of tecbhgalal and market trends. When chang:
the product line are announced, we will be challehtp manage possible shortened life cycles fastieg products, continue to sell exist
products and prevent customers from returning iexjgproducts. Our inability to respond effectivety any of these challenges may ha
material adverse effect on our business and fiahsaiccess.

Security is vital to our customers and therefore beaches in the security of transactions involving auproducts or services coul
adversely affect our reputation and results of opeations.

Protection against fraud is of key importance techasers and engsers of our products. We incorporate securityufest such as encrypti
software and secure hardware, into our productsrabect against fraud in electronic payment tratisas and to ensure the privacy

integrity of consumer data. We design and testpoaducts to high security standards, and our prisdaicd methodologies are under con:
review and improvementWe also maintain the highest level PCI validatitandard as mandated by the card industry and erthadepart
auditors not only to ensure that we meet the higinelsistry standards, but also to advise us onawipg our security methods. Neverthel
our products may be vulnerable to breaches in ggalre to defects in our security mechanisms,dperating system and applications in
hardware platform. Security vulnerabilities coudpardize the security of information transmittedstored using our products. In gene
liability associated with security breaches of atified electronic payment system belongs to thstiiution that acquires the financ
transaction. In addition, we have not experiencey material security breaches affecting our busnésowever, if the security of t
information in our products is compromised, ourutaion and marketplace acceptance of our produititbe adversely affected, which wot
adversely affect our results of operations, andestilus to potential liability. If our security dpmtions are breached and sensitive data i
or stolen, we could incur significant costs to noty assess and repair any damage to our systerna/dm to reimburse customers for lo:
that occur from the fraudulent use of the data.riéy also be subject to fines and penalties frontthdit card associations in the event o
loss of confidential card information. Adverse faity raising concerns about the safety or privatglectronic transactions, or widely repoi
breaches of our or another providgesecurity, have the potential to undermine consuoefidence in the technology and could ha
materially adverse effect on our business.

Our products and services may be vulnerable to sedty breach.

Credit card issuers have promulgated credit cacdritg guidelines as part of their ongoing effaxdsbattle identity theft and credit card fra
We continue to work with credit card issuers touasghat our products and services comply with éheges. There can be no assurat
however, that our products and services are invabie to unauthorized access or hacking. When ikameauthorized access to credit card
that results in financial loss, there is the patdihat parties could seek damages from us.

If we fail to adhere to the standards of the Visamd MasterCard credit card associations, our registations with these associations cou
be terminated and we could be required to stop prading payment processing services for Visa and MastCard.

Substantially all of the transactions handled byrmiwork involve Visa or MasterCard. If we failcomply with the applicable requirement:
the Visa and MasterCard credit card associatioisa 9r MasterCard could suspend or terminate ayistration with them. The termination
our registration with them or any changes in theavor MasterCard rules that would impair our regigin with them could require us to s
providing payment processing services through etwark.
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We rely on other card payment processors and servcproviders; if they fail or no longer agree to preide their services, our custome
relationships could be adversely affected and we glol lose business.

We rely on agreements with other large paymentgssiog organizations, primarily Elavon, Inc. (“EdaV), to enable us to provide c:
authorization, data capture, settlement and meta@ounting services and access to various regotoiols for the customers we serve. V
of these organizations and service providers areampetitors and our agreements are subjecttairtation by them.

The termination by our service providers of theniaagements with us or their failure to performittservices efficiently and effectively m
adversely affect our relationships with the custeamghose accounts we serve and may cause thosamarstto terminate their process
agreements with us.

We are subject to laws and regulations that affedhe products, services and markets in which we opate. Failure by us to comply witt
these laws or regulations would have an adverse efft on our business, financial condition, or resudt of operations.

We are, among other things, subject to bankinglagigns and credit card association regulationgufeato comply with these regulations n
result in the suspension or revocation of our bessnthe limitation, suspension or terminatione/iee, and/or the imposition of fines t
could have an adverse effect on our financial dbodi Additionally, changes to legal rules and dagjons, or interpretation or enforcem
thereof, could have a negative financial effectisror our product offerings. The payment processidgstry may become subject to regula
as a result of recent data security breaches theat 6xposed consumer data to potential fraud. @@xitent this occurs, we could be subje
additional technical, contractual or other requieats as a condition of our continuing to conduat payment processing business. Tl
requirements could cause us to incur additionaisceghich could be significant, or to lose reventethe extent we do not comply with th
requirements.

New legislation could be enacted regulating thésbagon which interchange rates are charged foit deloredit card transactions, which cc
increase the debit or credit card interchange t#esged by bankcard networks. An example of sugisliion is the so-calledDurbin
Amendment,to the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and Consunneteletion Act of 2010. The Durbin Amendment regesgathe basis up
which interchange rates for debit card transactiares made to ensure that interchange rates arsdmahle and proportionate to costs.
Pursuant to regulations that were promulgated byR#deral Reserve, Visa and MasterCard have signtfy increased their interchange |
for small ticket debit card transactions. On Octab® 2011, the Company and Visa entered into ayeae agreement (the “Visa Agreemeént”
pursuant to which Visa has agreed to make availabltne Company reduced interchange fees for dmbil transactions. The intercha
reimbursement fees made available to the Compalhyaldw the Company to continue to accept Visagbid products over the ongar tern
without adversely impacting the Compasyhistorical gross profit from license and trangectee revenues. If the Visa Agreement is
renewed, our financial results would be materiativersely affected unless we are able to pass #igedicant additional charges to «
customers. Although management believes that treeatent will be renewed there can be no assuraecedf.

Increases in card association and debit network ierchange fees could increase our operating costs otherwise adversely affect oL
operations. If we do not pass along to our customsrany future increases in credit or debit card intechange fees, assessments ¢
transaction fees, our gross profits would be reduck

We are obligated to pay interchange fees and atbework fees set by the bankcard networks to thd tssuing bank and the bankc
networks for each transaction we process througmetwork. From time to time, card associations d@blit networks increase the organiza
and/or processing fees, known as interchaiege that they charge. Under our processing agmetsmeéth our customers, we are permitte
pass along these fee increases to our customergthcorresponding increases in our processing Reesing along such increases could t
in some of our customers canceling their contradtis us. Consequently, it is possible that competipressures will result in our Compi
absorbing some or all of the increases in the &jtwhich would increase our operating costs, redwregross profit and adversely affect
business.

While the Company and Visa have entered into ay@a-agreement pursuant to which Visa has agreedat@® available to the Comp:
reduced interchange fees for debit card transagtibtasterCard has, since October 1, 2011, incre#sddterchange fees for small tic
category transactions paid for through debit césgsed by regulated banks from 1.55% of a transagiius 4 cents, to 0.5% of a transac
plus 22 cents, which represents an increase ofoappately 247% based on a transaction of $1.67 clwhvas the average transac
experienced by the Company during fiscal year 2012.

During the term of the Visa Agreement, the Compdogs not anticipate accepting any debit cards wwidrchange fees that are higher thar
rates provided under the Visa Agreement. The Compalh continue to accept Visa- branded debit anelpaid cards in addition to all ma
credit cards, including Visa, MasterCard, Discoaad American Express at its current processing rét¢he Visa Agreement is not renew
our financial results would be materially adversaffected unless we are able to pass these signifizdditional charges to our custorr
Although management believes that the agreemehb&ilenewed there can be no assurance thereof.

The future occurrence of unusual or unanticipated pn-operational expenses may require us to divert ourash resources from achievin
our business plan, adversely affecting our financigerformance and resulting in the decline of our tock price.

Our fiscal year 2013 business plan assumes thataterial unusual or unanticipated noperational expenses would be incurred by us.d
event we would incur any such expenses, we woulitipate diverting our cash resources from our JBtag program in order to fu
any such expenses. During the fiscal year endimg B0, 2013, we anticipate utilizing substantiadhc@aesources in connection with
JumpsStart program. Any such reduction may causenticipated connections, revenues, gross prdfilfysted EBITDA, and other financ
metrics for the 2013 fiscal year and beyond to la¢emmally adversely affected. In such event, thegof our common stock could be expe



to fall.

During our fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, wernecuapproximately $2.2 million in connection withe proxy contest and related litigat
and $975,000 in connection with the Audit Commitsei@vestigation and resignation of our former CBDr business plan for the 2013 fis
year does not anticipate that any such similar syémcluding another proxy contest, would occuriry the fiscal year. The occurrence of
such event could have a material adverse effecuofinancial performance and share price.
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock

We do not expect to pay cash dividends in the foresable future and therefore investors should not ditipate cash dividends on thei
investment.

The holders of our common stock and series A cdilerpreferred stock are entitled to receive divids when, and if, declared by our b
of directors. Our board of directors does not idtém pay cash dividends in the foreseeable futibwé,instead intends to retain any anc
earnings to finance the growth of the businessddte, we have not paid any cash dividends on ommaan stock or our series A converti
preferred stock and there can be no assuranceabhatdividends will ever be paid on our commonistoc

In addition, our articles of incorporation prohiltiie declaration of any dividends on our commortlstonless and until all unpaid &
accumulated dividends on the series A convertibtfepred stock have been declared and paid. Thréugjust 31, 2011, the unpaid ¢
cumulative dividends on the series A convertiblefgmred stock are $10,599,646. Each share of sériesnvertible preferred stock
convertible into 1/100th of a share of common staicthe option of the holder. The unpaid and cutiudadividends on the series A convert
preferred stock are convertible into shares ofammmon stock at the rate of $1,000 per share atptien of the holder. During the year en
June 30, 2012, none of our series A convertibléepred stock and no cumulative preferred dividewdse converted into shares of comr
stock.

Our articles of incorporation also provide that greferred stock has a liquidation preference dhvercommon stock in the amount of $10
share plus accrued and unpaid dividends. As of 30n2012, the liquidation preference was $15,381.,5

We may issue additional shares of our common stockyhich could depress the market price of our commorstock and dilute youl
ownership.

As of August 31, 2012, we had issued and outstgndjtions to purchase 45,333 shares of our comrtaxk sand warrants to purchi
7,754,187 shares of our common stock. The shamsriymg none of these options, and 6,782,040 e$¢hwarrants have been registerec
may be freely sold. Market sales of large amouhtsuo common stock, or the potential for those s&een if they do not actually occur, r
have the effect of depressing the market priceusfammmon stock. In addition, if our future finangineeds require us to issue additi
shares of common stock or securities convertilie @ommon stock, the supply of common stock avielédr resale could be increased wi
could stimulate trading activity and cause the ragagkice of our common stock to drop, even if ousibess is doing well. Furthermore,
issuance of any additional shares of our commockstwcluding those pursuant to the exercise of aras by the holders thereof, or secur
convertible into our common stock could be subgdntdilutive to holders of our common stock ity do not invest in future offerings.

Our stock price may be volatile.

The trading price of our common stock is expectedbeé subject to significant fluctuations in respomhs various factors including, but
limited to, the following:

° quarterly variations in operating results and aadieent of key business metrit

° changes in earnings estimates by securities asaljsiny;

) any differences between reported results and sesuanalyst published or unpublished expectatio

° announcements of new contracts, service offeringeatinological innovations by us or our compest

° market reaction to any acquisitions, joint ventusestrategic investments announced by us or ompetitors;

° demand for our services and produ

° shares being sold pursuant to Rule 144 or uporcesecof warrants

° regulatory matters

° concerns about our financial position, operatirgults, litigation, government regulation, developtseor disputes relating

agreements, patents or proprietary rig

° potential dilutive effects of future sales of stsaod common stock by shareholders and by the Compard subsequent s
of common stock by the holders of warrants andooyst|

° our ability to obtain working capital financing; &
° general economic or stock market conditions unedl&b our operating performant
The securities market in recent years has from tisméme experienced significant price and volurhestiiations that are unrelated to

operating performance of particular companies. &hmarket fluctuations, as well as general econaroitditions, may also materially €
adversely affect the market price of our commouwlst
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The substantial market overhang of our shares mayeind to depress the market price of our shares.

As of August 31, 2012, there were outstanding wasro purchase 2,518,040 of our shares at theiereprice of $1.13 per share at any -
before December 31, 2013, and 4,264,000 of oursheatrthe exercise price of $2.6058 per shareyatiave before September 18, 2016.

Company has agreed and/or intends to registeefale in the open market of the shares underlyieget warrants. Sales in the public mark
a substantial number of the shares underlying theseants, or the perception that these sales mmayrpcould cause the market price of
common stock to decline. In addition, the salehefse shares could impair our ability to raise ehpithould we wish to do so, through the
of additional common stock. We are unable to egéntfae number of shares that may be sold becaiswithdepend on the market price

our common stock, the personal circumstances ofehiers and other factors.

Director and officer liability is limited.

As permitted by Pennsylvania law, our by-laws lithi¢ liability of our directors for monetary damagder breach of a direct@fiduciary dut
except for liability in certain instances. As aukof our bylaw provisions and Pennsylvania law, shareholdeay frave limited rights
recover against directors for breach of fiduciangyd In addition, our byaws and indemnification agreements entered intahleyCompan
with each of the officers and directors providet tha shall indemnify our directors and officerghe fullest extent permitted by law.

Our publicly-filed reports are reviewed by the SEC from time totime and any significant changes required as a re#tuof any suct
review may result in material liability to us, andhave a material adverse impact on the trading pricef our common stock.

The reports of publiclyraded companies are subject to review by the SB6 ftime to time for the purpose of assisting comigs ir
complying with applicable disclosure requirementsl &0 enhance the overall effectiveness of comgampieblic filings, and comprehensi
reviews of such reports are now required at leastyethree years under the Sarbafedey Act of 2002. SEC reviews may be initiatechay
time. While we believe that our previously filed SEeports comply, and we intend that all futureortép will comply in all material respe:
with the published SEC rules and regulations, wddtbe required to modify or reformulate informaticontained in prior filings as a resul
an SEC review. Any modification or reformulationioformation contained in such reports could beigicant and result in material liability
us and have a material adverse impact on the rgatine of our common stock.
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| tem 2 . Properties.

The Company conducts its operations from variouasiti@s under operating leases. The Company lehdge319 square feet of space locate
Malvern, Pennsylvania for its principal executiiice and for general administrative functions esaactivities, and product development.
lease term expires on April 30, 2016. As of Jung2B12, the Company’s rent payment for this facikt$29,000 per month.

The Company also leases 13,377 square feet of dpeated in Malvern, Pennsylvania for its produ@rghousing, shipping and custol
support. The lease term expires December 31, 20th2the option to extend the lease thereafter fomdditional 24month period. As of Jul
30, 2012, the Company’s rent payment for this figci$ $15,000 per month for the duration of theesaled lease period.

I tem 3 . Legal Proceedings.

On April 13, 2012, the Company received a noticenfra former director and shareholder that he irgdrtd nominate himself and six ot
persons for election as directors at the upcom@iRannual meeting of shareholders. In connectitim tive proxy contest, on May 3, 2012
Company commenced a legal action against the fodinector and his nominees and certain other Eaftellectively, “SAVE").As part of th
litigation, in July 2012 certain members of SAVEedi counterclaims against the Company and Stephét#efert relating to, among otl
things, the 2012 annual meeting of shareholders.ADgust 16, 2012, the Company and SAVE entered atBettlement and Rele
Agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”). Pursuantht Settlement Agreement, SAVE accepted the eleaf all nine of the Company
director nominees by the shareholders at the J8n@@12 annual meeting of shareholders and haveedgnot to contest or challenge
election results and the Company and SAVE haveidgad with prejudice the civil action filed on M&y 2012 in the United States Dist
Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania knoas USA Technologies, Inc. v. Bradley Tirpak, let\a Stephen P. Herbert (Civil Acti
No. 12-2399-TJS) as well as all of the claims and counterclaaffeged therein. In connection with the proxy tesh and related litigation, t
Company incurred substantial expenses during tie #8cal year which are described in Iltem 7. Mamagnts Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
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P ART Il
| tem 5 . Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Rdated Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases ofdity Securities.

The common stock of the Company trades on The NAQONobal Market under the symbol USAT. The high émd bid prices on Tt
NASDAQ Global Market for the common stock were altofvs:

Year ended June 30, 20 High Low

First Quarter (through September 30, 2C 2.47 1.1z
Second Quarter (through December 31, 2( 1.7¢ 0.94
Third Quarter (through March 31, 201 1.3 0.9:
Fourth Quarter (through June 30, 20 1.9¢ 1.1z
Year ended June 30, 20 High Low

First Quarter (through September 30, 2C 1.5C 0.4¢
Second Quarter (through December 31, 2( 1.6C 0.97
Third Quarter (through March 31, 201 2.7t 1.04
Fourth Quarter (through June 30, 20 3.74 1.9:

On August 31, 2012, there were 617 record holdetiseoCommon Stock and 358 record holders of tieéePred Stock.

The holders of the Common Stock are entitled t@ixecsuch dividends as the Board of Directors ef @ompany may from time to tir
declare out of funds legally available for paymeftdividends. Through the date hereof, no cashddivils have been declared on
Companys Common Stock or Preferred Stock. No dividend tmayaid on the Common Stock until all accumulated @npaid dividends «
the Preferred Stock have been paid. As of Augus2812, such accumulated unpaid dividends amount&d1,264,098. The Preferred St
is also entitled to a liquidation preference over Common Stock which as of June 30, 2012 equdlBB61,552.

As of June 30, 2012, equity securities authorizedssuance by the Company with respect to compiensglans were as follows:

Number of Weighted Number of
Securities to be average exerci: securities remainir
issued upon price of available for future
exercises of outstanding issuance (excludir
outstanding optior options and  securities reflected
and warrant: warrants in column(a)
Plan categor (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs - - 555,94:. (3)
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtglers 45,33:(1) 140,00( (2)
Total 45,33: - 695,94:

(1) Represents stock options outstanding as af 30n2012 for the purchase of shares of CommaotkS®tbthe Company expiring at various
times from March 2013 through June 2013. All suphiams were granted to then current employees aedtdrs of the Company. Exercise
prices for all the options outstanding were atggithat were either equal to or greater than thieharice of the Company’s Common Stock
on the dates the options were granted. Sharehaffeoval of these options was not required bectgseptions were granted prior to the
Company'’s shares being listed on The NASDAQ StoekKdt LLC.

(2) Represents shares of Common Stock issuableetcCompanys former Chief Executive Officer upon a USA Trangat Sharehold:
approval of the foregoing was not required becdhiseagreement was entered into by the Company faritvre Companyg shares being list
on The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC.

(3) Represents 10,941 shares of Common Stockbksuader the Comparg2010 Stock Incentive Plan as approved by shatetobn Jur
15, 2010, 45,000 shares of Common Stock issualdlerthe Companyg’ 2011 Stock Incentive Plan as approved by shatetobn June 1
2011, and 500,000 shares of Common Stock issualtleruhe Companyg’2012 Stock Incentive Plan as approved by shadeh®bn June 2
2012 for use in compensating employees, officexd @directors. The shares either have been, or wilrdgistered with the Securities .
Exchange Commission as an employee benefit plaardmam S-8.
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As of August 31, 2012, shares of Common Stock veskfor future issuance were as follows:
e 45,333 shares issuable upon the exercise of sfgdns at exercise prices ranging from $7.50 t@&®er share

e 7,754,187 shares issuable upon the exercise of constock warrants at exercise prices ranging frami¥to $7.70 per share;
warrants were exercisable as of August 31, 2

e 15,694 shares issuable upon the conversion ofamditg Preferred Stock and cumulative PreferredkSdéovidends:

e 10,941 shares issuable under the 2010 Stock Ineehtan;

e 45,000 shares issuable under the 2011 Stock IneeRtan; anc

e 500,000 shares issuable under the 2012 Stock imedpian.
PERFORMANCE GRAPH
The following graph shows a comparison of thge+ cumulative total shareholder return for oungmn stock with The NASDAQ Compos
Index and the S&P 500 Information Technology Inflaxsmall cap companies in the United States. THaplgassumes a $100 investmer
June 30, 2007 in our common stock and in the NASDB@nposite Index and the S&P 500 Information Tetbgw Index, includin
reinvestment of dividends.

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Among USA Technologies, Inc., The NASDAQ Compositgex and The S&P 500 Information Technology Index
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The information in the performance graph is notndeg to be “soliciting material” or to be “filedivith the Securities and Exchar
Commission or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C uritle Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenaleth the liabilities of Section 18
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendetiydlhnot be deemed to be incorporated by refegeinto any filing under the Securit
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchakeof 1934, as amended, except to the extentwhaspecifically incorporate it |
reference into such a filing. The stock price perfance included in this graph is not necessarifjcetive of future stock price performance.
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It em 6 . Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data for the fiyears ended June 30, 2012 are derived from theealudonsolidated financial statement
USA Technologies, Inc. The data should be readoimjunction with the consolidated financial statetsemelated notes, and other finan

information.

Year ended June 3

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

OPERATIONS DATA

Revenue! $ 29,017,24 $ 22,868,78 $ 15,771,10 $ 12,020,12 $ 16,103,54
Net loss $ (5,211,23) $ (6,457,06) $ (11,571,49) $ (13,731,81) $ (16,417,89)
Cumulative preferred dividends (664,457 (665,57 (735,139 (772,99) (780,589
Loss applicable to common shares $ (5,875,69) $ (7,122,64) $ (12,306,63) $ (14,504,81) $ (17,198,48)
Loss per common share (basic and dilu $ (0.1 $ (0.2¢) $ (055 $ (095 $ (1.21)
Cash dividends per common sh - - - - -
BALANCE SHEET DATA

Total asset $ 33,219,65 $ 36,004,00 $ 29,848,422 $ 25,980,37 $ 40,055,65
Long-term debt $ 728,33( $ 253,06. $ 506,15¢ $ 820,05¢ $ 967,51¢
Shareholder equity $ 21,655,002 $ 26,12553 $ 22,812,177 $ 19,972,27 $ 32,576,54

The following unaudited quarterly financial opeoats data for the two years ended June 30, 2012wmal 30, 2011 is derived from the auc
consolidated financial statements of USA Technasgilnc. and its interim reports for the quartdrereéin. The data should be rear
conjunction with the consolidated financial statetserelated notes, and other financial information
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UNAUDITED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 First Quarter Second Quartel Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Year
Revenue: $ 6,70574: $ 6,881,59: $ 7,527,05 $ 7,902,841 $ 29,017,24
Gross profit $ 2,049,031 $ 1,938,450 $ 2,795,221 $ 3,178,33' $ 9,961,05.
Net loss $ (78959 %  (1,821,06) $  (538,61) $  (2,772,60) $ (5,211,23)
Cumulative preferred dividenc $ (332,220 % - $ (332,22¢) $ - $ (664,45)
Loss applicable to common sha $ (411,180 %  (1,821,06) $ (870,849 $  (2,772,60) $ (5,875,69)
Loss per common share (basic & dilut $ (0.0) $ (0.06) $ (0.09) $ (0.09) $ (0.1¢)
Weighted average number of common

shares outstanding (basic & dilute 32,288,63 32,448,04 32,466,52 32,496,32 32,423,98

UNAUDITED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 First Quarter Second Quartel Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Year
Revenue: $ 4,440,66' $ 6,016,511 $ 5,522,97 $ 6,888,63. $ 22,868,78
Gross profit $ 1,35556 $ 2,488,02. $ 1,553,13 $ 2,351,931 $ 7,748,65
Net loss $ (1,886,61) $ (133,13) $ (2,514,26) $  (1,923,05) $ (6,457,06)
Cumulative preferred divident $ (33335)% - $ (332,220 $ - $(665,577.0)
Loss applicable to common sha $ (2,219,96) $ (133,13) $ (2,846,49) $ (1,923,05) $ (7,122,64)

Loss per common share (basic & dilut $ (0.09 $ (0.00) $ 01n % (0.06) $ (0.2¢)

Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding (basic & dilute 25,842,60 26,005,25 26,914,00 31,929,53 27,665,34

The following unaudited quarterly cash flow data fhe two years ended June 30, 2012 and June 3, @0derived from the audit
consolidated financial statements of USA Technasginc. and its interim reports for the quartbes¢in. The data reflects the reclassifice
of the cash used for purchase of property for #meal program from operating activities to invegtictivities. The data should be rea
conjunction with the consolidated financial statatserelated notes, and other financial information
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UNAUDITED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 First Quarter Second Quartel Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Year

Net cash provided by (used in) operating actis/ $ (496,789%  (2,527,09) $ 232,17: $ 2,869,95. $ 78,23¢
Net cash used in investing activiti $ (1,294,95) $ (1,134,98) $ (1,256,67) $ (2,546,19) $ (6,232,81)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ (99,829 $ (107,474 $ (111,84) $ (91,14 $ (410,289
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (1,891,57) (3,769,55) (1,136,34) 232,61( (6,564,861
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 12,991,51 11,099,93 7,330,38. 6,194,03! 12,991,51
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 11,099,933 $ 7,330,38. $ 6,194,03' $ 6,426,64 $ 6,426,64

UNAUDITED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 First Quarter Second Quarte Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Year

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ (1,441,19)% 3,096,86: $ (1,503,73) $ 5,396,89° $ 5,548,84
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ (583,580 % (3,454,13) $ 17,02¢ $ (534,009 $ (4,554,69)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ (112,16) % (114,129 $ 9,782,58 $ 1,293,80! $ 10,850,10
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (2,136,94) (471,38) 8,295,88. 6,156,70: 11,844,25
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 7,604,32. 5,467,38. 4,995,99 13,291,87 7,604,32.
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 5,467,38. $ 499599 $ 13,291,87 $  19,448,57 $ 19,448,557

| tem 7 . Management'’s Discussion and Analysis ofirancial Condition and Results of Operations.

USA Technologies, Inc. provides wireless networkicashless transactions, asset monitoring and gtieeadded services principally to 1
small ticket unattended retail markets. Our eRrtechnology can be installed and/or embedded int&ryelay devices such as venc
machines, kiosks, as well as our eSuds™ technofogywasher and dryers. Our associated network senePort Conned® , is &
comprehensive service that provides wireless cdivitycthat facilitates electronic payment optioas well as telemetry and machine-to
machine (“M2M”) services, including the ability to remotely monjtaontrol and report on the results of distributes$ets containing c
electronic payment solutions. In addition, the Campprovides energy management products, suck &eitdingMise® and CoolerMiser™
which reduce energy consumption in vending machamekscoolers.

The Company generates revenue in multiple waysd@vize the majority of our revenues from licensd amnsaction fees related to our e
Connect service. Connections to our service stem the sale, or lease of our POS electronic payhevites or certified payment softwart
the servicing of similar thirgharty installed POS terminals. The majority of éP@onnect customers pay a monthly fee plus a bH
transaction rate on the dollar volume processetthdyCompany. Customers with higher expected traiosaates might pay a lower or no ef
Connect monthly fee, but a higher blended transaatate on dollar volume processed by the Comp&aynnections to the ePort Conr
service, therefore, are the most significant drisfethe Company’s revenues, particularly revenueshflicense and transaction fees.

The Company also generates equipment revenue thrtheg direct sale or rental of eP@ttechnology as well as our stand-alone, nol
networked energy management products.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GENERAL

The preparation of consolidated financial statesiémtconformity with accounting principles geneyadlccepted in the United States reqt
management to make estimates and assumptiondfingttthe amounts reported in the financial stateimand the accompanying notes. Ac
results could differ from those estimates. We lbelithe policies and estimates related to revenaegretion, software development co

impairment of longived assets, goodwill and intangible assets, amdstments represent our critical accounting pegieind estimates. Fut
results may differ from our estimates under differ@ssumptions or conditions.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognizetherterms of freight-ofvoard shipping point, or upon installation and ataece of th
equipment if installation services are purchasedte related equipment. Activation fee revenueegnized when the Compary¢ashles
payment device is initially activated for use oe tBompany network. Transaction processing revesuedognized upon the usage of
Company'’s cashless payment and control networlerise fees for access to the Comparmgvices and network services are recognizec
monthly basis. In all cases, revenue is only rezghwhen persuasive evidence of an arrangemestsexielivery has occurred or serv
have been rendered, the price is fixed and detetsten and collection of the resulting receivablesissonably assured. The Company estir
an allowance for product returns at the date &.sal

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSETS

In accordance with the Financial Accounting StaddaBoard Accounting Standards Codification® (“ASCrppic 360 Tmpairment o
Disposal of Long-lived Assets”, the Company revieitgslonglived assets whenever events or changes in ciremmoas indicate that t
carrying amount of such assets may not be recoleertiithe carrying amount of an asset or groupssets exceeds its net realizable value
asset will be written down to its fair value. Iretperiod when the plan of sale criteria of ASC @869 met, londived assets are reported as |
for sale, depreciation and amortization cease tlama@ssets are reported at the lower of carryihgevar fair value less costs to sell.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over falnevaf the net assets purchased in acquisitions. Company accounts for goodwill
accordance with ASC 350, “Intangibles — Goodwiltlather”.Under ASC 350, goodwill is not amortized to earsinigut instead is subject
periodic testing for impairment. The Company tegedwill for impairment using a twstep process. The first step screens for pot
impairment, while the second step measures the mhodumpairment. The Company uses a discountel flas analysis to complete the fi
step in this process. We also give consideratiooutomarket capitalization. Testing for impairménto be done at least annually and at ¢
times if events or circumstances arise that inditiagt impairment may have occurred. The Comparyshkected April 1 as its annual test ¢
The Company has concluded there has been no imguatirof goodwill as a result of its testing on Agkjl 2012, April 1, 2011, and April
2010.

The Company trademarks with an indefinite econdlifécare not being amortized. The trademarks, nbject to amortization, are relatec
the miser asset group and consist of the followtirrglemarks: 1) VendingMiser, 2) CoolerMiser, 3) diliser and 4) SnackMiser. T
Company tests indefinite-lived intangible assetsirigpairment using a twetep process. The first step screens for poteintihirment, whils
the second step measures the amount of impairfieatCompany uses a discounted cash flow analysisriplete the first step in this proct
Testing for impairment is to be done at least alip@end at other times if events or circumstanagseathat indicate that impairment may h
occurred. The Company has selected April 1 asnitsial test date for its indefinitared intangible assets. The Company concludeckether
an impairment of its indefinitéved trademarks as a result of its testing irfitsal year 2011, and has recorded a $581,900 impait expens
in fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended June28,1 (see Note 5 to the Consolidated Financide8tants). There was no impairment exp
recorded during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2082010.

Patents and trademarks, with an estimated econdmiare carried at cost less accumulated amaivzawhich is calculated on a straidhrite
basis over their estimated economic life. The Camgpaviews intangibles, subject to amortization,ifopairment whenever events or char
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amauay not be recoverable. An asset is consideredetintpaired when the sum of -
undiscounted future net cash flows resulting frbm use of the asset and its eventual dispositi@sssthan its carrying amount. The amou
the impairment loss, if any, is measured as thiemifice between the net book value of the assettargstimated fair value. Other tt
described above, as of June 30, 2012, 2011, an@, 2B& Company has concluded there has been narimgra of its other patents
trademarks that are subject to amortization.

28



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Results for the year ended June 30, 2012 contiiaedemonstrate significant growth and improvementshe Companys operation:
Highlights of year over year improvements include:

Total revenue up 279

Recurring license and transaction fee revenue &f;
New connections up 38%; ar

Gross profit dollars up 299

The growing ePort Connect service base of connestinove the 42% increase in license and transafdmrevenue. Revenue from license
transaction fees, which is fueled primarily by nidptePort Connect®ervice fees and transaction processing fees, grapproximately $z
million for fiscal 2012 from $16 million for fisc&011. These recurring revenues represented 818tabrevenue for the fiscal 2012 year.

License and transaction fee highlights for the ysated June 30, 2012 included:

e 45,000 additional net connections to the Compaek'asrt Connect service in fiscal 2012;

e Total connected service base to 164,000 as of 30n2012, compared to 119,000 as of June 30, 201 increase of approximat
38% compared to connections at June 30, 2

e Increases in the number of smiéidket, credit/debit transactions and dollars haddh the fiscal year of 43% each compared t
same period a year ago; a

e 69% growth in ePort Connect customers, fueled BgA new customers in the 2012 fiscal year for 3@@89omers at June 30, 20.

Revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 $29,017,243, consisting of $23,370,754 of lieeasd transactions fees and $5,64€
of equipment sales, compared to $22,868,789 fofisical year ended June 30, 2011, consisting of&5485 of license and transaction

and $6,426,304 of equipment sales. The increadetah revenue of $6,148,454, or 27%, was primadilie to an increase in license

transaction fees of $6,928,269, or 42%, from theryrear, and a decrease in equipment sales of, 8I8%r 12%, from the prior year.

The increase in license and transaction fees wasadihe growth in ePort Connect service fees eambsaction dollar volume from the incres
number of connections to our ePort Connect seriseof June 30, 2012, the Company had approximéité#;000 connections to the ef
Connect service (including approximately 15,000-SNAT, third party devices) as compared to approxéhyal19,000 connections to -
ePort Connect service (including approximately 08,80nUSAT, third party devices) as of June 30, 2011.iythe year ended June
2012, the Company added approximately 45,000 cdiomscto our network as compared to approximat@p30 connections during the y
ended June 30, 2011. The JumpStart Program umpitesented approximately 65% and 60% of connectaited during the 2012 and 2!
fiscal years, respectively.

Pursuant to its agreements with customers, the @oypn addition to ePort Connection service feasns transaction processing fees eqt
a percentage of the dollar volume processed byCimmpany, which are included as licensing and treitsa processing revenues in
Consolidated Statements of Operations. During tar gnded June 30, 2012, the Company processedxapptely 103 million transactio
totaling approximately $171 million compared to eppmately 72 million transactions totaling appnmétely $120 million during the ye
ended June 30, 2011, an increase of approximaB&lyid the number and value of transactions processe

It typically takes 30-60 days for a new connectiorbegin contributing to the Compasylicense and transaction fee revenues. The Cor
counts its ePort Connect connections upon shipofegm active terminal to a customer under conttatotyhich time activation on its networl
performed by the Company, and the terminal is clgpab conducting business via the Compangetwork and related services. An e
connection does not necessarily mean that theisigittually installed by the customer on a macharethat the unit has begun proces
transactions, or that the Company has begun reggeivionthly service fees in connection with the .uR#ther, at the time of shipment of
ePort, the customer becomes obligated to pay tbdime activation fee, and is obligated to pay montfgrvice fees in accordance with
terms of the customex’contract with the Company. We anticipate thatliwense and transaction fee revenues would comtioincrease if tt
number of connections to our network would contita@crease.
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In addition, our customer base increased with apprately 1,350 new customers added to our eP@t®nect service during the fiscal y
ended June 30, 2012, bringing the total number uoh scustomers to approximately 3,300 as of June28Q2. The Company adc
approximately 875 new customers in the year endad 30, 2011. By comparison, the Company had appedgly 1,950 customers as of J
30, 2011, representing a 69% increase during teetpeelve months. We count a customer as a nevorrggtupon the signing of their eF
Connect service agreement. When a reseller sallsPort, we count a customer as a new customer thgosigning of the applicable servi
agreement with the customer.

The $779,815 decrease in equipment sales was i ofsecreases of approximately $359,000 relateé&Rort®products, approximate
$395,000 in Energy Miser products and approxima$2§,000 in other products. The $359,000 decreagort products is attributable
$322,000 of activation fees on nbt8AT, third party devices and other activation gzgs performed in the 2011 fiscal year. Also cdmitinc
to the decrease in ePort product sales were resameerded in the 2011 fiscal year of $225,000 sfa\support funding and approxima
$73,000 of revenue recognized under our May 2008emgent with a customer. These decreases werd biffse $261,000 increase in ef
product revenues attributable to increased actimattes on JumpStart units and equipment salesd@trease in Energy Miser equipment
revenue is due directly to fewer units sold dutimg year ended June 30, 2012 than during the yeldeJune 30, 2011.

Cost of sales consisted of cost of services f@anse and transaction fee related costs of $15,8628d $11,651,138 and equipment cos
$3,743,226 and $3,468,993, for the year ended 3002012 and 2011, respectively. The increasetal tost of sales of $3,936,061 was dt
an increase in cost of services of $3,661,828 and@ease in equipment costs of $274,233. Theeas® in cost of services was predomin:
related to increases in units connected to the ortand increases in transaction dollars. In addjtapproximately $316,000 of the $3,661,
increase in cost of services was attributable toeimsed debit card processing costs incurred becaHube significant increase of intercha
fees charged by Visa and MasterCard, which becdfeetige on October 1, 2011. The impact on margiagsed by these increases in
second fiscal quarter did not impact the subseqggeatters in fiscal 2012 as the Visa Agreement themt effect on October 14, 2(
essentially restored Visa debit interchange rategré-October 1, 2011 levels during the geer term of the agreement, and the Com
ceased the acceptance of MasterCard debit cardgliNovember 2011. Also contributing to the increasedst of services was approxima
$199,000 of costs for electronic communication oftware updates to connected ePort3®e increase in equipment costs related tc
increased freighia costs of approximately $140,000 associated withVerizon enabled ePorts as well as slightly aigtosts to manufactt
the Verizon enabled ePorts.

Gross profit (“GP”)for the year ended June 30, 2012 was $9,961,05pa@d to GP of $7,748,658 for the previous fiseslry an increase
$2,212,393, of which $3,266,441 is attributablditense and transaction fees GP, offset by a deerefi$1,054,048 of equipment sales
The increase in GP dollars from license and traimafees was mainly generated by additional de/amnnected to our network. The decr

in GP from equipment sales is predominantly dugnéofiscal 2011 revenue items mentioned above fam@dditional costs incurred for freight-
in of the Verizon enabled ePorts. Overall margieserconsistent at 34%, while license and transaé#éie margins increased from 29% to 3
offset by equipment margins having decreased fréfb 40 34%. License and transaction fee margineas®d due to improved efficienc
stemming from recent partnership agreements, @iaBort Connect service base, as well as haviaggar number of JumpStart rental u
with fees in the 2012 fiscal year versus a yeanalgen a larger number of JumpStart units had adopgriod before monthly fees commen
These improvements were offset by the additionatscincurred during the second fiscal quarter fberchange fees described above,
electronic communication of device software updates

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A€xpenses of $15,460,668 for the fiscal year ended 30, 2012, increased by $4,030,058 or :
from the prior fiscal year. The most significanthgmonents of the increase are detailed in the tadlew and relate to expenses for the p
contest and related litigation as further describedhe Legal Proceedings section (Item 3.) of thism 10-K, and the Comparsy’Audil
Committee investigation of postings concerning@mmpany on an internet message board and the atisigrof the Companyg’ former Chie
Executive Officer. The approximate expenses fos¢hwvo matters in the 2012 fiscal year are asvialo

Investigation an
Proxy contes former CEO

and litigatior separatior Total
Legal $ 143500 $ 202,00 $ 1,637,00
Public relations 160,00( 38,00( 198,00(
Other service 634,00( 213,00( 847,00(
Severanc - 411,00( 411,00(
Severance, stock compensation - 111,00( 111,00(

$ 2,229,000 $ 975,00 $ 3,204,00i
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Outside of the two matters described above, SG&#keiased approximately $831,000 in fiscal 2012 aspawed to fiscal 2011. The ove
increase is comprised of approximately $769,00&dufitional employee and director compensation ameefit expenses, $311,000 in incre:
travel, tradeshow, sales and advertising expemsas$194,000 in additional sales tax and penalpeeses estimated as a result of a state
revenue audit, offset by approximately $450,00@xgense reductions. The expense reductions indd6,000 less bad debt expense ir
2012 fiscal year, as well as various other cosinggmeasures approximating $310,000, net.

The fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 resulted iet éo8s of $5,211,238 compared to a net loss @f3#6067 for the fiscal year ended June
2011, a decrease in net loss of $1,245,829 betfisesl years. After preferred dividends, net loppleable to common shareholders
$5,875,690, or $.18 per share, compared to a st dpplicable to common shareholders of $7,122,6440.26 per share for the pi
corresponding fiscal year.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Coybad an Adjusted EBITDA loss of $2,777,338 whichblides approximately $3,204,00(
cash expenses related to the proxy contest ancefoBBO matters outlined in the above table. Rediation of net loss to Adjusted EBITC
for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2049 follows:

Year ended June 30

2012 2011 2010
Net loss $ (5,211,23) $ (6,457,06) $ (11,571,49)
Less interest incom (72,059 (82,239 (85,149
Plus interest expen: 83,99: 35,95 60,94
Plus income tax expen 12,59¢ - -
Plus depreciation expen 2,443,05. 1,553,97 783,41!
Plus amortization expen: 997,90( 1,034,401 1,034,401
Plus (less) change in fair value of warrant lidig$ (1,813,68) 815,13: -
Plus stoc-based compensatic 782,10( 356,86t 130,52!
Plus intangible asset impairme - 581,90( -
Adjusted EBITDA loss $ (2,777,33) $ (2,161,07) $ (9,647,35)

As used herein, Adjusted EBITDA represents net nmeo(loss) before interest income, interest expeiseEme taxes, depreciatis
amortization, change in fair value of warrant lldigis, stockbased compensation expense, and impairment expansgangible assets. \
have excluded the non-operating item, change invedue of warrant liabilities, because it représennoneash charge that is not related tc
Company'’s operations. We have excluded the non-eagénses, stodiased compensation, and impairment expense, aslthegt reflect th
cash-based operations of the Company. Adjusted BRIEE a nonGAAP financial measure which is not required bydefined under GAA
(Generally Accepted Accounting Principles). Thesgrgation of this financial measure is not intenttedbe considered in isolation or a
substitute for the financial measures preparedpresented in accordance with GAAP, including theimeome or net loss of the Compan
net cash used in operating activities. Manageneatignizes that noBAAP financial measures have limitations in thatytllo not reflect all «
the items associated with the Companpet income or net loss as determined in accoedarihh GAAP, and are not a substitute for
measure of the Comparsyprofitability or net earnings. Adjusted EBITDApsesented because we believe it is useful to tovesas a meast
of comparative operating performance and liquidapd because it is less susceptible to variancesctinal performance resulting fri
depreciation and amortization and non-cash chdggehanges in fair value of warrant liabilitiesdastock-based compensation expense.
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FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Revenues for the year ended June 30, 2011 wer8@2289, consisting of $6,426,304 of equipmentssaled $16,442,485 of license .
transactions fees, compared to $15,771,106, corgist $6,464,006 of equipment sales and $9,307¢f0i@ense and transaction fees for
year ended June 30, 2010. The increase in totahtevof $7,097,683, or 45%, was primarily due tonanease in license and transaction
of $7,135,385, or 77%, from the prior period, offeg a decrease in equipment sales of $37,702 qrfrb¥h the prior period. The increase
license and transaction fees was primarily duéédrncrease in the number of connections to ourt&Rmnect network, and the associated
generated by these connected units. License angaittion fee revenues consist of service feesramddction processing fees. We antici
that our license and transaction fee revenues wanntnue to increase if the number of connectionsur network would continue to increase.

As of June 30, 2011, the Company had approximdt&®;000 connections to our ePort Connect servizgu@ling approximately 13,000 th
party devices) as compared to approximately 82@fhections (including approximately 7,000 thirdtpadevices) as of June 30, 20
During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Compangdadpproximately 37,000 connections. Units soldearthe JumpStart Progr.
represented slightly above 60% and 45% of connesalded during the June 2011 and June 2010 fisagd, respectively.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Compaogepsed approximately 72 million transactions igabpproximately $120 million
transaction processing volume compared to apprdari;&7 million transactions totaling approximat&§8 million of transaction process
volume during the year ended June 30, 2010, aeaser of approximately 95% in the number of tramsastand approximately 76% in doll
processed. During the fiscal year ended June 30,2fpproximately 82% of the transactions handledur network consisted of small tic
debit card transactions. Pursuant to its agreenveitiiscustomers, the Company earns transactionegsicg fees equal to a percentage ¢
dollar volume processed by the Company, which mekided as licensing and transaction processingnigas in its Consolidated Statemen
Operations..

In addition, our customer base increased with apprately 875 new customers added to our ePort Gametwork during the year ended J
30, 2011 bringing the total number of such custenerapproximately 1,950 as of June 30, 2011. Tém@any added approximately 300 t
customers in the year ended June 30, 2010. By aisopathe Company had approximately 1,075 custerasrof June 30, 2010, represer
an 83% increase during the past fiscal year.

The $37,702 decrease in equipment sales was d oésrl increase of approximately $365,000 relébeBnergy Miser products offset by a
decrease of approximately $157,000 in sales oft@Pproducts and fees and a decrease of approxima2dl§,00 in sales of the Busin
Center and eSuds® product lines combined. The eatedse in ePort@elated sales revenue of $157,000 is attributableduced hardwa
sales of approximately $683,000, offset by increasfeapproximately $526,000 in revenue associatéldl ether aspects of our ePort busit
described below. The decrease in hardware saleuwevis due mainly to the fact that a significanttipn of the ePort@&inits shipped during tl
year ended June 30, 2011were part of the JumpStagram, for which the Company records a-time activation fee, but does not recor¢
equipment (hardware) sale.

The JumpStart Program began in December 2009,fthermost ePort®inits shipped during the year ended June 30, 2@4@ wold to ot
customers and an equipment (hardware) sale wasdestoPursuant to the JumpStart Program, the Coynigaentitled to receive a ortene
activation fee upon shipment of the device, a migrghrvice fee, generally commencing the monthraftépment, and transactional proces
fees due in connection with the cashless activipegated by the device. The decrease in hardwédes sms offset by increases of
approximately $228,000 in activation related fesdated to JumpStart Program units, (2) $225,000isd support funding for installation a
making operational Visa accepting ePorts, and (})raximately $73,000 of revenue recognized under May 2008 agreement with
customer.

The Company entered into an Acceptance and Pronadtigreement with Visa USA, Inc. on August 16, @0lWnder the first program year
the agreement, the Company is entitled to recepvéoub225,000 to be used to support the instafiatiod making operational of up to 9,
terminals, which accept the Visa brand, by no létan December 31, 2010. During the year ended 30n€011, the Company recor:
$225,000 of revenue related to the support funétingnstallation and making operational of Visa egting terminals. As required by the \V
agreement, the Company supported the installatidmaade operational at least 9,000 terminals byeBéer 31, 2010.

Cost of sales consisted of equipment costs of 839838 and $4,049,433 and network and transactiosces related costs of $11,651,138
$6,861,642 for the year ended June 30, 2011 an@, 263pectively. The increase in total cost of sale$4,209,056 over the prior fiscal y
was due to a decrease in equipment costs of $580p4#éet by an increase in network and transacteEmices of $4,789,496. The decrea:
equipment costs was a direct result of shippingemaorits under the JumpStart Program. The costiassg with the JumpStart units w
recorded to Property and Equipment on the CongeliiBalance Sheets. The increase in network amdacdion services costs was dire
related to increases in units connected to the orétand increases in transaction dollar procesgolgme, offset by decreases in third p
supplier costs due to an amendment to a contraichvdtcurred in the quarter ended March 31, 2010.
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Gross profit (“GP”)for the year ended June 30, 2011 was $7,748,65%&@d to gross profit of $4,860,031 for the presidiscal year, &
increase of $2,888,627, of which $542,738 is aiteble to equipment sales and $2,345,889 is at#fithel to license and transaction fees.
increase in GP from equipment sales is predominaliaé to the increase in activation fees on Junmrp8tennections as compared to the
fiscal year as well as the Visa support fundingorded during the year ended June 30, 2011. Theaserin GP dollars from license
transaction fees was generated by additional dewvioanected to our network and a decrease in prirty supplier costs related to the cont
amendment referred to above. GP increased oveosii 81% to 34%, equipment sales GP increased fré%h ® 46% due mainly to (
approximately $228,000 increase in activation egldees related to JumpStart Program units addedgdihe fiscal year 2011 compared to
JumpStart Program units added during the year eddeeé 30, 2010, (2) $225,000 of Visa support fugdior installation and makit
operational Visa accepting ePorts during the yealed June 30, 2011 and $0 during the year endesl 34n2010, and (3) approximat
$73,000 of revenue recognized under our May 2008esgent with a customer during the year ended 30n2011, and license and transac
fees GP increased from 26% to 29% due mainly taléoeease in third party supplier costs relateti¢acontract amendment referred to above

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A€xpenses of $11,430,610 for the year ended Jur202Q, decreased by $3,455,075 or 23%,
the prior fiscal year, due to an approximate $2,800 decrease as a result of the Compaexpense reduction efforts and an approxi
$1,156,000 decrease in proxy contest, litigatiod aettlement expenses. The Compangkpense reduction of $2,300,000 consiste
decreases in consulting and other professionalcgsrof approximately $1,511,000, compensation esg@e of approximately $581,000, faci
expenses of approximately $128,000, product devedop material costs of approximately $127,000,edffsy net increases of approxima
$47,000.

The consulting and other professional servicesedeser of approximately $1,511,000 was primarily ttu&522,000 of reductions in costs
information technology, as well as reductions istsaof research and development of approximate®6®00, legal costs of approximai
$220,000, accounting charges of approximately $l5and expenses for other services of approxim&®6,000, net. The compensa
expense net decrease of approximately $581,000u@so a decrease of approximately $664,000 irisalaseverances and commission
well as a decrease of approximately $143,000 irfiierosts, offset by an increase of approxima$126,000 related to nozash compensati
expenses.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the fiamy recorded an impairment charge of $581,900romtangible asset. The intangi
asset impaired is related to the Miser energy ptedand consists of the trademarks: 1) VendingMiggiCoolerMiser, 3) PlugMiser and
SnackMiser. This asset is unrelated to the Compgaryfe operations related to the ePort wirelesdless products. The Company believe:
impairment of this non-core asset, and the factorsounding its impairment do not in any way effiéset ongoing operations of the Company.

The year ended June 30, 2011 resulted in a nebfd®s,457,067 (including approximately $4.6 mitliof noneash charges) compared to a
loss of $11,571,495 (including approximately $2limil of noncash charges) for the year ended June 30, 20ithmovement of $5,114,4%
or 44%. Net loss for the year ended June 30, 2044 the lowest net loss of any fiscal year sincestiares became listed on The NASC
Stock Market in March 2007. For the year ended BMe2011, the net loss applicable to common sluddels was $7,122,644, or $.26
share, as compared to a loss per common share &L 634, or $.55 per share, for the prior figesr.
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FISCAL QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 COMPARED TO FISCAL QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Results for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2@h2inued to demonstrate significant growth andrompments in the Comparsybperation:
Highlights of year over year improvements include:

Total revenue up 159

Recurring license and transaction fee revenue o&f;
New connections added up 129%; :

Gross profit dollars up 359

The growing ePort Connect service base of connestivove the 27% increase in license and transafgmrevenue. Revenue from license
transaction fees, which is fueled primarily by nfdntePort Connect®ervice fees and transaction processing fees, grapproximately $6
million for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 fro85 million for same period a year ago. These réugrrevenues represented 81% of 1
revenue for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 yasmcompared to 73% for the same prior period.

License and transaction fee highlights for the tpraended June 30, 2012 included:

e 16,000 additional net connections to the CompmmgPort Connect service, an increase of approxiydi29% compared
connections added during the fourth quarter a ggar

e 16,000 increase in the total connected service baseg the quarter ended June 30, 2012, compared000 increase in to
connections added during the quarter ended Jun2030Q;

e Increases in the number of smiidket, credit/debit transactions and dollars haddh the fourth quarter of 22% and 27%, respelsti
compared to the same period a year ago;

e 69% growth in ePort Connect customers from therpy@ar fourth quarter, fueled by 450 new custonmerthe fiscal 2012 four
quarter, for 3,300 customers at June 30, 2

Revenues for the quarter ended June 30, 2012 we8®2846, consisting of $6,382,575 of license adsactions fees and $1,520,27
equipment sales, compared to $6,888,631 for thetejuanded June 30, 2011, consisting of $5,028@2icense and transaction fees
$1,859,811 of equipment sales. The increase ihtet@nue of $1,014,216, or 15%, was primarily ¢wen increase in license and transau
fees of $1,353,755, or 27%, from the prior yearrtpraand a decrease in equipment sales of $33®548%, from the same period in the p
year.

The increase in license and transaction fees wasadthe growth in ePort Connect service fees eamsaction dollar volume from the increa
number of ePort®nits connected to our ePort Connect service. Aluag 30, 2012, the Company had approximately D64cOnnections
the ePort Connect service (including approximaléy000 nonJSAT, third party devices) as compared to approsétyal 19,000 connectio
to the ePort Connect service (including approxifyai8,000 nondSAT, third party devices) as of June 30, 2011.imthe quarter end
June 30, 2012, the Company added approximately0@6;6nnections to our network as compared to ajpely 7,000 connections adt
during the quarter ended June 30, 2011. The JumigStagram units represented approximately 75%488d of connections added during
fourth quarters of the 2012 and 2011 fiscal yeaspectively.

Pursuant to its agreements with customers, the @oynim addition to ePort Connection service fegagfransaction processing fees equa
percentage of the dollar volume processed by thepg2oy, which are included as licensing and trammagbrocessing revenues in
Consolidated Statements of Operations. During thetgr ended June 30, 2012, the Company proceppedxamately 28 million transactio
totaling approximately $47 million compared to appmately 23 million transactions totaling approxitely $37 million during the quar
ended June 30, 2011, an increase of approxima®ly id the number of transactions and approxima2&%o in the value of transactic
processed.

In addition, our customer base increased with apprately 450 new customers added to its eP@tinect service during the quarter er
June 30, 2012 bringing the total number of suchorners to approximately 3,300 as of June 30, 20h2. Company added approximately
new customers in the quarter ended June 30, 20{ koBiparison, the Company had approximately 1,9&oeners as of June 30, 2C
representing a 69% increase during the past twabmths.

The $339,540 decrease in equipment sales was # ofsdecreases of approximately $318,000 in Engugyducts, and $28,000 in eF
products, offset by an increase of approximately0$8 in other product revenues. The $318,000 dser@a Energy products is direc
attributable selling fewer units during the quadaded June 30, 2012 than during the quarter ehase 30, 2011.

Cost of sales consisted of cost of services fowolt and transaction fee related costs of $3,8B&W $3,342,525 and equipment cos
$906,231 and $1,194,168, for the quarters endeel 3002012 and 2011, respectively. The increasetéh cost of sales of $187,814 was du
an increase in cost of services of $475,751 andcaedse in equipment costs of $287,937. The inensasost of services was predomina
related to increases in units connected to thear&tand increases in transaction processing voldme.decrease in equipment costs is dir
attributable to selling fewer units during the gaaended June 30, 2012 than during the quartexcedidne 30, 2011.
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Gross profit (“GP”)for the quarter ended June 30, 2012 was $3,17&,88%ared to GP of $2,351,938 for the previous spoading quarte
an increase of $826,401, of which $51,603 reprasdatreased equipment sales GP and an increa8Y®f084 attributable to license
transaction fees. Overall margins increased froft 83 40% due to license and transaction fees matgring increased from 34% to 40%
by equipment sales margins having increased frof 8640%. License and transaction fee margins as@é due to improved efficienc
stemming from recent partnership agreements, @iaBort Connect service base, as well as haviaggar number of JumpStart rental u
with fees in the quarter versus a year ago wharget humber of JumpStart units had not yet hadtihhpfees commence. The increas
equipment sales margins was mainly due to increasthtion fees, which have no direct costs assediwith them.

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A€xpenses of $5,420,955 for the quarter ended Jyr2032, increased by $2,026,883, net or ¢
from the same quarter in the prior fiscal year. Sigmificant component of the net increase is tkdan the table below and relates to expe
for the proxy contest and related litigation agHar described in the Legal Proceedings secti@m(i8.) of this Form 1@8. The expenses f
this matter in the fourth quarter of the 2012 figasar are summarized as follows:

Proxy contes

and litigation
Legal $ 1,435,00
Public relations 160,00(
Other consultants 634,00(
$ 2,229,000

Outside of the proxy contest and litigation expsnsemmarized above, SG&A decreased approximated?, 800 in fiscal 2012 fourtt
quarter as compared to the same quarter in thal 26d.1.

The quarter ended June 30, 2012 resulted in aoastdf $2,772,605 compared to a net loss of $10943for the quarter ended June 30, 2
For the quarter ended June 30, 2012, the loss gemon share was $0.09 as compared to a loss penaorshare of $0.06 for the pr
corresponding fiscal quarter.

For the quarter ended June 30, 2012, the Compahyhadjusted EBITDA loss of $1,414,879 which ird#s approximately $2,229,000
proxy related expenses outlined in the above t&éeonciliation of net loss to Adjusted EBITDA Idss the quarters ended June 30, 2012
2011 is as follows:

Three months endec

June 30
2012 2011
Net loss $ (2,772,60) $ (1,923,05)
Less interest incom (26,877 (25,519
Plus interest expen: 13,231 3,52¢
Plus income tax expen 12,59¢ -
Plus depreciation expen 695,60¢ 480,70:
Plus amortization expen: 222,10( 258,60(
Less change in fair value of warrant liabilit 169,75! (35,609
Plus (less) sto-based compensatic 271,30: 293,38:
Plus intangible asset impairme - 581,90(
Adjusted EBITDA loss $ (1,414,87) $ (366,069
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As used herein, Adjusted EBITDA represents net nmeo(loss) before interest income, interest expeitssgme taxes, depreciatis
amortization, change in fair value of warrant lldigis, stockbased compensation expense, and impairment expansdangible assets. \
have excluded the non-operating item, change imvedue of warrant liabilities, because it représennoneash charge that is not related tc
Company’s operations. We have excluded the non-egsénses, stodkased compensation, and impairment expense, asithegt reflect th
cash-based operations of the Company. Adjusted BRI a nonGAAP financial measure which is not required bydefined under GAA
(Generally Accepted Accounting Principles). Thesprgation of this financial measure is not intenttedbe considered in isolation or &
substitute for the financial measures preparedpaesented in accordance with GAAP, including theimeome or net loss of the Compan
net cash used in operating activities. Managenetignizes that noBAAP financial measures have limitations in thaytllo not reflect all «
the items associated with the Companpet income or net loss as determined in accoedarthh GAAP, and are not a substitute for
measure of the Comparsyprofitability or net earnings. Adjusted EBITDApsesented because we believe it is useful to toveas a meast
of comparative operating performance and liquiddapd because it is less susceptible to variancesctnal performance resulting fri
depreciation and amortization and non-cash chdggehanges in fair value of warrant liabilitiesdastock-based compensation expense.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For the year ended June 30, 2012, net cash probiglegerating activities was $78,236. The net tfs$5,211,238 was offset by cash provi
by changes in the Company’s operating assets abdities of $2,781,428 and by n@ash charges totaling $2,508,046, representin
change in fair value of common stock warrants, ingsand issuance of common stock for employee arettdr compensation, bad d
expense, provision for deferred tax liabilitiessdan disposal of equipment and the depreciatidraamortization of assets.

The cash provided by the $2,781,428 change in tmpanys operating assets and liabilities was primariy ibsult of increases of $2,513,
in accrued expenses and $498,082 in accounts mayafdet by an $820,412 increase in accounts vebks. Of the $2,781,428 increast
accrued expenses, $993,000 relates to the proxgstoand of the $498,082 increase in accountshpes;a$15,000 relates to the proxy contest

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Compaeg $6,232,814 in investing activities of which $81670 related to the purchase
equipment for the JumpStart Program and $478,14sdbvork equipment. The Company used $410,288ifiancing activities of whic
$368,917 related to repayment of long-term debt.

The Company has incurred losses since inceptiona@ezumulated deficit through June 30, 2012 is amsed of cumulative losses amoun
to approximately $199,160,000, preferred dividendaverted to common stock of approximately $2,600,and charges incurred for
openmarket purchases of preferred stock of approxima&b50,000. The Company has historically raisedtabfhrough equity offerings
order to fund operations.

As a result of the continued growth in connectitmeur ePort Connect service, recurring revenum flioense and transaction fees incre:
from $5,029,000 for the three months ended Jun@@0l to approximately $6,383,000 for the three tin®ended June 30, 2012, an increa
27%. In addition, total GP dollars and GP margiasehincreased from $2,352,000 and 34% for the thmeeths ended June 30, 201:
$3,178,000 and 40% for the three months ended 3002012, an increase of 35% in GP dollars and pa@int improvement in margins. C
average monthly cash GP during the three monthededdne 30, 2012, excluding noash depreciation expense included in cost of
during the quarter of approximately $556,000, apjpnates $1,245,000 and is expected to increaseeimext fiscal quarter due to recogni:
recurring revenue on units shipped during the guamnded June 30, 2012.

Our average monthly SG&A expenses during the timeaths ended June 30, 2012 were approximately $080. This includes char¢
during the quarter of approximately $2,229,000tesl¢o the proxy contest matter, and other oash net charges of approximately $401,
Excluding these charges, our average monthly basked SG&A expenses during the three months endwssl 30, 2012 was approximat
$930,000.

The excess of cash-based GP over the baskd SG&A expenses described above should maiigeHtin positive Adjusted EBITDA. Tt
Company reports Adjusted EBITDA to reflect the lidjty of operations and a measure of operationahdbow. Adjusted EBITDA exclud:
significant non-cash charges such as depreciaioiortization of intangibles, fair value warranbiigty changes and stodkased compensati
from net income. For only the second time in igdry, the Company reported positive Adjusted EBATiOr the quarter ended March 31, 2
of approximately $336,000. We believe that, prodlidhere are no unusual or unanticipated materialapeerational expenses, achie\
positive Adjusted EBITDA is sustainable predomihateecause the current connection base is driviegiecessary level of recurring reve
from license and transaction fees and associatess girofits to support sustainability, and as aumection base increases, we believe Adijt
EBITDA will continue to grow as well. Although tHéompany reported an Adjusted EBITDA loss of apprately $1,415,000 for the qual
ended June 30, 2012, included in that loss is appedely $2.2 million of expenses related to thexgrcontest matter, which we believe
unrelated to the core operations of our businelssréfore, excluding these costs, Adjusted EBITDAtfe June 30, 2012 quarter would
shown further improvement to approximately $814,p68itive Adjusted EBITDA.
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During the 2013 fiscal year, and provided there raveunanticipated or unusual noperational expenses, the Company anticipatesng
substantial cash resources in connection with elfots expected to be used in the JumpStart Pragrathe event we incur any unanticipe
or unusual noroperational expenses during the 2013 fiscal yder,Gompany may reduce the ePort units used inuhgStart Prograr
thereby also reducing or eliminating the cash udsedhe program. In fiscal 2012, the Company fundggroximately twdhirds of its ne\
connections through JumpStart. The Company antespasing the JumpStart program for approximaté&y 3o 60% of its anticipat
connections in fiscal 2013 as a result of the p@éediversification from the kiosk market, whereany customers only require our ePort £
or our newly introduced Quick Connect web service.

As a result of the above described improvementsash flow, and provided there are no unanticipatednusual normperational expens
during the 2013 fiscal year, we believe we are adtsly positioned to fund and grow the businestuding the JumpStart Program. -
Company has three sources of cash available tododdyrow the business: (1) cash on hand of $64386t June 30, 2012; (2) the anticip:
growing level of Adjusted EBITDA (as described abpwhich indicates the business has the potemtigéherate cash; and (3) the availak
of the line of credit with Avidbank that was edtslbed in July 2012 (see_* Avidbank Line of Cretlibelow). Although the line initially has
availability of approximately $1.5 million, the Caany anticipates that the availability would irase as our business and relationship
Avidbank grows, provided we continue to satisfy laeious affirmative and negative covenants sehfor the loan agreement.

Therefore, based upon the above assumptions, dhpény believes its existing cash and cash equitsakes of June 30, 2012, would pro
sufficient funds through at least July 1, 2013 idey to meet its cash requirements, including paynoéits accrued expenses and paya
cash resources anticipated to be utilized for thmapBtart program and other anticipated capital edipares, and the repayment of lotegr
debt.

AVIDBANK LINE OF CREDIT

On July 10, 2012, to help fund growth initiativéleel the JumpStart Program, the Company enteredaritoan and Security Agreement
other ancillary documents (the “Loan Documents”jhwAvidbank Corporate Finance, a division of Avidka(“Avidbank” or the “Bank]),
providing for a secured asset-based revolving diheredit in an amount of up to $3.0 million (thiirie of Credit”). The Line of Credit is tt
first bank provided lending arrangement (excludiagital leases) the Company has obtained sindistitey on The NASDAQ Stock Market
2007. Due to the historical losses and cash butheo€ompany, bank provided lending was difficalsecure and the Company has histori
relied on equity raises as a source of workingteaprhe Company believes its ability to obtairsthine of Credit is a result of its improvi
financial performance and business model, and septs an opportunity to obtain working capital fransource other than equity financ
The Company further believes that as it establishésstory of performing under the Line of Credlitd its financial performance continue
improve, additional bank debt financing opportwestand/or arrangements would become availableet€tmpany.

The Loan Documents provide that the aggregate ahafuadvances under the Line of Credit shall nateexd the lesser of (i) $3.0 million,
(ii) 75% of eligible accounts receivable as defimethe Loan Documents plus 80% of the prior twanths transaction processing revenues
networking service fees as defined in the Loan Doents, provided that the amounts advanced on atadsuch processing revenues
service fees shall not exceed $1,000,000 withauvidbanks prior consent. The foregoing limits the amourdilable to the Company unt
the Line of Credit to approximately $1.5 million.

The outstanding balance of the amounts advanceer thd Line of Credit will bear interest at 2% abdkie prime rate as publishedlihe Wal
Street Journabr 5% whichever is higher. Interest is payable oy €Company to the Bank on a monthly basis, provideat the minimut
interest payable by the Company to the Bank witipeet to each six month period shall be $20,000.

The Line of Credit and the Company'’s obligationsemthe Loan Documents are secured by substandiilbf the Company assets, includi
its intellectual property.

The term of the Line of Credit is one year. At titraee of maturity all outstanding advances underlthre of Credit as well as any unp
interest is due and payable. Prior to maturityhef Line of Credit, the Company may prepay amounts whder the Line of Credit withc
penalty, and subject to the terms of the Loan Damis) may re-borrow any such amounts.

The Loan Documents contain customary affirmativd aegative covenants. The Loan Documents also nedhe Company to achieve
minimum Adjusted EBITDA, as defined in the Loan Dotents, measured on a quarterly basis, and to amaiatbalance of $3.0 million
unrestricted cash in accounts with the Bank. Then@any achieved the June 30, 2012 Adjusted EBITD¥enant as defined in the Lc
Documents. We also believe we will achieve the Athd EBITDA covenants in the Loan Documents for 8eptember 30, 2012 ¢
December 31, 2012 quarters.

The Loan Documents also contain customary eventief#ult, including, among other things, paymerfadks, breaches of covenants,
bankruptcy and insolvency events, subject to gmemods in certain instances. Upon an event of ulefthe Bank may declare all of 1
outstanding obligations of the Company under theeléf Credit and Loan Documents to be immediately dnd payable, and exercise
other rights provided for under the Loan Documehisthe event the Bank would declare all of thestartding obligations of the Comps
under the Line of Credit and Loan Documents tonmmédiately due and payable, the $3.0 million ofestnicted cash deposited with the B
would be sufficient to satisfy all of the outstamgli principal obligations due to the Bank, and Bamk would not have any further recot
against any other assets of the Company.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
As of June 30, 2012, the Company had certain co@hobligations due over a period of time as samzed in the following table:

Payments due by perioc

Less Than More than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Long-Term Debt Obligatior $ 321,82. $ 296,46t $ 25,35¢ $ - 8 =
Capital Lease Obligatior 457,95: 209,53: 248,42( - -
Operating Lease Obligatiol 1,517,65 450,36¢ 1,067,28; - -
Purchase Obligatior - - - - -
Other Long-Term Liabilities

Reflected on the

Registrant$ Balance She

under GAAP - - - - -
Total $ 2,297,42 $ 956,36¢ $ 1,341,05 $ - 8 -

| tem 7A . Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk.
The Company’s exposure to market risks for interatst changes is not significant. Interest rategslongterm debt are generally fixed anc

investments in cash equivalents are not significliné Company has no exposure to market risksecblat Available-forsale securities. Mark
risks related to fluctuations of foreign currencas not significant and the Company has no devigatstruments.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
USA Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of USA Technologies, Inc. and subsidiargeof June 30, 2012 and 2011,
the related consolidated statements of operat&reeholderséquity, and cash flows for each of the three y@atbe period ended June
2012. Our audits also included the financial statieihschedule of USA Technologies, Inc. listed @mt15(a). These financial statements
financial statement schedule are the responsilfithe Company management. Our responsibility is to expresspamian on these financi
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform an audit of itgiatiecontrol over financial reporting. C
audit included consideration of internal controkeo¥inancial reporting as a basis for designingitaptbcedures that are appropriate in
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compsairyternal control over financial reportii
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aulibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosure
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used andignificant estimates made by management, as wed#ivaluating tt
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeneferred to above presents fairly, in all materespects, the financial position of U
Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Jun€802 and 2011, and the results of their operatérstheir cash flows for each of the tt
years in the period ended June 30, 2012, in confiprwith U.S. generally accepted accounting pritesp Also, in our opinion, the relal
financial statement schedule, when consideredlatioa to the basic consolidated financial statetheaken as a whole, presents fairly ir
material respects the information set forth therein

/sl McGladrey LLF

New York, NY
September 25, 2012
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30
2012 2011

Assets

Current asset:

Cash and cash equivale $ 6,426,64 $ 12,991,551
Accounts receivable, less allowance for uncolléetdzcounts of $25,000 and $113,000, respect 2,441,94. 1,634,71!
Finance receivable 206,64¢ 285,78t
Inventory 2,511,74: 2,670,33.
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 555,82: 846,03:

Total current asse 12,142,80 18,428,38

Finance receivables, less current por $ 336,19¢ $ 195,60:

Property and equipment, r 11,800,10 7,395,77!

Intangibles, ne 1,196,45. 2,194,35!

Goodwill 7,663,20! 7,663,20i

Other assets 80,88« 126,68

Total assets $ 33,219,65 $ 36,004,00

Liabilities and shareholde’ equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 6,136,44 $ 5,638,36
Accrued expense 3,342,45! 1,088,09!
Current obligations under long-term debt 466,05t 155,42¢
Total current liabilities 9,944,95! 6,881,87!
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, less current portir 262,27 97,63:
Accrued expenses, less current por 426,24 166,70¢
Deferred tax liabilities 12,59¢ -
Warrant liabilities, non-current 918,56t 2,732,25.

Total long-term liabilities 1,619,68! 2,996,59!

Total liabilities 11,564,63 9,878,47.

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Shareholder equity:

Preferred stock, no par valt

Authorized shares- 1,800,000 Series A convertibddepred- Authorized shares- 900,000 Issued and
outstanding shar- 442,968 (liquidation preference of $15,361,552 $ihd,697,100, respectivel 3,138,05! 3,138,051

Common stock, no par value: Authorized shares-@000 Issued and outstanding shares- 32,5106
32,281,140, respective 220,513,32 219,772,59

Accumulated deficit (201,996,36) (196,785,12)

Total shareholders’ equity 21,655,02 26,125,53

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 33,219,65 $ 36,004,00

See accompanying notes.



USA Technologies, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Revenues
License and transaction fe
Equipment sales

Total revenue

Cost of service
Cost of equipment
Gross profit

Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment of intangible asset
Total operating expenses
Operating los!

Other income (expense
Interest incom
Interest expens
Change in fair value of warrant liabilities

Total other income (expense), net

Loss before provision for income tax
Provision for income taxes

Net loss
Cumulative preferred dividends
Loss applicable to common shares

Loss per common share (basic and diluted)
Weighted average number of common shares outsigioasic and dilutec

See accompanying notes.
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Year ended June :

2012 2011 2010
$ 23370,75 $ 1644248 $ 9,307,10
5,646,48! 6,426,30. 6,464,00
29,017,24 22,868,78 15,771,10
15,312,96 11,651,13 6,861,64,
3,743,22| 3,468,99: 4,049,43,
9,061,05. 7,748,65 4,860,03
15,460,66 11,430,61 14,885,68
1,500,77! 1,424,36! 1,570,04

- 581,90( -

16,961,44 13,436,87 16,455,72
(7,000,39) ~ (5,688,21)  (11,595,69)
72,05¢ 82,23 85,14
(83,999 (35,95 (60,94
1,813,68 (815,13) -
1,801,75. (768,85() 24.20:
(5,198,63)  (6,457,06)  (11,571,49)
(12,599 - -
(5,211,23)  (6,457,06)  (11,571,49)
(664,45) (665,57) (735,139

$ (5,875,69) $ (7,122,64) $ (12,306,63)
$ 0.15) $ (0.26 $ (0.5)
32,423,98 27,665,34 22,370,06



Balance, June 30, 20(

Issuance of common stock at $2.00
share, less issuance costs of
$1,613,42¢

Issuance of common stock at $0.90
share, less issuance costs of $504

Issuance of fully-vested shares of
common stock to officers and
employees and vesting of shares
granted under the 2008 Stock
Incentive Plar

Retirement of common stot

Retirement of preferred stor

Net loss

Balance, June 30, 2010

See accompanying notes.

USA Technologies, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Series A
Convertible
Preferred Stoc Common Stocl
Shares Amount Shares Amount

Accumulated

Deficit

Total

510,27 $ 3,614,55 15,423,02 $194,948,69

$(178,590,97) $ 19,972,27

- - 7,285,79.  12,958,15 - 12,958,15
- - 2,753,45. 1,974,01. - 1,974,01.

- - 40,00( 87,35 - 87,35
- - (5,119 (9,669) - (9,669
(65,807) (465,879) - - (132,581 (598,469)
(11,571,49)  (11,571,49)

444, 46! 3,148,67'  25497,15  209,95855 (190,29505)  22,812,17
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Issuance of common stock at $0.90
share less issuance cost of $230,
Issuance of common stock to Lincoln
Park Capita

Issuance of common stock at $2.064
share less the fair value of warrant:
issued of $1,917,122 and less cast
issuance costs of $838,7

Exercise of 376,355 warrants at $2.2
resulting in the issuance of commo
stock

Exercise of 497,367 warrants at $1.1
resulting in the issuance of commo
stock

Cashless exercise of 127,497 warrar
resulting in the issuance of commo
stock

Conversion of preferred stock into
common stocl

Conversion of $33,000 of preferred
dividends into common stoc

Issuance of fully-vested shares of
common stock to employees and
vesting of shares granted under the
2008 Stock Incentive Ple

Issuance of fully-vested shares of
common stock to employees and
directors and vesting of shares
granted under the 2010 Stock
Incentive Plar

Issuance of common stock for
settlement of the Long-Term Equity
Incentive Program for Fiscal Year
2010

Retirement of common stot

Net loss

Balance, June 30, 2011

See accompanying notes.

USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity (Gainued)

Series A
Convertible
Preferred Stoc Common Stocl Accumulated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Deficit Total
- - 261,95! 5,671 - 5,671
- - 150,00( - - -
- - 5,200,00!I 7,976,97. - 7,976,97.
- - 376,35! 827,98: - 827,98
- - 497,36° 562,02 - 562,02!
- - 83,47: - - -
(1,500 (20,620 15 10,62( - -
- - 33 33,00( (33,000 -
- - 20,743 10,20¢ - 10,20¢
- - 109,91¢ 292,26 - 292,26
- - 86,34: 97,56¢ - 97,56¢
- - (2,217 (2,26)) - (2,26))
(6,457,06) (6,457,06)
442 96¢ 3,138,05I 32,281,14 219,772,59 (196,785,12) 26,125,53
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Exercise of 4,550 warrants at $2.20
resulting in issuance of common st

Cashless exercise of 2,767 warrants
resulting in issuance of common st

Issuance of fully-vested shares of
common stock to employees and
directors and vesting of shares unc
the 2010 Stock Incentive Pl

Issuance of fully-vested shares of
common stock to employees and
directors and vesting of shares unc
the 2011 Stock Incentive Pl

Vesting of shares under the 2012 Stc
Incentive Plar

Retirement of common stot

Net loss

Balance, June 30, 2012

USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity (Gainued)

Series A
Convertible
Preferred Stoc Common Stocl Accumulatec
Shares Amount Shares Amount Deficit Total
- - 4,55( 10,01( - 10,01(
- - 99C - - -
- - 120,47: 248,85: - 248,85:
- - 141,66¢ 335,63¢ - 335,63t
- - - 197,61 - 197,61
- - (38,749 (51,38) - (51,38)
- - - - (5,211,23) (5,211,23)
442,96f $ 3,138,05I 32,510,06 $220,513,32 $(201,996,36) $ 21,655,02

F-6



OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss

USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended June :

2012

2011

2010

$ (5211,23) $ (6,457,06) $ (11,571,49)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Charges incurred in connection with the vestingiaadance of common stock for

employee and director compensat 782,10( 302,47: 87,35«
Charges incurred in connection with the L-term Equity Incentive Pla - 54,39 43,17
Charges incurred (reduced) for change in fair vafugarrants (1,813,68) 815,13: -
Loss on disposal of property and equiprr 134,35( 116,82¢ 25,05¢
Depreciation, $1,940,179, $1,164,013, and $247 i€&pectively, of which is allocated tc

cost of service 2,443,05. 1,553,97! 783,41!
Amortization 997,90( 1,034,401 1,034,401
Impairment of intangible ass - 581,90( -
Bad debt expense (recove (48,27() 92,02¢ (50€)
Provision for deferred tax liabilit 12,59¢ - -
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (758,95) 321,67 (579,86
Finance receivable (61,460) 100,40¢ (247,24)
Inventory 158,58« (36,36)) (962,74
Prepaid expenses and other as 431,27t 115,75t 337,67.
Accounts payabl 498,08 1,067,63 776,03
Accrued expenses 2,513,89 (571,39) 432,841
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 78,23¢ (908,227 (9,841,90)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipm (478,144 (291,39 (520,83)
Purchase of property for rental program, net (5,754,67)) (4,263,30) (2,505,28)
Net cash used in investing activiti (6,232,819 (4,554,69) (3,026,11)

See accompanying notes.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

Year ended June :

2012 2011 2010

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net proceeds from the issuance (payments for reéirg) of common stoc $ (41,37) $ 11,287,51 $ 14,922,50
Payments for retirement of preferred st - - (598,46:)
Proceeds from the issuance of I-term debt - - 7,50(
Repayment of long-term debt (368,91) (437,409 (607,467
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (410,289 10,850,10 13,724,07
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (6,564,861 5,387,18 856,06:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 12,991,51 7,604,32. 6,748,26.
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 6,426,64' $ 12,99151 $ 7,604,32
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informa:

Cash paid for interest $ 38,89. $ 37,96: $ 63,88
Equipment and software acquired under capital lease $ 495,95! $ - $ 17,331
Equipment and software financed with long-term debt $ 252,96¢ $ - $ 195,00!
Conversion of convertible preferred stock to comrstotk $ - $ (10,620 $ =
Conversion of cumulative preferred dividends to ommn stock $ - $ (33,000 $ -
Prepaid insurance financed with long-term debt $ 95,26: $ 94,31 $ -
Disposal of property and equipment $ 652,09 $ 283,80. $ 581,12:
Fair value of warrants at issuance $ - $ 191712 $ -

See accompanying notes.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. BUSINESS

USA Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”, “We” or “Oyr incorporated in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvanialanuary 1992, provid
wireless networking, cashless transactions, assaitaning and other valuadded services principally to the small ticket teraded reta
markets. Our ePof® technology can be installed and/or embedded intryelay devices such as vending machines, kioskaefisas ou
eSuds™ technology for washer and dryers. Our as®achetwork service, ePort Conn@ctis a comprehensive service that provides wir
connectivity that facilitates electronic paymentiops as well as telemetry and machine-to-macHiWRN§”) services, including the ability
remotely monitor, control and report on the resaftglistributed assets containing our electronignpent solutions. In addition, the Comp.
provides energy management products, such as itdifgMiser® and CoolerMiser™, which reduce energy consumptiovending machint
and coolers.

The Company has incurred losses from its incegtioough June 30, 2012. Although the Company arsteip nearing profitability during t
2013 fiscal year, profitability is not assured. T®@empanys ability to meet its future obligations is depemdepon the success of its prodi
and services in the marketplace and the availadybital resources. Until the Compasyproducts and services can generate sufficienta
revenues, the Company will be required to useath@nd cash equivalents on hand, and its lineeglitqsee Note 16); and, may raise ca
to meet its cash flow requirements including ttseiggce of Common Stock and the exercise of outistgi@bmmon Stock warrants.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statemimatsde the accounts of the Company and its wholiyied subsidiaries, Stitch Netwo
Corporation (“Stitch”) and USAT Capital Corp LLCUYSAT Capital”). All significant intercompany accounts and transawi have bet
eliminated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in eonity with U.S. generally accepted accounting giptes requires management to
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the financial statements and accompagnyates. Actual results could differ fri
those estimates.

RECLASSIFICATIOI!
Certain amounts in prior period financial stateradretive been reclassified to conform to the cupenibd presentation.
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents represent all highly liquid inwestts with original maturities of three months esd. Cash equivalents are comprise
money market funds. The Company maintains its aablank deposit accounts, which may exceed fedeirsdured limits at times.

Included in cash and cash equivalents at June B[R and 2011 was approximately $0 and $410,00peontisely, of cash received by
Company for transaction processing services whscpaiyable to our customers. Included in accoursivable are amounts for transacti
processed with our card processers for which cashnlot been received by the Company and includettéounts payable are amounts
transactions processed with our card processersdlaado our customers, which are recorded net @ ftue to the Company. Gener:
contractual terms require us to remit amounts otwexlir customers on a weekly basis.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABL

Accounts receivable are reported at their outstandinpaid principal balances reduced by an alloedac doubtful accounts. The Compi
estimates doubtful accounts for accounts receivabtefinance receivables based on historical batsdéactors related to specific customers
ability to pay and current economic trends. The @any writes off accounts receivable against thenalhce when management determine
balance is uncollectible and the Company ceasdsctioh efforts. Management believes that the adloge accrued is adequate to providt
its estimated credit losses.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCE RECEIVABLE

The Company offers extended payment terms to cedastomers for equipment sales. During the yede@rdune 30, 2010, the Comp
started offering customers its Quick Start Progrémaccordance with the Financial Accounting StaddaBoard Accounting Standa
Coadification® (“ASC”) Topic 840, “Leases”, agreemigmunder the Quick Start Program qualify for sdigee lease accounting. According
the future minimum lease payments are classifiefir@nce receivables in the Compamyconsolidated balance sheets. Notes receiva
Quick Start leases are generally for a 36 montim.téfinance receivables are carried at their coteh@mount and charged off against
allowance for credit losses when management detesrthat recovery is unlikely and the Company easdlection efforts. The Compa
recognizes a portion of the note or lease paymastiiterest income in the accompanying consolidéitehcial statements based on
effective interest rate method.

INVENTORY

Inventory consists of finished goods and packagnagerials. The Comparg’inventory is stated at the lower of cost (averegs basis) ¢
market.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMEN"

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB%ued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2010“G®&ir Value Measurements ¢
Disclosures (“Topic 820"): Improving Disclosuresoaib Fair Value Measurements.” ASU 2008-amends certain disclosure requiremen
Subtopic 820t0. This ASU provides additional disclosures fansfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2 and for agtivi Level 3. This ASU als
clarifies certain other existing disclosure requients including level of desegregation and diselesaround inputs and valuation techniques.

The Companys financial assets and liabilities are measuredguisiputs from the three levels of the fair valuerérchy. The three levels are
follows:

Level 1-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active ntafioe identical assets or liabilities that the G@my has the ability to access at
measurement date.

Level 2-Inputs are other than quoted prices included witteémel 1 that are observable for the asset orlitgbeither directly or indirectl
Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similagsets and liabilities in active markets, quotedgsitor identical or similar assets or liabilitie
markets that are not active, inputs other thaneagliptices that are observable for the asset dlityaf.e., interest rates, yield curves, etcnd
inputs that are derived principally from or corrodted by observable market data by correlatiortoeromeans (market corroborated inputs).

Level 3- Inputs are unobservable and reflect thmm@my's assumptions that market participants would ug®iging the asset or liability. T
Company develops these inputs based on the bestriafion available.

The Companys financial instruments, principally cash equivédemccounts receivable, finance receivables, epgenses and other ass
accounts payable and accrued expenses, are catr@xst which approximates fair value due to thertdferm maturity of these instrumer
The fair value of the Company’s obligations undir longterm debt and credit agreements approximates thagitying value as su
instruments are at market rates currently availadotae Company.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMEN
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Rsoped equipment are depreciated on the strdigatbasis over the estimated useful live

the related assets. Leasehold improvements aretiaetbon the straightne basis over the lesser of the estimated udiédubf the asset or tl
respective lease term.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over failuevaf the net assets purchased in acquisitions. Gmpany accounts for goodwill
accordance with ASC 350, “Intangibles — Goodwiltlather”.Under ASC 350, goodwill is not amortized to earsinigut instead is subject
periodic testing for impairment. The Company tegt®dwill for impairment using a twstep process. The first step screens for poti
impairment, while the second step measures the mhodumpairment. The Company uses a discounteld faw analysis to complete the fi
step in this process. We also give consideratiomutomarket capitalization. Testing for impairménto be done at least annually and at ¢
times if events or circumstances arise that inditiaat impairment may have occurred. The Comparyshkected April 1 as its annual test ¢
The Company has concluded there has been no imgatiroi goodwill as a result of its testing on Agkjl 2012, April 1, 2011, and April
2010.

The Company trademarks with an indefinite econdlifécare not being amortized. The trademarks, nbject to amortization, are relatec
the miser asset group and consist of the followtirsglemarks: 1) VendingMiser, 2) CoolerMiser, 3) dhliser and 4) SnackMiser. T
Company tests indefinite-lived intangible assetsifgpairment using a twetep process. The first step screens for poteintighirment, whili
the second step measures the amount of impairfieetCompany uses a discounted cash flow analysisrtplete the first step in this proct
Testing for impairment is to be done at least alip@end at other times if events or circumstanagseathat indicate that impairment may h
occurred. The Company has selected April 1 asnitsial test date for its indefinitared intangible assets. There was no impairmepenge
recorded during the fiscal years ended June 3® aadl 2010. In fiscal 2011 the Company concludedetivas an impairment of its indefinite-
lived trademarks as a result of its testing anadneed a $581,900 impairment expense in the fountrtgr of the fiscal year ended June
2011 (see Note 5).

Patents and trademarks, with an estimated econdmiare carried at cost less accumulated amaitizawhich is calculated on a straidhte
basis over their estimated economic life. The Camgpaviews intangibles, subject to amortization,ifopairment whenever events or char
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amaualy not be recoverable. An asset is consideredetintpaired when the sum of
undiscounted future net cash flows resulting frbm use of the asset and its eventual dispositisssthan its carrying amount. The amoul
the impairment loss, if any, is measured as thierdifice between the net book value of the assettamrdtimated fair value. Other than
impairment charge recorded in fiscal 2011 describove, as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Compasycbncluded there has beer
impairment of its other patents or trademarks ighatibject to amortization.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSE’

In accordance with ASC 360, “Impairment or DisposfiLong-Lived Assets”, the Company reviews itsddived assets whenever event:
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargingunt of such assets may not be recoverablee I€&rrying amount of an asset or grou
assets exceeds its net realizable value, the &#isbe written down to its fair value. In the ped when the plan of sale criteria of ASC 36(
met, longlived assets are reported as held for sale, degii@ciand amortization cease, and the assets poeed at the lower of carrying va
or fair value less costs to sell. The Company lmeladed that the carrying amount of ldinged assets is recoverable as of June 30, 201
2011.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that subject the Company torecentration of credit risk consist principalliyaash and cash equivalents and accc
and finance receivables. The Company maintains aadicash equivalents with various financial ingiins. Approximately 46% and 22%
the Companys accounts and finance receivables at June 30, 20d22011, respectively, were concentrated with &wd one customer(
respectively. Approximately 43%, 48%, and 52% af ompanys license and transaction processing revenuedéoyears ended June
2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, were conceuraith two customers25%, 23%, and 17%, respectively, with one; and 18%8p, an
35%, respectively, with another. There was no cotmaéon of equipment sales revenue for the yededrdune 30, 2012 and 2011. For the
ended June 30, 2010, approximately 11% of the Cagipaequipment sales revenue was concentrated avithcustomer. The Company’
customers are principally located in the Unitedé&ta
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
REVENUE RECOGNITIOI

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognizetherterms of freight-oboard shipping point. Activation fee revenue isogrized whe
the Companys cashless payment device is initially activateduse on the Company network. Transaction procgs&umenue is recogniz
upon the usage of the Company’s cashless paymdrtauatrol network. License fees for access to tam@anys devices and network servi
are recognized on a monthly basis. In all casegnmge is only recognized when persuasive evideh@n @rrangement exists, delivery
occurred or services have been rendered, the igrfoeed and determinable, and collection of theutiéng receivable is reasonably assured.
Company estimates an allowance for product retattise date of sale.

EQUIPMENT RENTAI

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Compamynemced a rental program, the JumpStart ProgradufripStart " )for its ePort device
The JumpsStart terms are typically 36 months andcareellable with sixty days written notice. In amtance with ASC 840, “Leaseshe
Company classifies the rental agreements as opgrigases. For the years ended June 30, 2012, 26812010, there was approxima
$607,000, $597,000, and $369,000, respectivelyctifzation fee revenue related to JumpStart equiprimeluded in equipment sales in
Consolidated Statements of Operations. There wsts agdproximately $6,099,000, $2,725,000, and 483di0service fee revenue relatec
JumpsStart equipment included in license and traimsaéees in the Consolidated Statements of Opmratfor the years ended June 30, 2
2011, and 2010, respectively. Cost for the JumpStwenues, which consists of depreciation expemsethe JumpStart equipme
approximated $1,740,000, $933,000, and 105,00¢hfoyears ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 201@&atesgy, and were included in cos!
services in the Consolidated Statements of Opemtiat June 30, 2012 and 2011, $9,793,000 and 3803 of ePort equipment utilized
the JumpStart Program was included in propertyeandpment, net on the consolidated balance sheetNste 4).

WARRANTY COSTS

The Company generally warrants its products for mnthree years. Warranty costs are estimated ecoided at the time of sale baset
historical warranty experience, if available. Theests are reviewed and adjusted, if necessarydieally throughout the year.

SHIPPING AND HANDLING

Shipping and handling fees billed to our customargonnection with sales are recorded as revenhe. ¢bsts incurred for shipping ¢
handling of our product are recorded as cost @ssal

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPEN¢
Research and development expenses are expenseclagd. Research and development expenses, wtddnauded in selling, general ¢
administrative expenses in the consolidated staitsma operations, were approximately $1,768,0@9,7800, and $1,864,000, for the y«

ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respecti@elyresearch and development initiatives focus dafirgy features and functionality to
system solutions through the development and atibn of our processing and reporting network ag technology.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
ACCOUNTING FOR EQUITY AWARI

In accordance with ASC 718 the cost of employewices received in exchange for an award of equisgruments is based on the grdate
fair value of the award and allocated over theinggteriod of the award.

The Company recorded stock compensation expen$88#,487, $302,471, and $87,354 related to comramk grants and vesting of she
previously granted to employees and directors dutfie years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 20sfikatively. These expenses exclude
Fiscal Year 2012 Performance Share Plan (the “Z0&aR") and the Long-Term Equity Incentive PrograidT(P” or the “LTIP Program)
covering the Company’s executive officers.

On September 15, 2011, at the recommendation ctmepensation Committee, the board of directorgptatbthe “2012 Plan'The Compan
recorded expense of $197,613 for the year endesl 302012 for the award earned by Compsamxecutive officers under the 2012 Plan.
Company recorded stock compensation expense 08$54nd $43,171 related to the vesting of shardstlzn change in fair value of the
shares awarded under the LTIP Program during thesyended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectivelyNste11), the last years of the L
Program.

There were no common stock options granted, vesteecorded as expense during the years ended3ui2912, 2011 and 201®uring the
2012 fiscal year, 42,333 and 3,000 common stockgtwith exercise prices of $7.50 and $8.00,eesypely, expired unexercised.

INCOME TAXES

The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC 7A@counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, whighrovides detailed guidance
the financial statement recognition, measuremedtdisclosure of uncertain tax positions recognizethe financial statements. Tax positi
must meet a “more-likely-than-not&cognition threshold at the effective date todmognized upon the adoption of ASC 740 and in sy
periods. Upon the adoption of ASC 740, the Compaag no unrecognized tax benefits. No liabilitiesehdeen recorded for uncertain
positions.

Income taxes are computed using the asset andityiatmiethod of accounting. Under the asset andilitghmethod, a deferred tax asse!
liability is recognized for estimated future taXesfs attributable to temporary differences andyfarwards. The measurement of defe
income tax assets is adjusted by a valuation aleeaif necessary, to recognize future tax benefily to the extent, based on avail
evidence it is more likely than not such benefith ne realized. The Company recognizes interesdt ganalties, if any, related to uncertain
positions in selling, general and administrativpenses. No interest and penalties related to wioedx positions were accrued or incu
during the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, anal 201

The Company files income tax returns in the Unii¢altes federal jurisdiction and various state glicisons. The tax years ended June 30, .
through June 30, 2012 remains open to examinatjomaking jurisdictions to which the Company are jeab As of June 30, 2012, f
Company did not have any income tax examinationsadcess.

LOSS PER COMMON SHAF

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividmgme (loss) applicable to common shares by teeghted average common shi
outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings pearshis calculated by dividing income (loss) apglieato common shares by the weig}
average common shares outstanding for the year thiiseffect of potential common shares (approxiipa8106,040, 15,673,000, &
13,787,000 shares as of June 30, 2012, 2011, &) Bfspectively) unless such effect is aliliitive. No exercise of stock options (45,333’
stock purchase warrants (8,045,619); or the coiersf preferred stock (4,430) or cumulative preddr dividends (10,932) was assul
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 bectugseesult would be antiutive. No exercise of stock options (90,666);stock purchas
warrants (15,567,199); or the conversion of prefrstock (4,430) or cumulative preferred divide(itl3,267) was assumed during the fi
year ended June 30, 2011 because the result wauldnt-dilutive. No exercise of stock options (160,000) stock purchase warra
(13,526,748); or the conversion of preferred st¢4ld45) or cumulative preferred dividends (9,638);the issuance of shares grai
under LTIP (86,342) was assumed during the fiseal ynded June 30, 2010 because the result woualdtbdilutive.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUCEMEN

The Company does not believe that the followingenécaccounting pronouncements or any other recdsslyed, but not yet effecti
accounting standards will have a material effecthenCompany’s consolidated financial positionuhessof operations, or cash flows.

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Stassl@oard issued ASU 2011-08 IntangibleSeedwill and Other (Topic 350): Testi
Goodwill for Impairment. This will be effective fdhe Company beginning with the fiscal year endinge 30, 2013.

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Stansl@dard issued ASU 20111t Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures abousedtih¢
Assets and Liabilities. This will be effective fibre Company beginning with the fiscal year endimgeJ30, 2014.

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Stansld8dard issued ASU 20112 Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral a&d
Effective Date for Amendments to the PresentatibrReclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated @thComprehensive Income
Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05. This béleffective for the Company beginning with thedisyear ending June 30, 2013.

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardam@dssued ASU 2012-02 Intangibles—Goodwill andeD{fT opic 350): Testing Indefinite-
Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment. This wi# leffective for the Company beginning with the dilsgear ending June 30, 2013.

3. FINANCE RECEIVABLES

Finance Receivables consist of the following:

June 30
2012 2011
Total finance receivable $ 54284 $ 481,38°
Less current portion 206,64 285,78t

Non-current portion of finance receivable $ 336,19¢ $ 195,60:

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, there was no allogvéorccredit losses of finance receivables. AsG@benpany collects monthly payments of
receivables from the customers’ transaction fuhdsisk of loss was determined to be remote.

Credit Quality Indicators
As of June 30, 2012

Credit risk profile based on payment activi

Leases
Performing $ 542,84
Nonperforming -
Total $ 542,84’
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Age Analysis of Past Due Finance Receivables
As of June 30, 2012

31 -60 61 -90 Greater than Total
Days Past Days Past 90 Days Total Past Finance
Due Due Past Due Due Current Receivable:
Leases - 2,057 18,85¢ 20,91: $ 521,93" $ 542,84
Total $ - $ 2,051 $ 18,85 $ 20,91: $ 521,93" $ 542,84

Age Analysis of Past Due Finance Receivables
As of June 30, 2011

31-60 61 - 90 Greater than Total
Days Past Days Past 90 Days Total Past Finance
Due Due Past Due Due Current Receivable:
Leases - - - - $ 481,38 $ 481,38
Total $ - $ - $ - % - $ 481,38 $ 481,38

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, at cost, consist of tHeviahg:

Useful June 30

Lives 2012 2011
Computer equipment and purchased softv 3-7years $ 4,682,270 $ 4,335,16
Property and equipment used for Rental Prog 5 years 12,523,25 6,768,58
Furniture and equipme 3-7 years 805,07 785,96(

Lesser of

Leasehold improvements life or lease

term 465,58 271,75¢
Vehicles 5 years - 29,06¢

18,476,19 12,190,53

Less accumulated depreciation (6,676,08) (4,794,75)

$ 11,800,10 $ 7,395,77

Assets under capital lease totaled approximatelBa&®l000 and $1,459,000 as of June 30, 2012 and, 2@bpectively. Capital lee
amortization of approximately $189,000, $277,000Q) $263,000, is included in depreciation expenséhfe years ended June 30, 2012, 2
and 2010, respectively.

ePort equipment utilized by the JumpStart Prograndéntified as Property and equipment used fort&eProgram in the above tat

Accumulated depreciation attributable to the Prgpend equipment used for Rental Program is apprately $2,731,000 and $1,034,000
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively and is indud@ccumulated depreciation for the respectiwy@ the above table.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Amortization expense relating to all acquired ingibie assets was approximately $998,000, $1,034,800 $1,034,000 during each of

years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respgctihe intangible asset balance and relatedraglated amortization consisted of
following:

June 30, 201
Gross
Carrying Accumulatec  Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Value
Intangible asset:
Trademarks $ 1,482,100 $ (1,050,00) $ 432,10(
Patents 9,294,001 (8,529,64) 764,35:
Total $ 10,776,10 $ (9,579,64) $ 1,196,45
June 30, 201
Gross
Carrying Accumulatec  Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Value
Intangible asset:
Trademark: $ 1,482,100 $ (949,37) $ 532,72!
Patents 9,294,00! (7,632,37) 1,661,62
Total $ 10,776,10 $ (8,581,74) $ 2,194,35

The Company’s test for impairment of its indefiditeed trademarks consists of the trademarks: 1)difegMiser, 2) CoolerMiser, 3) PlugMis
and 4) SnackMiser. As a result of its testing stdil years ended June 30, 2012 and 2010 the Congeesmined that no impairment |
occurred. In the testing in fiscal year 2011, thmmPany determined that the sum of the expecteddiged cash flows attributable to
trademarks was less than its carrying value of BL,@O0, and that an impairment wridewn was required. The primary driver behind
decrease in the value was a decrease in the reesipaetations for the trademarks from the timetthdemarks were acquired in July 200
when the impairment assessment was prepared. Aogbrdin fiscal year 2011, the Company performedatuation of the trademark’fail
value with the assistance of an independent valnapecialist. The fair value of the trademarks determined by a method known aslief
from royalty”, in which the fair value is determined by referencehe amount of royalty income the intangible vebgenerate if it wel
licensed in an arm’s-length transaction. The esslesgsumptions in a valuation via an income apghiaae as follows:

The related dollar sales volurr

The percentage royalty on sal

The adjustment for taxe

The remaining useful economic lil

The percentage return on investment;
The tax amortization benef

During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year endrahe 30, 2011, the fair value of the trademarks determined to be $432,100. T
assessment resulted in an impairment write-dowmguhe fourth fiscal quarter of $581,900, whichrisluded in Impairment of intangibl
asset” in the Consolidated Statement of Operafimnthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

The trademark described above, is not relateda@thimpany’s core operations consisting of its eRoeless, cashless products and services
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

At June 30, 2012, the expected amortization ofitkengible assets is as follows: approximately $@6@ in fiscal year 2013 and $0 in fis
year 2014. The weighted average useful life oféh@siortized intangible assets is 1.0 years at 30n&012. At June 30, 2012 and 2(
$432,100 and $432,100, respectively of trademaaksan indefinite life and is included in the intég assets tables above.

6. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

June 30
2012 2011

Accrued compensation and related sales

commission: $ 767,92t $ 269,33
Accrued professional fet 482,66« 197,96«
Accrued taxes and filing fet 663,07¢ 302,14
Advanced customer billing 311,76° 100,39¢
Accrued Proxy cost 992,52( -
Accrued ren 278,86:. 114,51:
Accrued other 271,88( 270,44.

$ 3,768,669 $ 1,254,79

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

June 30
2012 2011
Capital lease obligatior  $ 426,000 $ 84,04:
Loan agreement 302,32: 169,01¢
728,33( 253,06:
Less current portion 466,05¢ 155,42¢

$ 262,27: $ 97,63

The maturities of long-term debt as of June 30228& as follows:

2013 $ 466,05!
2014 209,47t
2015 52,79¢

$ 728,33(

During March 2007, the Company entered into a ehfsase agreement in connection with office eqeipnior approximately $146,000, ¢
in sixty equal monthly payments of $2,965 througarth 2012.

During May 2007, the Company entered into a cajet@e agreement in connection with office equipgni@napproximately $305,000, due
36 equal monthly payments of $9,456 through ARILQ
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

During July 2007, the Company entered into loareagrents for $239,740 with a financial institutiabing interest at 12% collateralizec
$274,494 of the Finance Receivables. The Compargeddgo make 32 monthly payments of $9,104, whickude interest and principal, frc
the proceeds received from the Finance Receivables.

During November 2007, the Company entered intangterm debt agreement for $93,000 with a financiatiintion bearing interest at 8.25
collateralized by the assets of the Company, whétfuires 84 monthly payments of $1,467, includinggriest and principal. This loan v
satisfied in June 2012.

During February, March, and April 2008, the Compamtered into various capital leases for networkigent totaling approximate
$199,000, due in 36 monthly installments at interates from 3.78% to 12.35%.

During November 2008, the Company entered intoousricapital leases for network equipment and maémtee contracts on the equipn
totaling $462,041, due in 24 to 36 monthly instalhts at interest rates from 3.75% to 12.35%.

During May 2009, the Company financed a softwazerise agreement totaling approximately $56,000,méeur quarterly installments, at
interest rate of 9%.

During July 2009, the Company financed a portiontref premiums for various insurance policies tatal$85,991 due in nine mont
installments at an interest rate of 5.1%. In theeanonth, the Company also entered into a capitald for office equipment totaling $24,¢
due in 46 monthly installments of $677.

During March 2010, the Company financed the purelediscomputer equipment totaling $195,000 due im@@ithly installments at an inter
rate of 4.95%. An amount of restricted cash equdhé outstanding principal balance of the loaweseias security for this loan. According
$51,492 of restricted cash is classified with cotether assets on the Consolidated Balance Shdaha 30, 2012 and $65,754 and $51,4!
restricted cash is classified as current and nerentiother assets, respectively, on the ConselitiBalance Sheet at June 30, 2011.

During May 2010, the company financed softwarengas totaling $77,730, due in twelve monthly instahts at an interest rate of 3.3%.
During July 2010, the Company financed a portionth® premiums for various insurance policies tatal$94,331 due in nine montl
installments at an interest rate of 4.93daring July 2011, the Company financed a portiorthaf premiums for various insurance poli
totaling $90,372 due in nine equal monthly paymanmtsn interest rate of 5.57%.

During August 2011, the Company entered into atahfgase for network equipment totaling approxiehat$496,000, due in 36 montl
payments of $14,145 through August 2014.

During November 2011, the Company financed compedeipment for network equipment totaling approxeha$46,000, due in twelve eq
quarterly installment payments at an interest 0at47%.

During April 2012, the Company entered into a clpiease for network equipment totaling approxityate62,000, due in 36 montt
payments of $1,785 through February 2015.

During June 2012, the Company financed softwaenbes totaling approximately $212,000, due in &mural quarterly installment payment
an interest rate of 11.09%.
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8. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with the fair value hierarchy desttim Note 2, the following table shows the faitueaof the Company financial instrumen
that are required to be measured at fair valud daree 30, 2012 and 2011:

June 30, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash equivalent $ 141,10° $ - $ - $ 141,10
Common stock warrant liability, warrants exercisaél $2.6058 from

September 18, 2011 through September 18, . $ -$ - $ 917,44 $ 917,44
Common stock warrant liability, warrants exercigaél $5.90 through

September 14, 201 $ -$ - % 1,12¢ $ 1,12¢
June 30, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash equivalent $ 83,267 $ - % - % 83,26"
Common stock warrant liability, warrants exercisaél $2.6058 from

September 18, 2011 through September 18, . $ - % - $ 263862 $ 2,638,62
Common stock warrant liability, warrants exercigasl $5.90 through

September 14, 201 $ - $ - $ 93,62: $ 93,62

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the fair values efGbmpanys Level 1 financial instruments were $141,107 a88,867, respectively. The
financial instruments consist of cash equivalentduding certificates of deposit and money madetounts. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011
Company held no Level 2 financial instruments.

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the fair values ef@ompanys Level 3 financial instruments totaled $918,566 &8,732,253, respective
The Level 3 financial instruments consist of comnstock warrants issued by the Company in March 281id March 2007, which inclu
features requiring liability treatment of the wams The fair value of warrants issued in March22Qdee Notes 11 and 12) to purchase
million shares of the Compars/common stock is based on valuations performedrbindependent third party valuation firm. The featue
was determined using proprietary valuation modsisgithe quality of the underlying securities a# thiarrants, restrictions on the warrants
security underlying the warrants, time restricticarsd precedent sale transactions completed in é¢hengary market or in other priv
transactions. The fair value of warrants issueblamch 2007 to purchase 903,955 shares of the Coyhpanmmon stock was estimated by
Company to be $1,126 using the Blaé®&holes with the following assumptions: dividendlgiof 0%, expected stock price volatility of O.
risk free interest rate of 0.21, and an expecfedli 1.2 years. Prior to March 31, 2011, the failue of these warrants was determined to |
minimus and was not included on the Compargonsolidated balance sheets. There were no éransf assets or liabilities between leve
level 2, or level 3 during the years ended June2802 and 2011.

The following table summarizes the changes invalue of the Company’s Level 3 financial instrunsefur the year ended:

June 30
2012 2011

Beginning balanc $ (2,732,25) $ =
Issuance of common stock warrants, exercisabl2.80$8 per shar - (1,917,12)
Recognize liability of warrants, exercisable atdbper share; attributed to loss due to cha

in fair value - (151,63)
Gain/ (Loss) due to change in fair value of wariatiilities, net 1,813,68 (663,500
Ending balance $ (918,560 $ (2,732,25)
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9. INCOME TAXES

At June 30, 2012, the Company had net operating @@sryforwards of $168,327,709 to offset futurgatde income expiring throu
approximately 2032. The Company had capital losy/fwards of $4,759 as of June 30, 2011 thatrexpbon June 30, 2012.

The timing and extent to which the Company carnzeatifuture tax deductions in any year may be lichitg provisions of the Internal Revel
Code regarding changes in ownership of corporat{@es IRS Code Section 382). The changes in ovmgremitations under IRS Coi
Section 382 have had the effect of limiting the imaxm amount of net operating loss carryforwardsfasdune 30, 2012 and 2011 available
use to offset future yeartixable income to $127,024,196 and $121,667,08petively. Those net operating loss carryforwatdst to expir
June 30, 2022.

At June 30, 2012 and 2011 the Company recordedefetred tax assets of $51,708,064 and $48,973r88ectively, which were offset b
valuation allowance of $51,720,663 and $48,973#&8@f June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, aetization of the deferred tax asset is
likely, principally due to the lack of earnings toisy.

As of June 30, 2012, net deferred tax liabilitié$b2,599 were recorded representing the futurergiat! state and federal income tax effect
basis differences between financial reporting arine tax purposes as of June 30, 2012 for indefiifé intangible assets and goodwill 1
are being amortized for income tax purposes butfooffinancial reporting. The potential future imoe tax effects associated with s
indefinite life assets are not subject to offsetiagt deferred tax assets with finite lives.

These deferred tax liabilities resulted in a primrisfor income taxes for the year ended June 302 20 $12,599 which is comprised of defe|
state income taxes of $3,101 and deferred fedecahie taxes of $9,498.

An income tax benefit of $1,767,537 at the fedestalutory rate of 34% is indicated for the yearezhdune 30, 2012 based upon the loss Lt
provision for income taxes. In recording the praisfor income taxes that benefit was reduced fier éffects of increases in the valua
allowance of $2,327,354 for federal income taxesoeisted with deferred tax assets, increased reffects of permanent differences
$594,264 and reduced by state income taxes netlefdl benefit $2,046.

The net deferred tax assets arose primarily fronoperating loss carryforwards, as well as theais#ifferent accounting methods for finan
statement and income tax reporting purposes asfsil

June 30
2012 2011

Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 48,825,62 $ 46,695,53
Deferred research and development c 185,94( 218,62:
Intangibles 1,059,40 1,003,04
Stocl-based compensatic 694,40° 476,27
Other 955,27! 685,86:

51,720,66 49,079,34
Deferred tax liabilities

Intangibles and goodwill (12,599 (105,35
Deferred tax assets, r 51,708,06 48,973,98
Valuation allowance (51,720,66)  (48,973,98)
Deferred tax (liabilities) assets, net of allowance $ (12,599 $ >
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10. PREFERRED STOCK

The authorized Preferred Stock may be issued fiora to time in one or more series, each series svitth rights, preferences or restriction
determined by the Board of Directors. Each shai@esfes A Preferred Stock shall have the righttetoundredth of a vote and is convertibl
any time into ondwndredth of a share of Common Stock. Each shat@onfimon Stock entitles the holder to one votinditrigeries
Preferred Stock provides for an annual cumulativieldnd of $1.50 per share, payable when, as adddfared by the Board of Directors, to
shareholders of record in equal parts on FebruanydlAugust 1 of each year. Any and all accumulatetiunpaid cash dividends on the S
A Preferred Stock must be declared and paid poitihé declaration and payment of any dividendshenGommon Stock.

Cumulative unpaid dividends at June 30, 2012 arid 20nounted to $10,931,872 and $10,267,420, rasplctCumulative unpaid dividen
are convertible into common shares at $1,000 pegmuoon share at the option of the shareholder. Duttiegyears ended June 30, 2012
2010 no shares of Preferred Stock nor cumulatieéepred dividends converted into shares of comntocks During the year ended June
2011, 1,500 shares of Preferred Stock and $33,08W0lative preferred dividends converted into 15reband 33 shares of common st
respectively. The Series A Preferred Stock mayatked for redemption at the option of the Boarddafectors for a price of $11.00 per sk
plus payment of all accrued and unpaid dividends.sbich redemption has occurred as of June 30, 201Be event of any liquidation, t
holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock assirll be entitled to receive $10.00 for eachtantting share plus all cumulative ung
dividends. If funds are insufficient for this distution, the assets available will be distributathbly among the preferred shareholders.

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Compamgde5,802 shares of its Preferred Stock it paseld on the open market at prices rar
from $8 to $9 per share for a total of $598,464rimyithe years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, thep@uy did not purchase any shares «
Preferred Stock on the open market.

11. COMMON STOCK

The Companys Board of Directors has authorized various Comi@tatk public and private placement offerings. Aityifor these offering
during the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2@las follows:

On September 25, 2006, the Company entered intmrantn Stock Purchase Agreement with Steve lllesaeoredited investor. T
Agreement terminated August 30, 2009 and there werghares issued under this agreement duringethieended June 30, 2010.

On May 22, 2009, the Company filed a registratitatesnent with the Securities and Exchange Commmisfsio a rights offering relating
transferable subscription rights to purchase u@lb million of common stock and warrants (the “20R@hts Offering”). The Compan
engaged William Blair & Company and Maxim Group Li€act as the dealenanagers for the 2009 Rights Offering and MacKePRzgner:
Inc. to act as the information agent.

The 2009 Rights Offering commenced on July 13, 28@®expired on July 31, 2009. On August 7, 2008 closing date of the rights offeri
the Company received $14,571,584 of gross procdéusnet cash proceeds, after deduction of feeseapdnses, including dealeranage
fees, was $12,958,159. In addition, the Companyeds total of 291,432 warrants to the dealer-marrsaigp purchase the Compasiyzommo
Stock at $2.20 per share at any time through Augu2012. As of June 30, 2012 no warrants have beercised under these dealer man
agreements.

In accordance with the terms of the 2009 Rightefff), the Company issued an aggregate of 7,285f@Zs of common stock for $2.00
share and 7,285,792 warrants, entitling the hdldgrurchase one share of common stock at the eeeptice of $2.20 per share of comr
stock commencing January 1, 2010 and through Deeeih 2011. The warrants commenced trading on stugu2009, on The NASDA
Global Market under the symbol USATW. During theageeended June 30, 2010 no USATW warrants wereciseerto purchase share
Common Stock. During the years ended June 30, 20022011, 4,550 and 376,355 USATW warrants werecesexl at $2.20 per shi
resulting in the issuance of 4,550 and 376,355eshaf Common Stock, generating cash proceeds o0$Q@&nd $827,981, respectively.

On March 16, 2010, the Company filed a registrastatement with the Securities and Exchange Conmwnider a public offering of up -
$3,000,000 of our common stock and warrants tohagse common stock (the “2010 Public Offering’he proceeds from the offering w
used for general corporate purposes, including imgrkapital and providing financing for the manutae by us of our ePort cashless payr
products to be used by our customers participatingur JumpStart Program. The Company engaged 8dtapital Group, Inc. to act as
placement agent for the offering.
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11. COMMON STOCK (CONTINUED)

The offering closed on May 12, 2010 and we soldggregate of 2,753,454 shares and related wat@pisrchase up to 2,753,454 shares
compensation for its services related to the affgrSource received warrants to purchase up t®@8%hares at $1.13 per share, exercisa
any time through May 12, 2013. The warrants conpaovisions for one demand registration of the sdléhe underlying shares of comn
stock for a period of five years at our expenseal piggyback registration rights for a period ofefiyears at our expense, and one del
registration right at the placement agendéxpense for a period of five years. The offer salg of the warrants was exempt from registr:
under Section 4(2) of the Act. The investors areredited investors. The offer and sale thereof it involve any general advertising
solicitation and the securities contained apprdeniastrictive legends under the Act. The warraotemenced trading on May 24, 2010 on
NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol USATZ. Duritltge years ended June 30, 2012 and 2010 no USAT#mta were exercised
purchase shares of Common Stock. During the yeastedeJune 30, 2012 and 2010, no USATZ warrantedssunder this offering we
exercised; and, in the year ended June 30, 2051428 USATZ warrants were exercised at $1.13 paresfor cash proceeds of $260,018.

On July 7, 2010, we sold an aggregate of 261,9%8eshand related warrants (USATZ) to purchase up6th953 shares pursuant t
subscription rights offering which concluded onyJél 2010 (the “2010 Rights Offering”)n connection with the offering, Source Cay
Group, Inc. (“Source”acted as dealer manager. As compensation forn¢gces, Source received warrants to purchase Upf0l7 shares
$1.13 per share at any time through July 7, 204& Warrants contain provisions for one demand tegisn of the sale of the underlyi
shares of common stock for a period of five yeaisua expense, and piggyback registration rightsafperiod of five years at our expense,
one demand registration right at the dealer managempense for a period of five years. The Compaogived $235,757 of gross proce:
after deductions for fees and expenses, net caste@is were $5,671. During the years ended Jun@@@, no USATZ warrants we
exercised; and, in the year ended June 30, 2014f tde 261,953 USATZ warrants issued under tffigring were exercised at $1.13 per sl
for cash proceeds of $296,007.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, Source electeakhless exercise of 2,767 warrants received &cting as dealer manager for
offerings described above, resulting in the isseanfc990 shares of Common Stock. During the yedeérdune 30, 2011, Source elect
cashless exercise of 127,497 warrants received &ciing as dealer manager for the offerings desdréibove, resulting in the issuanc
83,472 shares of Common Stock.

On July 27, 2010, we executed a purchase agreeanens registration rights agreement (the “LPC Agrest”) with Lincoln Park Capita
LLC (“LPC"). On March 16, 2011, the Company gave written ndticePC that it had terminated the LPC Agreement Tompany had tl
right under the LPC Agreement to terminate the L&RZeement for any or no reason and without anyilitghwhatsoever of any party to a
other party under the LPC Agreement. The Comparg/required to terminate the LPC Agreement as aitongrecedent to the closing of
March 14, 2011 Securities Purchase Agreement destiielow. Under the LPC Agreement, we had thet tigtsell to LPC up to 4,851,4
shares of our common stock at our option for arreggge purchase price of up to $5,000,000. Dutiegyear ended June 30, 2011 we is
150,000 shares of our common stock to LPC as a d¢onamt fee for entering into the purchase agreement

On March 14, 2011, the Company entered into a 8=uPurchase Agreement with seven institutionakstors (the “Buyers”)Pursuar
thereto, on March 17, 2011 the Company sold tdBilngers 5,200,000 shares of the Compamgmmon stock at a price of $2.064 per shai
an aggregate purchase price of $10,732,800. OnhviBf¢c 2011 the Company also issued warrants t@tlyers to purchase up to 3,900,
shares of common stock at an exercise price ofd$3.@er share. The Buyers are accredited inveatwighe offer and sale of the shares
the warrants was exempt from registration undeeR@l6 promulgated under Section 4(2) of the Ace Tompany has agreed to registel
shares and the shares underlying the warrante$ale under the Act until the earlier of (i) theedas of which the Buyers may sell all of
securities covered by such registration stateméhiowt restriction pursuant to Rule 144 promulgateder the Act, or (ii) the date on wh
the Buyers shall have sold all of the securitiegeced by such registration statement. The Compsumpligated to use its best efforts to c:
the SEC to declare the Registration Statementteféewithin 90 days of the closing date of the saction (or 120 days in the event that
Registration Statement is subject to review bySE£), and the Company is required to pay certajotieged cash payments to the Buye!
the event that the Registration Statement is hed fivithin 15 days of the closing date or is natldeed effective within 90 days of the clos
date (or 120 days in the event that the Registrafitatement is subject to review by the SEC). Thgiftration Statement was filed by
Company with the SEC on March 31, 2011, and deglaffective by the SEC on April 29, 2011.

In connection with the above private placementroffg Chardan Capital Markets, LLC (“Chardandgted as exclusive placement agent
compensation for its services, Chardan receiveld caspensation of $751,296 and warrants to purchjpse 364,000 shares of common s
at $2.6058 per share at any time within five ydallewing the sixmonth and one day anniversary of the issuanceeoWtrrants, March 1
2011. We have agreed to register the shares umtgtlye warrants for resale under the Act on timesterms afforded to the Buyers.
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The total proceeds of $10,732,800 were reducedlt§1$,122, the fair value of the warrants whichsarbject to liability accounting (see N
8), and cash issuance costs of $838,705, resuitingt cash proceeds of $9,894,095 and net progeéated to common shares of $7,976,
The proceeds from the offering will be used priyaio support the continuation of the Company’s p&tart Program.

The Companys Board of Directors has authorized various comgtams plans. Activity for these plans during theageended June 30, 20
2011, and 2010 are as follows:

On February 12, 2007, upon recommendation of thagemsation Committee of the Board of Directorshef Company, the Board adopted
LTIP Program for each of our three then-currentcetige officers. The LTIP Program was intended nsure continuity of the Comparsy’
executive management, to encourage stock ownebshguch persons, and to align the interests of .eker management with those of
shareholders.

Pursuant to and as defined in the LTIP Programh executive would be awarded shares of the Compa@gmmon Stock if the Compe
achieves certain target goals relating to revergress profit, and EBITDA (the “Target Goals$f) the Company during each of the fiscal y
ended June 30, 2007, June 30, 2008 and June 39, @00February 4, 2009, the Board of Directors appd the recommendation of
Compensation Committee that the final twelve man#asuring period under the LTIP Program be chafrged the fiscal year ended June
2009 to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Tregfing was approved by the Board as the Boardhaidelieve it would be appropriate
reward senior management with bonuses during the-dtrrent economic slowdown. EBITDA is defined asn#ags before interest, tax
depreciation, and amortization, and excludes cash stock payments/awards and stock options graatefficers and Board members.
Program allows for the executive officers to redtlee number of shares to be issued in order tefgatie minimum statutory tax withholdi
requirements.

Through the year ended June 30, 2009, the Compaahisbued 359,860 shares under the LTIP Program.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, thehaurof eligible shares to be awarded to the exeeusi based upon the following weightir
40% of eligible shares are determined by revenB86%6 of eligible shares are determined by grossitprafid 30% of eligible shares |
determined by EBITDA. There are a total of 253,@4igible shares for the 2010 fiscal year.

If the actual results for the fiscal year exceddsTarget Goals, each executive would be awardeatlditional pro rata portion of the eligi
shares, up to an amount no greater than 125% afidheber of eligible shares. If the actual resuttsthe fiscal year is less than the Ta
Goals, each executive would be awarded a lessempaqortion of the number of eligible sharesnlhimum Target Goals for the fiscal y
are not achieved, no eligible shares would be ashtd each executive.

As a result of the Board'decision to change the final twelve month measudate of the LTIP Program from fiscal year 2009iscal yea
2010, the accrued share based liability as of Bne2011 and 2010 was $0 and $43,171, respectimaly,compensation expense during
years ended June 30, 2011, and 2010 was $54,39%471, respectively. Final settlement of the rawaccurred in December 2010 w
86,342 shares earned and total compensation experweled of $97,566.

On February 28, 2008, the Companghareholders approved the 2008 Stock Incentae el allow up to 300,000 shares of Common Sto
be available for issuance to future or current eygds, directors and consultants of the Compangr Rr the year ended June 30, 2010
Company had issued 239,253 shares under the 2008 Bicentive Plan. During the years ended Jun@30]1 and 2010, the Company iss
20,747 and 40,000 shares under the 2008 Stocktimedrlan totaling $10,208 and $87,354, respedtjvehsed on the grant date fair valu
the shares. As of June 30, 2011, all 300,000 stdi€@smmon Stock available for issuance under tha Rad been issued.

On June 15, 2010, the Compasighareholders approved the 2010 Stock Incentie fl allow up to 300,000 shares of Common Stodbe
available for issuance to future or current empésyelirectors and consultants of the Company. [Qutie years ended June 30, 2012, 201:
2010, the Company issued 120,472, 109,918 and ir@¢shader the plan totaling $248,851, $292,263%Mdespectively based on the g
date fair value of the shares. As of June 30, 268869 shares under the plan have been grantedabe not been issued as they are subj
various vesting provisions, and 10,941 shares\atiadle for future issuance.
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On June 13, 2011, the Compasighareholders approved the 2011 Stock Incentie fl allow up to 300,000 shares of Common Stodbe
available for issuance to future or current empésyelirectors and consultants of the Company. [gutie years ended June 30, 2012 and :
the Company issued 141,666 and 0 shares undefaheqtaling $335,636 and $0, respectively basethergrant date fair value of the sha
As of June 30, 2012, 113,334 shares under thehalae been granted, but have not been issued astheybject to various vesting provisic
and 45,000 shares are available for future issuance

On June 28, 2012, the Compasghareholders approved the 2012 Stock Incentiae fl allow up to 500,000 shares of Common Stodbe
available for issuance to future or current empésyadirectors and consultants of the Company. Quittie year ended June 30, 2012,
Company did not issue any under the plan totalimyracorded of $197,613 related to the vestindhafes to be issued under this plan.

In the 2012 fiscal year, the Company entered ihted agreements with Mr. Jensen, the Company'sdoi@hief Executive Officer en
September 27, 2011 an amended and restated emplbygeement (the “Jensen Employment Agreemeas’)well as the Jensen St
Agreement (the “Jensen Stock Agreement”); and, ctolaer 14, 2011 a Separation Agreement and Re{#aséSeparation Agreement”).

The Jensen Employment Agreement continued subsligrdil of the previous terms and conditions of Bmployment agreement other thar
provisions related to the Jensen Shares. The nexemgnt did not continue the provisions of his paigreement which obligated the Comg
to pay any excise taxes attributable to any expasachute payments which would be payable to Mrs&le upon the occurrence of a L
Transaction as well as the Compangbligation to pay tax gross up payments attritdetéo such excise taxes. In exchange for modifyie
excise tax and related gross up provisions, the f@my issued an aggregate of 150,000 shares of carstook to Mr. Jensen under its st
incentive plans which were to vest as follows: 80,@n the date the agreement was signed (Septe2ihe011) by Mr. Jensen and
Company; 50,000 on the first anniversary of thesdzt signing (September 27, 2012); and 50,000 enstttond anniversary of the dat
signing (September 27, 2013).

The Jensen Stock Agreement contained the provisilating to the issuance by the Company to Mrséerof the Jensen Shares which
previously been set forth in his employment agreem&he provisions of Mr. Jensenprior employment agreement which required
Company to pay any excise taxes attributable texoess parachute payments attributable to thedesisares as well as the related oblig;
to make tax gross up payments have been retairtbe ifensen Stock Agreement and continue to apghetJensen Shares.

Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, Mr. Jensagned as Chairman, Chief Executive Officer ané &irector of the Company, effect
October 14, 2011. Under the Separation AgreemieatCompany issued to Mr. Jensen 41,667 shares ofiitmon stock which were awar
in connection with the signing of an amendmentisoemployment agreement in April 2011, which wontd have otherwise vested until A|
2012; and 50,000 shares of the Compamgmmon stock which were awarded to Mr. Jenseommection with the signing Jensen Employr
Agreement and which would not have otherwise vestetl September 2012.

Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, 41,667 sbamsnmon stock that would have vested in April2@n connection with the signing of
amendment to Mr. Jensenémployment agreement in April 2011 and 50,000eshaf common stock that would have vested in Deipé
2013 in connection with the signing of his amended restated employment agreement in Septemben@&Elforfeited.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Hedigdred into a second amendment to his employngmeiement. The amendm
eliminated the provisions of his prior agreemeniclhobligated the Company to pay any excise tatgibuatable to any excess paract
payments which would be received by Mr. Herbertrugite occurrence of a USA Transaction as well asGbmpanys related obligation
make tax gross up payments. In exchange for eliinimahe excise tax and related gross up provisities Company issued an aggrega
100,000 shares of common stock to Mr. Herbert uitdestock incentive plans which vest as follow8;333 on the date the agreement
signed by Mr. Herbert and the Company (SeptembgeP@¥1); 33,333 on the first anniversary of theed#tsigning (September 27, 2012);
33,334 on the second anniversary of the date ofrgig(September 27, 2013).
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On November 30, 2011, the Company appointed Mpl&te P. Herbert as the Chairman of the Board cgdbars and Chief Executive Offic
of the Company and entered into an Amended andaResEmployment and Non-Competition Agreement (therbert Agreement”}ha
replaced his prior employment agreement with then@any. Notwithstanding the Herbert Agreement, tA8,000 shares of common st
awarded to Mr. Herbert under his prior employmegreament dated September 27, 2011 would vest lasv&l33,333 on September 27, 2(
33,333 on the first anniversary of the date of isign(September 27, 2012); and 33,334 on the seammiversary of the date of sign
(September 27, 2013).

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMeqiered into a fifth amendment to his employmemeagent pursuant to which |
DeMedio was granted an aggregate of 25,000 shéresnamon stock as a bonus for his performance dutie last six months of the 2(
fiscal year which vest as follows: 8,333 on theedat signing the amendment (September 27, 2013838on the first anniversary of st
signing date (September 27, 2012); and 8,334 osdbhend anniversary of such signing date (Septe@ihez013).

On September 15, 2011, at the recommendation ofCimapensation Committee, the board of directorsptatb the Fiscal Year 20
Performance Share Plan (the “2012 Plan”) coveritgg @ompanys executive officers. Under the 2012 Plan, eacltcutikee officer will be
awarded common stock in the event the Company aehigrget goals during the fiscal year ending Bihe2012 relating to the total num
of connections, total revenues, operating experses,operating earnings. Operating earnings isddfas earnings before interest and 1
(after bonus accruals and stock awards) and befame@perating gains or losses. The number of eligihbres to be awarded to the execut
is based upon the following weightings: 30% by tittal number of connections; 30% by total revend@8s by operating expenses; and .
by operating earnings. No awards would be maderuthée2012 Plan if either (i) none of the minimuhreshold performance target goals t
been achieved, or (ii) if operating earnings fa #0912 fiscal year are not equal or better thasdluuring the 2011 fiscal year.

If all of the target performance goals are achievbhd executive officers would be awarded the feileg number of shares: Mr. Herbert
120,000 shares; and Mr. DeMedi®8,000 shares. If all of the minimum, thresholdf@enance target goals are achieved, the execufficers
would be awarded 20% of the number of shares whichld have been awarded to them if all of the tagmformance goals had b
achieved. If all of the maximum, distinguished pemfiance target goals are achieved, the executfieersf would be awarded 150% of
number of shares which would have been awardeletm if all of the target performance goals had teehieved. If the actual results for
fiscal year are less than the target goals (biatgrehan the minimunthreshold performance target goals), each executiudd be awarded
lessermpro rataportion of the number of eligible shares. In ther@wf the occurrence of a USA Transaction duriregfiscal year, and provid
that the executive is an employee of USA on the dasuch USA Transaction, the Plan shall be teatathand each executive shall be awe
shares as of the date of such USA Transaction adl ibf the target performance goals had been imnethe event that the executige’
employment with the Company is terminated by then@any for cause during the fiscal year, or if tkeaitive resigns his employment for .
reason other than for good reason during the figeat, then the executive shall not be entitledam any award under the 2012 Plan. Ir
event that the executiveemployment with the Company shall be terminatethe Company during the fiscal year for any reasbatsoeve
other than for cause, or if the executsr@mployment is terminated by the executive fordgmeason during the fiscal year, then the exec
shall be awarded shares as if all of the targebpaance goals had been meet. If the execigieenployment is terminated during the fi:
year as a result of death or disability, the exgeushall nevertheless be eligible to earn sharefeiuthe 2012 Plan as if he had rema
employed with the Company through the end of thedliyear.

Notwithstanding the above description of the 20lghPthe executives would receive shares from thea@any pursuant to the 2012 Plan «
if and to the extent that shares would be availablee issued to the executives under the exigijl stock incentive plan or another s
plan that has been approved by the shareholddlseedfompany in accordance with NASDAQ Listing RB&35(c). If there would not be
sufficient number of shares available to be issioethe executives, the Company would pay to theakes an amount of cash equal to
value of those shares not available to be issu#ltetexecutives. In such event, the executivesavbelrequired to utilize the cash payment
of any withholding, payroll or other taxes attribke to the cash payment, to purchase shares ahoanstock of the Company on the o
market.
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As of September 15, 2011 and through June 27, 26&8 were not sufficient shares available unldereixisting 2011 stock incentive plar
another stock plan that had been approved by taeekblders of the Company; consequently, the Coynpaay have been required to deli
to the executives an amount of cash equal to theeaf shares earned but not available to be istu#te executives. Therefore, in accord;
with ASC Topic 718, “Stock Compensatiorhis award was accounted for as a liability of @@mpany through June 27, 2012. On Juni
2012, the Compang’shareholders approved the 2012 Stock Incentae, Rthich includes sufficient shares for the 20khPAccordingly, fo
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 the Compargrded stock compensation expense of $197,613 fvésting of 136,285 shares
Common Stock — 96,201 shares to Mr. Herbert an@840shares to Mr. DeMedio.

Pursuant to the Separation Agreement entered intindd Company and Mr. Jensen, Mr. Jensen is niteehto earn shares under the 2
Plan, and therefore no award was estimated fodtisen for the fiscal 2012 year.

During the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and, 20ttDas permitted under their employment agreesnemecutive officers cancelled
aggregate of 38,749, 2,217, and 5,113 shares of@anStock, respectively, in order to satisfy anraggte of $51,381, $2,261, and $9,!
respectively, of payroll tax withholding obligatie related to shares of Common Stock which vesteidglthe 2009 through 2012 fiscal years.

During June 2011, the Board of Directors accephed recommendation of the Compensation Committee eéaeh noremployee Directc
serving as of June 30, 2011 receive a stock awlt®,000 shares of Common Stock under the 2010kStaentive Plan valued at $2.22
share. A total of 50,000 shares of Common Stoclevesvarded, and the shares vest as follows: 16,66ki0e 30, 2011; 16,665 on June
2012; and 16,670 on June 30, 2013. In February ,20hdnemployee member of the Board of Directors forfetied returned to the Comps
6,667 and 3,333 shares of Common Stock, respegtiselarded under this grant in June 2011. As ot RM 2012, 29,998 shares, net, |
vested and been issued. In addition, due to theuBep 2012 forfeiture and return and changes inctivaposition of the Board of Directors
approved by shareholders at the Compamrinual meeting of shareholders on June 28, 2318f June 30, 2012, 10,002 shares of Con
Stock remain reserved for future issuance and D0sb@res will not vest under this June 2011 grant.

During the December 31, 2011 quarter, the Compampuanced that Steven D. Barnhart had been eleatad Independent Director by
Companys independent directors. The Compensation Committebe Board of Directors recommended, and ther@@gproved, that M
Barnhart receive compensation of $40,000 per yearaéting as the lead independent director to becefe from and after the date of
appointment. Such compensation may be paid in shaidhe Company rather than cash if such sharesaaailable and subject to
appropriate agreement between Mr. Barnhart andCGhmpany. The Company issued to Mr. Barnhart 19,4f&res of common stc
attributable to his service as Lead Independergdfir during the year ended June 30, 2012.

During March 2012, the Board of Directors accepteirecommendation of the Compensation Committaeeich of the three n@amploye:
Directors appointed to the Board in January 20t2ive a stock award of 10,000 shares of CommorkSitoder the 2010 Stock Incentive F
valued at $0.94 per share. A total of 30,000 shaféSommon Stock were awarded, and the sharesagefillows: 9,999 on April 1, 201
9,999 on April 1, 2013; and, 10,002 on April 1, 201 As of June 30, 2012, 9,999 shares have vestddeen issued. Due to changes il
composition of the Board of Directors as approvgdshareholders at the Compasiennual meeting of shareholders on June 28, 212
June 30, 2012, 13,334 shares of Common Stock reresémved for future issuance and 6,667 sharesiivest under this March 2012 grant.

In April 2012 a Director elected to receive commims for service on the CompasyBoard of Directors in Common Stock of the Comp

For the year ended June 20, 2012, the Companyds3#99 shares of Common Stock and recorded $383%pense for this direci
compensation.
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As of June 30, 2012, the Company had reserved sb&d@ommon Stock for future issuance for the foitay:

Exercise of Common Stock Optio 45,33:
Exercise of Common Stock Warrai 6,782,041
Conversions of Preferred Stock and cumulative PredeStock dividend 15,36:
Issuance under 2010 Stock Incentive F 10,94:
Issuance under 2011 Stock Incentive F 45,00(
Issuance under 2012 Stock Incentive F 500,00(
Issuance under Chief Executive Officer's employmagreement upon the occurrence of a USA Transactiol 140,00(
Total shares reserved for future issuance 7,538,67!

A summary of the status of the Companyonvested common shares as of June 30, 2012, @0d 2010, and changes during the years
ended is presented below:

Weightec-Average

Gran-Date

Shares Fair Value

Nonvested Share

Nonvested at June 30, 20 331,430 $ 5.81
Grantec 39,00( 1.7
Vested (40,000 2.47
Veste«- FY 2010 (LTIP) (86,347) 5.9C
Forfeited- FY 2010 (LTIP) (231,09) 5.9C
Nonvested at June 30, 20 13,000 $ 1.7¢F
Grantec 305,00( 2.1¢
Vested (130,66Y 1.9¢
Nonvested at June 30, 20 187,33 $ 2.32
Grantec 473,28! 1.5€
Vested (380,289 1.72
Forfeited due to Separation Agreem (91,667 2.0C
Forfeited, Director changes (16,669 1.71
Nonvested at June 30, 20 172,00 $ 1.8z

The 172,003 nonvested shares of Common Stock &snef 30, 2012 were granted under the 2010, 20812@12 stock incentive plans and
related to employment agreements and employee Board of Director grants. A discussiomsgumptions used in calculating the numb
shares and weighted-average grant date fair valineluded above in Note 11 of the Consolidate@dfr@nal Statements.
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Common Stock Warrant activity for the years endatkeJ30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was as follows:

Warrants
Outstanding at June 30, 20 3,030,86:
Issued 10,495,88
Exercisec -
Expired -
Outstanding at June 30, 20 13,526,74
Issued 4,541,67
Exercisec (1,001,21)
Expired (1,500,001
Outstanding at June 30, 20 15,567,19
Issued -
Exercisec (7,317
Expired (7,514,26)
Outstanding at June 30, 2012 8,045,61!

All Common Stock warrants outstanding as of June2B02 were exercisable. The following table shewsrcise prices and expiration d:
for warrants outstanding as of June 30, 2012:

Exercise
Warrants Price Expiration
Outstanding Per Share Date
291,43. $ 2.2C August 6, 2011
17,53: $ 7.7C October 17, 201
46,25¢ $ 1.1 May 12, 201z
4,402 $ 1.1 July 7, 201z
903,95! $ 5.9C September 14, 20
2,518,04! $ 1.12 December 31, 201
4,264,00! $ 2.605¢ September 18, 20
8,045,61!

(1) Expired unexercised on August 6, 20.
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In conjunction with an October 17, 2007 Securiffeschase Agreement, the Company issued warramsrétase up to 17,532 shares of
Companys Common Stock at $7.70 per share at any time gir@ctober 17, 2012 to the broker dealer who aatethe exclusive placem:
agent in the transaction. As of June 30, 2012 noamts have been exercised under this agreement.

In connection with a Securities Purchase Agreeméthit S.A.C. Capital Associates, LLC (“SAC8ntered into by the Company on March
2007, the Company issued warrants to purchase 833f3ares of Common Stock, exercisable at $6.4Ghmme. The warrant provided the
the Company would issue securities in the futura ptirchase price that is less than the exercise pf the warrant, then the exercise pric
the warrant would be reduced to such lower purcipaiee, provided, however, that such exercise pcexe never be lower than $5.90 wt
was the closing bid price of our shares on thepi#yr to the sale of our securities to SAC. Thenaar also provides that in the event we i
securities at a purchase price less than the axeprice of the warrant, the number of shares lidsuander the warrant shall be increase
that number of shares determined by multiplying ¢ixercise price in effect immediately prior to swumtjustment by the number of sh:
issuable under the warrant immediately prior tchsadjustment and dividing the product thereof ®/riew exercise price of the warrant (wi
can never be less than $5.90). Under this fornthimaximum number shares would be issuable uhdewarrant would be 903,955. As
June 30, 2009, the original warrants to purchas:383 shares of Common Stock at $6.40 per sharechadged to warrants to purch
903,955 shares of Common Stock at $5.90 per sharm@ddition, for a period of five years, SAC haeberanted the premptive right t
purchase that number of securities being offereddte by the Company in order to maintain SAC-ata ownership of the Common St
of the Company following the issuance of any sustusties by the Company. The warrants are exdrlgsat any time through September
2013 to the extent that such exercise would natltré@s the beneficial ownership by SAC and its lédfes of more than 9.99% of the numbe
shares outstanding immediately after giving effedhe issuance of shares upon exercise of theamarrAs of June 30, 2012 no warrants |
been exercised under this agreement.

The warrant contains a provision that if a Fundadefransaction occurs, notably a change in conwihin ninety days of the Fundamel
Transaction the warrant holder may require the Gompto pay the Blacischoles calculated value of the then unexercisedawato thi
warrant holder in cash. The fair value of the 988,%arrants was estimated using the Bl&ckioles model and applying an estimated fair
adjustment related to warrant exercise restrictiand the Company recorded a warrant liabilitytsnGonsolidated Balance Sheet of $1,12¢
$93,624 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectivedyNs¢e 8).
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In conjunction with the 2009 Rights Offering (seeté&l 11), the Company issued warrants to purche&gb792 shares of Common Stc
exercisable at $2.20 per share at any time priddeoember 31, 2011. Additionally, the Company isseach of the two dealer manag
warrants to purchase 145,716 shares of Common $tatkvere exercisable at $2.20 per share at amgy pirior to August 6, 2012. The de:i
manager warrants expired unexercised in August.2012

In conjunction with the 2010 Public Offering (seetdl 11), the Company issued warrants to purchag&e3254 shares of Common Stc
exercisable at $1.13 per share at any time pridbéoember 31, 2013. Additionally, the Company idstle placement agent warrant:
purchase 165,207 shares of Common Stock, exereisa§il.13 per share at any time prior to May 0232

In conjunction with the 2010 Rights Offering (seet®&l 11), the Company issued warrants to purchad¢d928 shares of Common Stc
exercisable at $1.13 per share at any time pri@@ecember 31, 2013. Additionally, in conjunctiortiwihe 2010 Rights Offering the Compi
issued the placement agent warrants to purcha3&7Shares of Common Stock at $1.13 per shareydtraa through July 7, 2013.

In conjunction with the 2011 Private Placement @ifig (see Note 11), the Company issued warranggitohase 3,900,000 shares of Com
Stock at an exercise price of $2.6058 per sharditiddally, the Company issued the placement agentants to purchase 364,000 share
common stock at $2.6058 per share. The 4,264,00@nta are exercisable from September 18, 201 Lighr&eptember 18, 2016.

The 3,900,000 warrants issued under the 2011 erRizcement Offering contain a provision that fumdamental Transaction occurs, not
a change in control, the warrant holder may reqthieeCompany to pay the Bla&choles calculated value of the then unexercisedawiatc
the warrant holder in cash. The fair value of thernants was estimated, and the Company recordedri@ant liability in its Consolidate
Balance Sheet of $918,566 and $2,732,253 at Jur203@ and 2011, respectively (see Note 8).

Prior to June 30, 2009 the CompanyBoard of Directors granted options to employe®s$ Roard members to purchase shares of Cor

Stock at prices that were at or above fair marlkdtier on the dates the options were granted. Thieroperm and vesting schedule w
established by the contracts under which the optiere granted.
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12. COMMON STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Common Stock Option activity during the years endieke 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was as follows:

Weightec-

Exercise Average

Options Price Exercise

Outstanding Per Shart Price

Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 160,00 $ 7508 $ 7.52
Granted - - -
Expired - - -
Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 160,000 $ 75(-8 $ 7.52
Granted - - -
Expired (69,339 $ 750 $ 7.5C
Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 90,66¢ $ 7.5C-8 7.58
Grantec - - -
Expired (45,339 $ 7.5(-8 $ 7.5%
Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, 2012 45,33: $ 7.5(-8 $ 7.5%

The following table shows exercisable options, eiserprices, the weighted average remaining cantabtife and the aggregate intrinsic ve
for options outstanding as of June 30, 2012:

Weighted Averag

Exercise Pric Remaining Remaining
Options Options Per Life Life Intrinsic Value-
Outstanding Exercisable Share Outstanding Exercisable Outstanding Exercisable
42,33 42,33 7.5C 0.94 0.94 - -
3,00( 3,00( 8.0C 0.97 0.97 - -
45,33 45,33 0.9t 0.9t - -

There was no compensation expense related to stngeof options outstanding in the years endece 38, 2012, 2011, and 2010 as
options were vested, and all related compensatiparese had been recognized, prior to the June@M f’scal year.
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13. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Company’'s 401(k) Plan (the “Retirement Plaallows employees who have completed six monthsesfice to make volunta
contributions up to a maximum of 100% of their amincompensation, as defined in the Retirement FAlhe. Company may, in its discreti
make a matching contribution, a profit sharing dbution, a qualified norelective contribution, and/or a safe harbor 40tg)tribution to th
Retirement Plan. The Company must make an anneati@h, at the beginning of the plan year, as tethwr it will make a safe hart
contribution to the plan. In fiscal years 2012 @910, the Company elected and made a safe harkchimg contributions of 100% of t
participants first 3% and 50% of the next 2% of compensatiefeiied into the Retirement Plan. For fiscal y2@t1, the Company did r
elect to make a safe harbor contribution to then.plehe Compang safe harbor contributions for the years ende@ Bfh 2012 and 20
approximated $140,000 and $160,000, respectivéig. Companys discretionary contribution for the year endedel8f, 2011 approximat
$42,000.

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, an@, 204 Company incurred approximately $744,00038510, and $730,000, respectively
connection with legal services provided by a mentféhe Company Board of Directors. At June 30, 2012 and 201pr@pmately $119,0C
and $25,000, respectively, were due to this Boagthber.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company conducts its operations from variouasiti@s under operating leases. The Company lehg8e¢319 square feet of space locate
Malvern, Pennsylvania for its principal executiviice and used for general administrative functissades activities, and product developn
In November 2010, the Company entered into an aswtehse of its principal executive office in MalvePennsylvania, which extended
lease term from December 31, 2010 to April 2016 Amendment includes rental payments of approxIynég9,000 to $32,000 as well a
four month period of no rent payments and leasemovements of approximately $195,000. The shiliged rent expense for this office
approximately $26,000 per month for the duratiotheflease.

The Company also leases 13,377 square feet of sjmmeged in Malvern, Pennsylvania for its produetrehousing, shipping and custol
support. In October 2011, the Company amended &hsel of its operations site in Malvern, Pennsyljato extend the lease term fr
December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2012 with th®mwpgb extend the lease thereafter for an additi@damonth period. The amendm
includes monthly rental payments of approximatel$,$00 to $16,200. Beginning in January 2012 thegditlined rent expense for this offi
is approximately $15,600 per month for the duratibthe amended lease period.
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
Rent expense under operating leases was approxyn$&e2,000, $545,000, and $616,000 during thesyeaded June 30, 2012, 2011,

2010, respectively. Future minimum lease paymauitsequent to June 30, 2012 under capital leasesamnchncellable operating leases ar
follows:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases
2013 $ 209,53: $ 450, 36!
2014 203,29¢ 368,69
2015 45,12 377,32.
2016 - 321,26:
Thereafter - -
Total minimum lease payments $ 457,95 $ 1,517,65
Less amount representing interest 31,94°
Present value of net minimum lease paym 426,00°
Less current obligations under capital leases 187,71!
Obligations under capital leases, less currenigort $ 238,29:

On September 24, 2009, Mr. Herbert and the Compatsred into an Amended and Restated Employmeraehgent which replaced his pi
employment agreement. The Agreement extended timedEMr. Herberts employment with the Company from June 30, 201l 8aptembe
30, 2012, and will automatically continue from yéauryear thereafter unless terminated as of theoéitidle original term or any such one
renewal period by the Company or Mr. Herbert bleast 90days notice and Mr. Herbert was granted 9,000 sha@reommon stock under 1
2008 Stock Incentive Plan which vested as folla3y800 on October 1, 2009; 3,000 on April 1, 201@ 8,000 on September 30, 2010.

The agreement continued Mr. Herbgrbase salary at $320,000 per annum. The agreewguites Mr. Herbert to devote his full time .
attention to the business and affairs of the Comppand obligates him not to engage in any investmenactivities which would compete w
the Company during the term of the agreement andafperiod of two years thereafter. The Company d@®ed to obtain and pay

premiums for a term life insurance policy in thecamt of $1,500,000 on the life of Mr. Herbert while is employed by the Company.

Herbert has the right to designate the benefiaméithe policy. The Company has agreed to obtainpaydthe premiums for a supplemental |
term disability policy covering Mr. Herbert overdaabove the existing longrm group disability plan of the Company. If heallibecom
disabled while employed by the Company, the poliscyuld provide for monthly disability coverage of wp 65% of his monthly ba
compensation payable to age 65 or death.

The agreement also provides that if Mr. Herbert ba@rminate his employment with the Company foodaeason (as defined in

agreement), or if the Company would terminate hipleyment without cause (as defined in the agreén#ren the Company would pay
him a lump sum equal to two times his base salargrdbefore the termination of his employment alhdiavested restricted stock awards
stock options would become immediately vested diiteon, upon any such termination of Mr. Herbegmployment, the Company has agr
at its cost, for a period of two years, to continagrovide Mr. Herbert with health, life and didip benefits substantially similar to thc
which he had been receiving immediately prior te tlate of termination. The term good reason asme@fin the agreement, includes: (4
material breach of the terms of the agreement byGbmpany; (B) the assignment by the Company to Hiérbert of duties in any w
materially inconsistent with his authorities, dstier responsibilities, or a material reductioralberation in the nature or status of his authg
duties, or responsibilities as the President of Goenpany; (C) the Company reduces Mr. Hereahnual base salary; or (D) a mat
reduction by the Company in the kind or level ofpdoyee benefits to which Mr. Herbert is entitledm@diately prior to such reduction with
result that his overall benefit package is sigaffity reduced unless such failure to continue a,ptalicy, practice or arrangement pertair
all plan participants generally. As a conditionMo. Herbert receiving any payments or benefits upntermination of his employment
good reason, Mr. Herbert shall have executed alideded (and not revoked) a release of any andlalins, suits, or causes of action ag:
the Company and its affiliates in form reasonalageptable to the Company.
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The agreement also provides that as a conditidgheotonsummation of a USA Transaction (as defimetthé agreement), the successor t
Company'’s business or assets would agree to assudhperform Mr. Herberd’ employment agreement. If any such successor wmildo sc
Mr. Herberts employment would terminate on the date of consatiom of the USA Transaction, and the Company waalg to Mr. Herbert
lump sum equal to two times his base salary onedorb the termination of his employment, all uneestestricted stock awards and s
options would become immediately vested, andsatast, for a period of two years would continu@rtavide Mr. Herbert with health, life a
disability benefits substantially similar to thoshich he is receiving immediately prior to the dateermination.

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. Herbert egdeinto an amendment to the employment agreenieetamendment extended the t
of Mr. Herberts employment with the Company from September 3Q22mtil June 30, 2014. In connection with the admeent, and i
recognition of his dedicated and valuable serviche Company and extending the term of his empétragreement, Mr. Herbert was iss
75,000 shares of common stock under the 2010 3iwmentive Plan which vest as follows: 25,000 oniAp4, 2011; 25,000 on April 14, 201
and 25,000 on April 14, 2013.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Hedrgdred into a second amendment to his employngneement. The amendm
eliminated the provisions of his prior agreemeniclhobligated the Company to pay any excise tatgibuatable to any excess paract
payments which would be received by Mr. Herbertrugite occurrence of a USA Transaction as well asGbmpanys related obligation
make tax gross up payments. The new agreemenstaiea that the premiums for Mr. Herbersupplemental long term disability policy be
paid by the Company would now be included in hig@sand be taxable to him. In exchange for elinmgahe excise tax and related gros
provisions, the Company issued an aggregate oD000shares of common stock to Mr. Herbert undestidsk incentive plans which vest
follows: 33,333 on the date the agreement was didpyeMr. Herbert and the Company; 33,333 on th& finniversary of the date of signi
and 33,334 on the second anniversary of the datigoing.

On November 30, 2011, the Company and Mr. Herb@tdred into an Amended and Restated EmploymentNamaCompetition Agreeme
that replaced his prior employment agreement with Company. The agreement provides for an iniahtcontinuing through January
2013, which is automatically renewed for conse@utime year periods unless terminated by eitherHdrbert or the Company upon at ¢
ninety days notice prior to the end of the initedm or any one year extension thereof. The agretommtinues the existing compensation
fringe benefits received by Mr. Herbert under Setf of his prior employment agreement except (dtis base salary is $341,227 whic
equal to the base salary under his prior employragnitement plus an amount equal to the cost tdCtmapany of the car allowance :
supplemental disability insurance coverage provittlettim under his prior employment agreement; tfig car allowance and suppleme
disability insurance coverage that had been pravidehim under his prior employment agreement Hagen discontinued; and (iii) he
eligible for a cash bonus as described in the sentence. The agreement provides for the paymewit.tblerbert of a cash bonus of $30,0C
the Company would achieve all of the minimum thoddhperformance target goals under the Fiscal Y642 Executive Performance Plan
$50,000 if the Company would achieve all of thgéamperformance goals under the plan, and of $05f0he Company would achieve all
the maximum distinguished performance target goadker the plan.

The agreement requires Mr. Herbert to devote Higifne and attention to the business and affairthe Company, and obligates him na
engage in any investments or activities which waudchpete with the Company during the term of thee@gent and for a period of two ye
thereafter. The Company has agreed to pay the presifor a term life insurance policy in the amoof$1,500,000 on the life of Mr. Herb
while he is employed by the Company. Mr. Herbesg tie right to designate the beneficiary of thegyol
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The agreement also provides that if Mr. Herbert ba@rminate his employment with the Company foodaeason (as defined in

agreement), or if the Company would terminate hipleyment without cause (as defined in the agreémenif the Company would provi
Mr. Herbert with a notice of norenewal of his employment agreement, then the Casnpeuld pay to him a lump sum equal to two timés
base salary on or before the termination of hisleympent. The term good reason as defined in theeagent, includes: (A) a material breac
the terms of the agreement by the Company; (Byagsignment by the Company to Mr. Herbert of dutieany way materially inconsiste
with his authorities, duties, or responsibilitiesr, a material reduction or alteration in the natorestatus of his authority, duties,
responsibilities as the Chief Executive Officertioé Company; (C) the Company reduces Mr. Herbextinual base salary; or (D) a mat
reduction by the Company in the kind or level ofpdoyee benefits to which Mr. Herbert is entitledhiediately prior to such reduction with
result that his overall benefit package is sigaffity reduced unless such failure to continue a,ptalicy, practice or arrangement pertair
all plan participants generally. As a conditionMo. Herbert receiving any payments or benefits ugmtermination of his employment
good reason, Mr. Herbert shall have executed atideded (and not revoked) a release of any andlaims, suits, or causes of action ag:
the Company and its affiliates in form reasonalugeptable to the Company.

The agreement also provides that as a conditidgheotonsummation of a USA Transaction (as defimetthé agreement), the successor t
Company’s business or assets would agree to assudperform Mr. Herberd’ employment agreement. If any such successor wmildo sc
Mr. Herberts employment would terminate on the date of consatiom of the USA Transaction, and the Company waalg to Mr. Herbert
lump sum equal to two times his base salary oretork the termination of his employment.

On April 12, 2005, Mr. DeMedio and the Company esdeinto an employment agreement pursuant to whe&lvas employed as the Cli
Financial Officer of the Company. The agreementies Mr. DeMedio to devote his full time and atien to the business and affairs of
Company, and obligates him not to engage in angstments or activities which would compete with @@mpany during the term of 1
agreement and for a period of one year theredftehe event that a USA Transaction (as definelllinJensers employment agreement) sl
occur, then Mr. DeMedio has the right to termintaiteagreement upon 30 days notice to the Company.

On September 24, 2009, the Company agreed to olaipay the premiums for a term life insurancécgah the amount of $750,000 on
life of Mr. DeMedio while he is employed by the Cpamy. Mr. DeMedio has the right to designate theefieiary of the policy. The Compa
has agreed to obtain and pay the premiums for plesoggntal long term disability policy covering MdeMedio over and above the exist
longterm group disability plan of the Company. If helklbecome disabled while employed by the Compamg,policy would provide fc
monthly disability coverage of up to 65% of his rtidp base compensation payable to age 65 or déaihr. DeMedio’s employment with tt
Company would be terminated without cause, the Gomas agreed, at its cost, to continue to proMdeDeMedio with health insuran
benefits substantially similar to those which hedseiving immediately prior to the date of terntioa for a one year period following st
termination.

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMedio emteinto an additional amendment to the employnagreement. The agreem
extended the term of Mr. DeMed®employment with the Company from June 30, 201l dune 30, 2014, and will automatically conti
from year to year thereafter unless terminatedfabeoend of the original term or any such one yeaewal period by the Company or
DeMedio by at least 98ays notice. In connection with the amendment,iamdcognition of his dedicated and valuable servicthe Compar
and extending the term of his employment agreenMntPeMedio was issued 25,000 shares of commorckatader the 2010 Stock Incent
Plan which vest or vested as follows: 8,333 on Kptj 2011; 8,333 on April 14, 2012; and 8,334 qwiAl4, 2013.

Effective July 1, 2011, Mr. DeMedio’s annual baatasy was increased to $220,000.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMeutiered into another amendment to his employmemeagent pursuant to which |
DeMedio was granted an aggregate of 25,000 shéresnamon stock as a bonus for his performance dutie last six months of the 2(
fiscal year which vest as follows: 8,333 on theedait signing the amendment; 8,333 on the first\amsiary of such signing date; and 8,33
the second anniversary of such signing date. MM&o also agreed that the premiums for his supetgat long term disability policy bei
paid by the Company would now be included in hig@gand be taxable to him.
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16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
LINE OF CREDIT

On July 10, 2012, the Company entered into a Laah $ecurity Agreement and other ancillary documétits “Loan Documents”ith
Avidbank Corporate Finance, a division of Avidbdtthe “Bank”), providing for a secured as$etsed revolving line of credit in an amoun
up to $3.0 million (the “Line of Credit”)The Company intends to use advances under the dfiferedit towards the financing of grov
initiatives like its JumpStart Program.

The Loan Documents provide that the aggregate ahafuadvances under the Line of Credit shall nateexd the lesser of (i) $3.0 million,
(i) 75% of eligible accounts receivable as defifrethe Loan Documents plus 80% of the prior twanths transaction processing revenues
networking service fees as defined in the Loan Dmenis, provided that the amounts advanced on atadisuch processing revenues
service fees shall not exceed $1,000,000 withauBiink's prior consent.

The outstanding balance of the amounts advanceer el Line of Credit will bear interest at 2% abdkie prime rate as publishedlihe Wal
Street Journabr 5% whichever is higher. Interest is payable iy €Company to the Bank on a monthly basis, provideat the minimur
interest payable by the Company to the Bank wisipeet to each six month period shall be $20,000.

The Line of Credit and the Company’s obligationslemthe Loan Documents are secured by substandithltf the Companyg assets, includi
its intellectual property. The term of the Line@fedit is one year. At the time of maturity all stainding advances under the Line of Crec
well as any unpaid interest is due and payabler Boi maturity of the Line of Credit, the Compangyrprepay amounts due under the Lin
Credit without penalty, and subject to the termthefLoan Documents, may re-borrow any such amounts

The Loan Documents contain customary affirmativd aegative covenants. The Loan Documents also nedhe Company to achieve
minimum Adjusted EBITDA, as defined in the Loan Dotents, measured on a quarterly basis, and to amaiatbalance of $3.0 million
unrestricted cash in accounts with the Bank. ThanLBocuments also contain customary events of Hefaoluding, among other thing
payment defaults, breaches of covenants, and batgrand insolvency events, subject to grace psriodtertain instances. Upon an evet
default, the Bank may declare all of the outstagdabligations of the Company under the Line of @resthd Loan Documents to
immediately due and payable, and exercise any oidiets provided for under the Loan Documents.

COMMON STOCK AND COMMON STOCK WARRANTS

In July 2012, the Board of Directors accepted tbeommendation of the Compensation Committee thelt ed the three noemploye:
Directors who joined the Board after March 31, 20&@eive a stock award of 10,000 shares of ComniookSA total of 30,000 shares
Common Stock were awarded with a grant date fdirevaf $1.45 per share, and vest as follows: 9@9®%wugust 10, 2012; 9,999 on Aug
10, 2013; and, 10,002 on August 10, 2014.

Warrants to purchase up to 291,432 shares of Comfatock, issued in conjunction with the 2009 Rig@iffering (see Notes 11 and 1
exercisable at $2.20 per share expired unexeroisekligust 6, 2012.

PROXY CONTEST AND LITIGATIC

The Company commenced a legal action against SAMEay 2012. As part of the litigation, SAVE filedenterclaims against the Comp.
and Stephen P. Herbert relating to, among otheg#hithe June 28, 2012 annual meeting of sharetsol®& August 16, 2012, the Comp
and SAVE entered into a Settlement and Releaseeftgat (the “Settlement AgreementPursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the S
Group and the SAVE Nominees have accepted theiateot all of the Company’ director nominees by the shareholders at the 28n201.
annual meeting of shareholders and have agreetb maintest or challenge the election results arddbmpany, the SAVE Group, the SA
Nominees and the USAT Directors have agreed toidswith prejudice the civil action filed on May 3012 in the United States District Cc
for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania known &AUlechnologies, Inc. v. Bradley Tirpak, et al. Stephen P. Herbert (Civil Action No. 12-
2399-TJS) as well as all of the claims and coutaans alleged therein.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account&on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

| tem 9A. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceslure

The principal executive officer and principal fircdad officer have evaluated the Companylisclosure controls and procedures as of Jur
2012. Based on this evaluation, they concludetti@tisclosure controls and procedures were effetti ensure that the information requ
to be disclosed by the Company in the reports ithfites or submits under the Securities Exchangg &f 1934 is recorded, process
summarized and reported, within the time period#ied in the Commissior’rules and forms and to ensure that informatiguired to b
disclosed by the Company in the reports thatésfibr submits under the Securities Exchange AEB8# is accumulated and communicate
the Companys management, including its principal executive anidcipal financial officers, or persons performisimilar functions, ¢
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

(b) Management'’s annual report on internal cordgrar financial reporting.

Management of the Company is responsible for a@stdbf and maintaining adequate internal contrardinancial reporting as defined
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). The Company’s intiecoatrol over financial reporting is a processeféd by the Compargy’management
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjalbil financial reporting and the preparation betCompanys financial statements 1
external purposes in accordance with U.S. geneaaltgpted accounting principles.

In designing and evaluating our disclosure contesid procedures, our management recognized thelbsiise controls and procedures
matter how well conceived and operated, can provide a reasonable, not absolute, assurance thatjectives of the disclosure controls
procedures are met.

The Companys management assessed the effectiveness of itmahteontrol over financial reporting as of Jung 2012. In making th
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by tbmrGittee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of Theadway Commission in Intern
Control—Integrated Framework. Based on its assassmeanagement believes that, as of June 30, 28&2Zompanys internal control ow
financial reporting is effective.

This annual report does not include an attestatmort of the Company’ registered public accounting firm regarding ingrcontrol ove
financial reporting. Management's report was ndiject to attestation by the Compasyegistered public accounting firm pursuant ti
exemption for smaller reporting companies undeti®e®89G of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform &whsumer Protection Act.

(c) Changes in internal control over financial nejpy.

There have been no changes during the quarter ehdesl 30, 2012 in the Compasyinternal controls over financial reporting thatve
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, internal control over financialp@rting.

| tem 9B. Other Information .

Not Applicable.
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P ART III
| tem 10. Directors , Executive Officers and Corpoate Governance.
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Our Directors and executive officers, on August3112, together with their ages and business baadkgis were as follows:

Name Age Position(s) Helc
Deborah G. Arnold (4 62 Director

Steven D. Barnhart (1)(2)(3)( 50 Director

David M. DeMedia 41 Chief Financial Office
Stephen P. Herbe 49 Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board dfdators
Joel Brooks (1 53 Director

Frank A. Petito, 111 (3] 44 Director

Albin F. Moschner(3 59 Director

Jack E. Price (1)(3)(« 67 Director

William J. Reilly, Jr.(1)(4 63 Director

William J. Schoch (4 a7 Director

(1) Member of Audit Committee

(2) Lead independent director

(3) Member of Compensation Committee
(4) Member of Nominating Committee

Deborah G. Arnolcoined the Board of Directors of the Company in iiegloy, 2012. Ms. Arnold is a member of our NomingtiCommittee
She has served on the Advisory Board of the Grariieehnology Center since October 2008 and was @Atlvisory Board of United Natio
Year of Microfinance and Women in Technology Intdronal from January 2005 to December 2006. MsoRimvas Vice President of glol
consumer products at Visa International from Ma@2@ October 2006, and prior thereto she led thbal smart card migration effort frc
October 1998 to May 2001. Ms. Arnold also led tleewelopment of a new payment product, Visa HoriZon,emerging markets from Jt
1995 to September 1998. Prior to joining Visa, bleéd a variety of executive positions in the tefacmunications and financial servii
industries. In her consulting practice, Ms. Arnblas supported various organizations in the stragiginning and marketing of their prodt
and programs. She has been deeply involved inndyitie development of Near Field Communication tettgy and standards, initially a
founding member of the NFC Forum in 2004 and sR2@&1 as the director of the 165+ member organizatiés. Arnold holds a Bachelor
Arts degree from Duke University, obtained in 198 well as a certificate from Universite de Lausaim Lausanne, Switzerland, awarde
1971. We believe that Ms. Arnoklrecord within the payments industry, both donea#lfi and internationally, and her track recorchefping
companies develop strategies to capitalize on bu@d@ant opportunities in the industry provide thgquisite qualifications, skills, perspecti
and experiences to serve on our Board of Directors.

Steven D. Barnhartvas appointed to the Board of Directors in Octab@®9. Mr. Barnhart is Chairman of our Nominatingn@uittee and
member of our Audit and Compensation Committees. Rérnhart's current term as a Director expireshat 2013 annual shareholders
meeting. On November 14, 2011, the independenttdire of the Company unanimously elected Mr. Bamnha the Compang’first lea
independent director. Since August 22, 2012, MrnBart has been serving as the Senior Vice PresatahChief Financial Officer of Sei
Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc., currently a glibsy of Sears Holdings Corporation. From Janu&@ito June 2012, Mr. Barnhart ser
as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OffmieBally Total Fitness. Mr. Barnhart was Chiefdeutive Officer and President of Ort
Worldwide from 2007 to January 2009, after holdiitper executive positions since 2003, when he ¢bittee company. Prior to Orb
Worldwide, he worked for PepsiCo and the PepsilBgtiGroup from 1990 to 2003, where he was Findbitector for the Southeast Busin
Unit of the Pepsi Bottling Group, and also heldestihegional and strategic positions for PepsiCo Britb-Lay. Mr. Barnhart received
Bachelor of Science degree in Economics in 198 filbe University of Chicago and a Masters in BussnAdministration in 1988 from t
University of Chicago. Mr. Barnhart served on theaBl of Directors of Orbitz Worldwide from 2007 fanuary 2009. We believe !
Barnharts extensive executive experience and leadershiis,skid prior public board experience provide thquisite qualifications, skill
perspectives, and experiences to serve on our Rddddectors.
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Joel Brookgoined the Board of Directors of the Company duritgrch 2007. Mr. Brooksturrent term as a Director expires at the 2013 al
shareholdersmeeting. Mr. Brooks is the Chairman of our Auditn@uittee. Since December 2000, Mr. Brooks has seasedhe Chie
Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary of Semd®chnologies, Inc., a biotechnology company wtsisres are traded on the NYSE A
Exchange. From September 1998 until November 20B0Brooks was the Chief Financial Officer of BladBoard and Skate, LLC, a re
establishment specializing in the action sportsigtigy. Mr. Brooks was Chief Financial Officer frat®97 until 1998 and Controller from 1¢
until 1997 of Cable and Company Worldwide, Inc. #leo held the position of Controller at USA Deterige Inc. from 1992 until 1994, a
held various positions at several public accounfings from 1983 through 1992. Mr. Brooks receivieid Bachelor of Science degree
Commerce with a major in Accounting from Rider Usisity in February 1983. We believe Mr. Broolesttensive accounting and finai
background, and his executive experience at Serbsconologies provide the requisite qualificatiosis)ls, perspectives, and experience
serve on our Board of Directors.

David M. DeMedicjoined the Company on a fuilme basis in March 1999 as Controller. In the smof 2001, Mr. DeMedio was promotec
Director of Financial Services where he was resipbm$or the sales and financial data reportingustomers, the Comparsyturnkey bankin
services and maintaining and developing relatigrshiith credit card processors and card assocgtionJuly 2003, Mr. DeMedio served
interim Chief Financial Officer through April 200&rom April 2004 until April 2005, Mr. DeMedio sestl as Vice PresidentRinancial &
Data Services. On April 12, 2005, he was appoiatethe Companyg’ Chief Financial Officer. From 1996 to March 198€ipr to joining th
Company, Mr. DeMedio had been employed by Elkoclés, Cunnane and Associates, LLC as a supervists accounting and auditing ¢
consulting practice. Prior thereto, Mr. DeMediochehrious accounting positions with Intelligent &tenics, Inc., a multiillion reseller o
computer hardware and configuration services. MeMPdio graduated with a Bachelor of Science in Bess Administration fro
Shippensburg University and is a Certified Publiccduntant. From October 2007 until September 20M08,DeMedio was a Director
GammacCan International, Inc.

Stephen P. Herbettas been our Chief Executive Officer and ChairmanesNovember 30, 2011. Mr. Herbartturrent term as a Direc
expires at the 2013 annual shareholders’ meetiegwéts elected a Director in April 1996, and joitieel Company on a futime basis on Me
6, 1996 as Executive Vice President. During Audi®89, Mr. Herbert was appointed President and Gbarating Officer of the Compal
On October 5, 2011, Mr. Herbert was appointed &sim Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, and\Nmvember 30, 2011, he was appoit
as the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chiefcutive Officer of the Company. Prior to joining and since 1986, Mr. Herbert had t
employed by Pepstola, the beverage division of PepsiCo, Inc. Fr&@84lto April 1996, Mr. Herbert was a Manager of kirStrategy. |
such position he was responsible for directing traent of market strategy for the vending chammmel subsequently the supermarket che
for Pepsi-Cola in North America. Prior thereto, Mierbert held various sales and management positiath Pepsicola. Mr. Herbe
graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree fromidiana State University. We believe Mr. Herbenposition as the President and C
Operating Officer of our Company until October 812 and as Chairman and Chief Executive OfficethefCompany thereafter, his intim
knowledge and experience with all aspects of oumgany, and his extensive vending experience ati®epsefore joining our Compa
provide the requisite qualifications, skills, pexstives, and experiences to serve on our Boardretiars.

Albin F. Moschneljoined the Board of Directors of the Company in iIl@2012. His current term as a Director expireshet 2013 annu
shareholdersmeeting. He is a member of our Compensation Coreaittlr. Moschner served at Leap Wireless Internatidnc. as the Chi
Operating Officer from July 2008 to February 201 s Chief Marketing Officer from August 2004 tend 2008. Prior to joining Le
Wireless, Mr. Moschner served as President of thézZdgn Card Services division of Verizon Commurimag, Inc. From January 1999
December 2000, Mr. Moschner was President of Oriet Ba&rvices at One Point Communications. Mr. Mosehserved at Zenith Electron
Corporation as President and Chief Executive Offfoem 1995 to 1996 and as President, Chief Opegafifficer and Director from 1994
1995. Mr. Moschner has also served in various menegcapacities at Tricord Systems, Inc. and hd#@onal Business Machines Corp.

Moschner has also been serving on the Board ofrwéhEinancial Corporation since 1994. Mr. Moschinelds a Bachelor of Engineering
Electrical Engineering from The City College of Neterk, awarded in 1974, and a masters degree iottfilal Engineering awarded

Syracuse University in 1979. We believe that Mr.deliners marketing, manufacturing and wireless industrgegience and long stand
prior public board experience provide the requigitalifications, skills, perspectives, and experénto serve on our Board of Directors.

Frank A. Petito, 1ll, joined the Board of Directors of the Company ebfuary, 2012. His current term as a Director egat the 2013 anni
shareholdersineeting. Mr. Petito is a member of our Compensaiommittee. He is President of Orbitz for Businesg] has also served
Senior Vice President of Corporate Developmentdritz Worldwide, Inc., which he joined in March@@ Prior to joining Orbitz, Mr. Peti
was a co-founder and CFO of Unexplored, Inc., dauredbacked online travel and services company from 189901. He was an investm
banker, and served as Vice President of mergera@dsitions, at Hambrecht & Quist, a technoléggused investment bank in San Franc
from 1996 to 1999. Prior to that, Mr. Petito wasiavestment banker at Roberts Capital Markets fi®@82 to 1994. He started his caree
Morgan Stanley where he as an investment banker 1890 to 1992. Mr. Petito obtained his MBA fronaifford Graduate School of Busin
in 1996 and his undergraduate degree from Prindgtuwersity in 1990. We believe that Mr. Petgddreadth of experience at both large
small companies and his track record of succegs@gerating in a high growth, technology environinprovide the requisite qualificatiol
skills, perspectives, and experiences to serveuoBoard of Directors.
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Jack E. Pricewas appointed to the Board of Directors in Octdti#¥9. Mr. Price is Chairman of our Compensation @dtee and a member
our Nominating Committee. Mr. Price’s current tesma Director expires at the 2013 annual sharetsdloeeting. Mr. Price was President
Chief Executive Officer of NovaRay Medical Inc. inc2007 to March 2009. Prior to that, he was Presidad Chief Executive Officer of VS
MedTech Ltd. from 2003 to 2006, and was President Rivision Chief Executive Officer of Philips Mexdil Systems, North America frc
1996 to 2003, having joined Philips Medical Systemd993 as Vice President and General Managerwhie also with General Elect
Medical Systems from 1988 t01993, where he hele Weesident and General Manager positions. MreReceived his undergraduate de
from the University of Oregon. Mr. Price is alsodliman of The Radiological Society of North AmerBaard of Trustees. Mr. Price servec
the Board of Directors of NovaRay Medical, Inc.nfr@007 to 2009 and of Health Solutions Systems, fhoen May 1, 2008 to March 201
We believe Mr. Prices extensive executive experience, leadership séiild prior public company board experience provlue requisit
qualifications, skills, perspectives, and experé&nto serve on our Board of Directors.

William J. Reilly, Jr., joined the Board in July 2012. His current tersnaaDirector expires at the 2013 annual sharehslldezeting. He he
been an independent consultant since January Foafn September 2004 to November 2010, Mr. Reillg Waesident and Chief Execul
Officer of Realtime Media, Inc., an interactive prational marketing firm serving the pharmaceutiadl consumer packaged goods mar
Following the sale of Realtime Media, Inc. in Noussn 2010, Mr. Reilly was retained as a consultami danuary 2011. From September 2
to September 2004, Mr. Reilly was a principal aie§terbrook Growth Partners, independent consultantee private equity communi
Between 1989 and 2002, Mr. Reilly served at varipasitions at Checkpoint Systems Inc., a multimagtionanufacturer and marketet
products and services for automatic identificati@tail security, pricing and brand promotion, irdihg as Chief Operating Officer, Execut
Vice President, Senior Vice President of the Anssiand Pacific Rim and Vice President of SalesrRoi that, Mr. Reilly held national a
sales management positions at companies in thecalediectronics and telecommunications industriasluding Minolta Corporatiol
Megatech Pty. Ltd. and Multitone Electronics PLG: has also served on the Board of Veramark TechiespInc., a telecommunicatic
software firm, from June 1997 to May 2008. Mr. Reggraduated from Mount St. Mary’University with a bachelors of science degre
Psychology in 1970. We believe that Mr. Re#lyexecutive, business development and internatiempkrience provide the requi
qualifications, skills, perspectives and experisnoeserve on our Board of Directors.

William J. Schochoined the Board in July 2012. His current termaaBirector expires at the 2013 annual shareholdeegting. He is tt
President and Chief Executive Officer of WestergrRents Alliance, a noprofit payments association and has served indapacity sinc
March 2008. He serves on the Boards of Western Batgmilliance and NACHA, an industry trade assommand the administrator of 1
Automated Clearing House (ACH) Network, and is ba steering committee of NACH#&'Council for Electronic Billing and Payment. Ft
1997 to 2008, Mr. Schoch worked at Visa Internatlomhere, as the Vice President of Emerging Mahhki#itaitives, he was responsible for
global development of the Visa Money Transfer Ielatf. Prior to that, Mr. Schoch served as a Vicesient at Citibank, N.A. from 1989
1997 and as an Associate Director at NACHA from 688 1989. Mr. Schoch obtained a Bachelor of Argrde in 1986 from India
University of Pennsylvania with a major in Publioliey and a minor in Economics. We believe that Bchochs experience and familiar
with the electronic payments industry and his lesltip experience provide the requisite qualificagioskills, perspectives and experience
serve on our Board of Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit Comaritpresently consisting of each of Mr. Brooks (@han), and Messrs. Barnhart, Price,
Reilly. The Company Board of Directors has determined that Joel Bsoskthe Audit Committee financial expert serving the Audi

Committee as defined by applicable SEC rules. Thar® has also determined that Mr. Brooks is “indeleat” as such term is defined
applicable SEC rules.

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

Our Board has adopted a Code of Ethics, which appb all executive officers, directors and empésyef the Company, including our Ct

Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and Quoiler. A copy of our Code of Business Conduct &thlics is accessible on the Company’
website, www.usatech.com
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| tem 11. Executiv e Compensation.
Compensation Discussion And Analysis

From July 1, 2009, and through October 2009, ounm@msation Committee consisted of Steven Katz ailliav Van Alen, Jr. Effectiv
October 2009, our Compensation Committee consistédr. Katz, Mr. Van Alen and Jack Price. EffectiFebruary 2010, our Compensa
Committee consisted of Mr. Katz, Mr. Price and P&lichel. Effective May 2010 and through June 2812, our Compensation Commit
was comprised of Jack Price, Steven Barnhart, atdr Michel. Effective June 28, 2011, and througly 24, 2012, the Compensat
Committee consisted of Messrs. Price and Barnkaotn July 24, 2012 and through the date of thigrF20K, the Compensation Commiti
consisted of Messrs. Price, Barnhart, Petito andd¥ioer.

The Compensation Committee is responsible for veévig and recommending compensation and compensatianges for the execut
officers of the Company. The compensation of the tther employees named in the Summary Compensatbite is determined by t
executive officers. The Chief Executive Officeriassthe Committee in determining the compensatiball other executive officers and
other executive officers do not have a role in deteing their own compensation. Our Chief Execut®#icer regularly provides informatic
to the Compensation Committee. The Compensation niltiee considers each component of executive cosgtiem in light of tote
compensation. In considering adjustments to tha tmmpensation of the executive officers, the Censation Committee also considers
value of previous compensation. The Compensatiomr@ittee has retained a compensation consultandeamed necessary, to assist
Committee to make appropriate recommendations degaour executive officer’'s compensation.

We have developed a compensation policy that isgded to attract and retain key executives respmdior our success and motiv
management to enhance long-term shareholder vEheeCompensation Committee believes that compemsafi the Compang’ executiv
officers should encourage creation of shareholdéresrand achievement of strategic corporate obgstind the Committee seeks to aligr
interests of the Company’s shareholders and manageny integrating compensation with the Compaiyisual and longerm corporate at
financial objectives. We believe that providing @xecutive officers who have responsibility for thempanys management and growth v
an opportunity to increase their ownership of Comypatock aligns the interests of the executiveceffs with those of the shareholder:
furtherance thereof, in April 2011, the Board amea Stock Ownership Guidelines that were recommaitgethe Compensation Committ
These guidelines provide that the Chief Executific€r should own shares with a value of at leasté¢ times his annual base salary, an
Chief Financial Officer should own shares with dueaof at least one time his annual base salarg. gihidelines provide that the execu
officers have a period of five years to attain éhlevels of ownership.

In order to be competitive with compensation offetey other companies in our custom peer group, aspided by our compensati
consultant, and to motivate and retain executifiears, the Company intends to offer a total congadion package competitive with ot
companies in our custom peer group as well asitakeaccount individual responsibilities and penfiance. The annual compensation pac
for our executives primarily consists of all or soof the following:

° a base salary;
° stock options;
° restricted stock awards;
° cash and stock bonuses;
° long-term stock incentive awards; and
° other benefits.
Base Salary

Base salary is the fixed component of our execudffieer's annual cash compensation and is set with theaj@dtracting talented executi
and adequately compensating and rewarding thersefmices rendered during the fiscal year. Our exexwfficers’ employment agreemel
specify the level of salary to which the officereistitled, subject to review of our board of dimstor Compensation Committee from tim
time. During November 2011, and in connection whith appointment as Chief Executive Officer, we rantended that Mr. Herbest'existing
base salary be increased by an amount equal tantimeal costs to the Company of the car allowancesapplemental longerm disability
insurance coverage which had previously been peavid him and which had been discontinued. On &&pte 5, 2012, the Board appro
our recommendation that Mr. Herbsrthase salary be increased by an amount equaé tanttual premiums being paid by the Company
life insurance policy on Mr. Herbert's life that svdbeing discontinued. Effective July 1, 2011, weréased Mr. DeMedis’ base sala
approximately eighteen percent in order for hisshsaslary to more competitive with the base salariehief financial officers of the compan
in our custom peer group as compiled by our comgt@rs consultant. On September 5, 2012, the Boppdoaed our recommendation that
DeMedio’s base salary be increased by the annual amouheé afar allowance that was being discontinued. Gds®e salaries of our execut
officers reflect the individuas' level of responsibility and performance. In recoending base salaries of our executive officerthéoboard ¢
directors, the Compensation Committee also consideanges in duties and responsibilities, our essimnd financial results, the relation
among base salaries paid to others within our Compand its knowledge of base salaries paid to wtiex officers of our custom pe
group. The base salaries for each of Messrs. Samatlyawlor are set forth in their respective ergplent agreements, and were establishe
our Chief Executive Officer after discussions watich employee.
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As set forth in his employment agreement, upon térenination of Mr. Herber§ employment under certain circumstances, inclt
termination by him with good cause or by the Conypaithout cause or by a notice of noerewal of the employment agreement,
Company has agreed to pay him a lump sum amoust émjtwo times his annual base salary. We belibaethese provisions are an impor
component of the executive’'s employment arrangesnent

Stock Options

Stock options serve to ensure that executive manegeis properly focused on shareholder value.kKStptions align management incenti
with shareholdes objectives because options granted at fair adive value only if the stock price increases oweetA vesting schedule a
keeps the executives focused on long term perfocmand not short term gains. No stock options Heen issued to our executive officer
employees during the 2010, 2011, or 2012 fiscaty/ea

Restricted Stock Awards

During the 2010, 2011, and 2012 fiscal years, thm@ensation Committee has recommended that restritbck be awarded to our exect
officers. These restricted stock awards becomesdaster a period of time, and are issued undeCtirapanys incentive stock compensat
plans. During September 2009, and in conjunctioth Wie execution of their amended and restated ®@mm@nt agreements, we awardel
aggregate of 39,000 shares under our stock in@eptan as a bonus to Messrs. Jensen and HerbeigDApril 2011, and based upon [
performance and in consideration of the extensfadhar employment agreements, we awarded an agtgeag 225,000 shares under our s
incentive plan to our executive officers. Duringp®amber 2011, we issued 150,000 shares under centime stock plan to Mr. Jensen
100,000 shares under our incentive stock plan to WNérbert in exchange for the elimination of cert@rovisions in their employme
agreements requiring the Company to pay excisestard related tax gross up payments in connectitnexcess parachute payments in
event of a change in control of the Company. Then@ensation Committee as well as the executiveafibelieved that these provisions v
no longer appropriate given current compensati@ctfres and represented good corporate govern@uweng September 2011, we iss
25,000 shares under our incentive stock plan toDdMedio as a bonus for performance during thediasinonths of the 2011 fiscal year.

On September 5, 2012and in recognition of his successful leadershithef Company following the separation of the forrl@&0 as well ¢
his successful leadership in connection with th@lé@mentation of the Companys financial turnaround plan, the Board approved
recommendation and awarded Mr. Herbert 71,429 shafranvested common stock under our stock incengian having a value of $100,0
These shares would become vested upon the attatirmhearious closing prices for thirty consecutivading days at any time during the tt
year period following the date of the award. -third of the shares would become vested if theirngpprice would be at least $2.00 per st
one-third of the shares would become vested ifctbsing price would be at least $2.25 per shard, @rethird of the shares would beco
vested if the closing price would be at least $2&0share.

Cash and Stock Bonuses

In addition to base salary, we may award variallghcbonus awards to our executives as well as shaadlable under our incentive st
compensation plans.

On September 15, 2011, at the recommendation ofCi@pensation Committee, the board of directorsptetb the Fiscal Year 20
Performance Share Plan (the “2012 Plan”) coverirgg Companys executive officers. Under the 2012 Plan, eactcutikee officer will be
awarded common stock in the event the Company eehi@rget goals during the fiscal year ending Bhe2012 relating to the total num
of connections, total revenues, operating experses,operating earnings. Operating earnings isnddfas earnings before interest and 1
(after bonus accruals and stock awards) and befim@perating gains or losses. The number of eligihbres to be awarded to the execut
is based upon the following weightings: 30% by tital number of connections; 30% by total revend€8s by operating expenses; and :
by operating earnings. No awards would be maderuheée2012 Plan if either (i) none of the minimuhreshold performance target goals t
been achieved, or (ii) if operating earnings fa #012 fiscal year are not equal or better thasdluuring the 2011 fiscal year.

If all of the target performance goals are achievhd executive officers would be awarded the feifg number of shares: Mr. Herbert
120,000 shares; and Mr. DeMedi®6,000 shares. If all of the minimum, thresholdf@enance target goals are achieved, the execufficers
would be awarded 20% of the number of shares whichld have been awarded to them if all of the tammformance goals had b
achieved. If all of the maximum, distinguished pemfance target goals are achieved, the executfieersf would be awarded 150% of
number of shares which would have been awardekeim if all of the target performance goals had keshieved. If the actual results for
fiscal year are less than the target goals (buatgrehan the minimum, threshold performance taggats), each executive would be award
lesserpro rataportion of the number of eligible shares.
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Based upon the financial results of the Companytherfiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the minimushold targets under the 2012 |
relating to revenues and connections were met. isat of the approximately $2.2 million of expessncurred in connection with the pr
contest and related litigation and the $975,00@xgfenses incurred in connection with the separatfahe former Chief Executive Officer
the Company, operating earnings were less thame tfowghe 2011 fiscal year and the minimum threghaitgets under the 2012 Plan relatin
operating expenses and operating earnings wenaeiot

On September 5, 2012, the Board of Directors ofGbmpany approved the recommendation of the ConapiensCommittee that the expen
incurred in connection with the proxy contest aalhted litigation and the separation of the fori@aief Executive Officer of the Compa
should be excluded from the operating expensesopedating earnings metrics under the 2012 Plan. tmpensation Committee and
Board did not believe that costs related to thesesual noreperating events should be included for purposeswvafluating operatir
performance under the 2012 Plan.

On this adjusted basis, operating earnings wererbttan those of the 2011 fiscal year and mettdinget goal under the 2012 Plan,
operating expenses met the maximum, distinguisheget goal under the 2012 Plan, resulting in thardwof 136,285 shares, as follo
Stephen P. Herbert, Chief Executive Officer- 96,804res; and David M. DeMedio, Chief Financial &dfi 40,084 shares.

Mr. Herbert s November 30, 2011 employment agreement with tg@any provides that he will receive a cash borfu$36,000 if thi
Company would achieve the minimum threshold taggpetls under the 2012 Plan, of $50,000 if the Compaould achieve the target go
under the 2012 Plan, and of $75,000 if the Compaayld achieve the maximum distinguished target gogider the 2012 Plan. Basec
performance against the 2012 Plan, on the adjlmsid approved by the Board of Directors descrddmm/e, Mr. Herbert earned a cash b
of $40,000.

On September 5, 2012, at the recommendation ofCtbepensation Committee, the board of directors edbphe Fiscal Year 20
Performance Share Plan (the “2013 Plan”) coverimgg@ompanys executive officers. Under the 2013 Plan, eacltigiee officer would b
awarded common stock in the event the Company ae$ieertain performance goals during the fiscat geaing June 30, 2013. The met
under the 2013 Plan as well as the relative weightiof these metrics are identical to those orlbyirset forth in the 2012 Plan. No awa
would be made under the 2013 Plan if either (i)enofithe minimum, threshold performance targetgbale been achieved, or (ii) if opera
earnings for the 2013 fiscal year are not equaletter than those during the 2012 fiscal year.

If all of the target goals are achieved under tB&3?Plan, the executive officers would be awardeates having the following value: I
Herbert — $275,000; and Mr. DeMedio 209,000 shares. If all of the minimum, threshold@enance target goals are achieved, the exec
officers would be awarded shares having the folhgwalue: Mr. Herbert — $75,000; and Mr. DeMedi&25,000. If all of the maximur
distinguished performance target goals are achjahedexecutive officers would be awarded sharegbahe following value: Mr. Herbert
$550,000; and Mr. DeMedio -280,000. If the actual results for the fiscal yaeg less than the target goals (but greater themihimum
threshold performance target goals), each executindd be awarded a lesser pro rata number of steaneé if actual results are greater thai
maximum, distinguished goals, each executive wanalchwarded a greater pro rata number of sharesCohgensation Committee belie
that the attainment of the target goals under €H82Plan would represent a significant achieverfmmnanagement.

On September 5, 2012, the Board also approvedesommendation that Mr. Herbert would earn a castubof $30,000 if he achieved cer
minimum threshold target goals during the 2013dlisear, of $50,000 if he achieved target goals, @n$75,000 if he achieved maxim
distinguished target goals during the 2013 fiseary The specific strategic performance goals totlieed for purposes of Mr. Herbestbonu
plan are to be established by the Compensation Giveenand approved by the Board.

Long-Term Stock Incentive Awards

During February 2007, at the recommendation of@benpensation Committee, the board of directors tabfhe LTIP Program covering
Company’s executive officers Messrs. Jensen, Herbert and DeMedio. The purpogdbedfTIP Program was to ensure continuity of
Companys executives, encourage stock ownership by theugixes, align the interests of the executives wlithse of the shareholders, .
provide incentives and rewards to the executives aite largely responsible for the management aadityrof the Company. The last fis
year covered by the LTIP Program was the fiscat gaded June 30, 201

Under the LTIP Program, each executive officer wasrded common stock of the Company in the eventCthmpany achieved target gc
relating to each of revenues, GP and EBITDA dugagh of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007,3r2008, and June 30, 2010. EBITD,
defined as earnings before interest, taxes, degit@sj and amortization, and excludes mash stock payments/awards and stock of
granted to officers and members of the board afatiirs. During each such fiscal year, the nhumbegligfble shares to be awarded to
executive was based upon the following weightid@®b of eligible shares was determined by revenB@%j of eligible shares was determi
by GP; and 30% of eligible shares was determineEB DA.
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If the target goal (100%) for revenues, GP, andTEB\ was achieved by the Company during the appleéibcal year, the executive offici
would be awarded the following number of shares: 3&nsen — 178,570 shares; Mr. Herbert — 53,71&shand Mr. DeMedio 21,66¢
shares.

If actual revenues, GP, or EBITDA for a particuliscal year exceeded the target goals, each execwtbuld be awarded additional eligi
shares, up to an amount no greater than 125% ofutmber of eligible shares. If the actual reven®#3, or EBITDA for a particular fiscal ye
were less than the target goals, each executivédwmiawarded a lesspro rata portion of the number of eligible shares. If minimaarge
goals for revenues, GP, or EBITDA for a particdiacal year were not achieved, no eligible sharesld/be awarded to each executive.

Based upon the financial results of the CompanyHerfiscal year ended June 30, 2010, a lower tdwaet goal (85%) relating to revenues
met and the minimum target goals relating to GPEBETDA were not met. As a result, the Company éskto the executive officers of a tc
of 86,342 shares under the LTIP Program for theDJxkal year, as follows: Mr. Jensen-60,716 shavirs Herbert-18,261 shares; and |
DeMedio- 7,365 shares.

Other Benefits

During the 2010, 2011 and 2012 fiscal years, owcative officers were entitled to the health caoeecage, group insurance and o
employee benefits provided to all of our employ&®¥s. have recently recommended to the Board andBth&d has approved
discontinuance of some of our executive officeffsiige benefits which are in excess of those gdlyeewvailable to the Compang’othe
employees. In this regard, in November 2011, Mrrbidd’s automobile allowance was discontinued and the faom ceased paying |
premiums for a supplemental long-term disabilitfiggpofor Mr. Herbert over and above the existingndeterm group disability plan of tl
Company. On September 5, 2012, the Board approuedezommendation that the Company discontinue payrof the premiums for
$1,500,000 face amount life insurance policy on Nerbert. On September 5, 2012, the Board approuedecommendation that the Comp
discontinue payment of the automobile allowancestxh of Messrs. DeMedio, Lawlor and Sagady. Asutised above, the base salarir
the executives were increased by an amount equiaétannual payments attributable to these distoeti fringe benefits.

As discussed elsewhere in this Form 10-K, the Caomppeas agreed to pay health insurance for a onepearéod following Mr. DeMedicé
termination of employment by the Company withouiss

Impact of Taxation and Accounting Considerations orExecutive Compensation

The Compensation Committee and the Board of Diredsike into account tax and accounting conseq@ernicihe compensation program
weigh these factors when setting total compensaimhdetermining the individual elements of anyceiee officer's compensation package.

The restricted stock awards to our executive affiaender our incentive stock plans or under the22Blan or 2013 Plan provide that
executive is responsible for any withholding or idiytax obligations incurred by the Company in geation with the award, and the execu
may satisfy any such obligations by either thew#li to the Company of a cash payment equal tohltigations, or the assignment or tran
to the Company of shares having a value equalktoliigations, or such other method that shalldtsfactory to the Company.

In order to have any benefits payable to the exesufficers under their supplemental long termadbifity policies not be included in th
taxable income, the Compensation Committee recordeteto the Board of Directors that the premiumsetfoge should be included in th
wages from the Company, and such a change waslegtim each of their September 2011 employmentacintevisions. As discussed ab
the supplemental long-term disability policy of Mterbert was discontinued in November 2011.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The following “Compensation Committee Repostiall not be deemed incorporated by reference antofiling under the Securities Act
1933, as amended, or under the Securities Exchaogef 1934, as amended, except to the extentttieaCompany specifically incorpora
this information by reference, and shall not othieedbe deemed filed under such Acts.

The Compensation Committee reviewed the above Cosgtien Discussion and Analysis and discussed dtsteats with Compar
management. Based on the review and discussioasCtémmittee has recommended to the Board of Diredivat this Compensati
Discussion and Analysis be included in the FornKifor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

Respectfully submitted:
Jack E. Price, Chairman
Steven D. Barnhart

Albin F. Moschner
Frank A. Petito, Il
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Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth certain informatiatith respect to compensation paid or accrued byChpany during the fiscal years en
June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 to each of the exealfficers and employees of the Company nameadviel

Name anc

Principal Fiscal Stock All Other

Position Year Salary Bonus (3) Awards (4) Compensation (! Total
George R. Jensen, . 201z $ 113,94. $ - $ 171,000 $ 425,11: $ 710,05:
Former Chief Executive Office 2011 % 365,000 $ - % 293,75( $ 31,137 $ 689,88
& Chairman of the Board (1 201C $ 365,000 $ - 8 52,50C $ 38,67t $  456,17!
Stephen P. Herbe 201z $ 332,24t $ 40,00 $ 391,300 $ 18,74¢ $ 782,29:
Chief Executive Officer, Preside 2011 $ 320,000 $ - % 176,25( $ 2487: $ 521,12
& Chairman of the Board (z 201C $ 320,00( $ - $ 15,75( $ 32,41: $ 368,16:
David M. DeMedia 2012 $ 219,61 $ - $ 134,54; $ 18,19( $ 372,34
Chief Financial Office 2011 % 195,000 $ - % 58,75( $ 19,17¢ $ 272,92

201C $ 195,00 $ - % - % 2894. $ 223,94

Cary Sagad' 201z $ 193,06t $ 64,680 $ - $ 16,01« $  273,76:
Sr. VP Product Management 2011 $ 188,60t $ 88,68¢ $ - $ 10,44 $  287,73¢
Network Solutions 201C $ 185,000 $ 13,20¢ $ - % 15,997 $ 214,20t
Michael Lawlor 2012 $ 173,74 % 96,32( % 36,20( $ 15,197 $ 321,46:
VP of Sales & Busines 2011 % 166,077 $ 148,17( $ - % 10,28: $ 324,53(
Developmen 201C $ - $ - $ - $ - 9 >

(1) Mr. Jensen resigned his employment with the Commpen@ctober 14, 201.

(2 Mr. Herbert was formerly the CompasyPresident and Chief Operating Officer throughoBet 4, 2011 and interim Chairman
Chief Executive Officer from October 5 through Nouger 28, 2011. Mr. Herbert was named Chairman @Bbard, Chief Executi
Officer and President on November 30, 2C

) For fiscal year 2012, represents cash boneasged upon such perserperformance during the fiscal year or upon th&ranent b
the Company of certain target go:

4 In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, the priceoaf common stock on the grant date equals thet giate fair value of the
stock awards

(5) The following table shows each component of theimwl above title¢ All Other Compensatio”
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Company Long-term

401(k) Disability Life
Matching Insurance Insurance Auto
Fiscal
Name and Principal Positic Year Contributiont  Premiums Premiums Allowance Severanct Total

George R. Jensen, . 201z $ 3,10¢ $ - 3 555¢ $ 550 $ 410,95. $ 425,11:
Former Chief Executive Office 2011 % 2,262 $ 544t % 555t $ 17,87 $ - 9 31,137
& Chairman of the Board (! 201C $ 9,80( $ 544t $ 555¢ $ 17,87 $ - 9 38,67¢
Stephen P. Herbe 2012 $ 9,80( $ - 9 1,38t $ 7,56 $ - 9 18,74¢
Chief Executive Officer, Preside 2011 % 2,26: $ 3,35 $ 1,38t $ 17,87 $ - $ 24.,87:
& Chairman of the Boar 201C $ 9,80( $ 3,352 $ 1,38 $ 17,87 $ - $ 32,41
David M. DeMedic 201z $ - % - % 31t % 17,87 $ - % 18,19(
Chief Financial Office 2011 % - 9 98t $ 31t % 17,87 $ - 9 19,17¢

201C $ 9,80C $ 951 $ 31t % 17,87 $ - 9 28,94:
Cary Sagad 2012z $ 8,012 $ - $ 204 $ 7,80C $ - 9 16,01¢
Sr. VP Product Management 2011 % 1,70¢ $ 73z $ 204 $ 7,80C $ - 3 10,44«
Network Solutions 201C $ 8,07: $ - $ 124 % 7,80C $ - $ 15,99°
Michael Lawlor 201z $ 7,19¢ $ - $ 204 $ 7,80C $ - $ 15,19°
VP of Sales & Busines 2011 % 1547 $ 73z % 204 $ 7,80C $ - 9 10,28
Developmen 201C $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
(1) Mr. Jensen resigned his employmett eie Company on October 14, 2011.

Grants Of Plan-Based Awards Table

The table below summarizes the amounts of awasmistenl to our named executive officers and emploglagag the fiscal year ended June
2012:

All Other
Stock
Awards: Grant Date
Estimated Future Payouts Under Number of Fair Value of
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards Estimated Future Payouts Unc Shares of Stock and
(1) Equity Incentive Plan Awarc Stock or Option (3)
Grant
Name Date Threshold ($ Target ($) Maximum ($)  Threshold (# Target (#) Maximum (#) Units (#) Awards ($)
George R. Jensen
Jr. (2) 9/15/201: - - 45,00( 225,00( 337,50( - % -
9/27/201: - - - - - 100,000 $ 171,00(
Stephen P. Herbe 9/15/201.: - - 24,00( 120,00( 180,00( - % 220,30(
9/27/201.: - - - - - - 100,000 $ 171,00(
11/29/201. 30,00( 50,00( 75,00( - - - - 8 -
David M. DeMedic 9/15/201.: - - - 10,00( 50,00( 75,00( - % 91,79:
9/27/201: - - - - - - 25,000 $ 42,75(
Cary Sagad' - - - - - - $ -
Michael Lawlor 4/27/201: - - - - - 20,000 $ 36,20(

(1) In November 2011, our Board of Directorpmmved the Amended and Restated Employment and Qdonpetition Agreeme
between the Company and Stephen P Herbert. Theefgnet provides for the payment to Mr. Herbert efah bonus of $30,00C
the Company would achieve all of the minimum thoddlperformance target goals under the Fiscal 2842 Executive Performar
Plan, of $50,000 if the Company would achieve &lthe target performance goals under the plan, arii75,000 if the Compa
would achieve all of the maximum distinguished parfance target goals under the p

(2) Mr. Jensen resigned his employment with the Commen§@ctober 14, 201.

(3) Amount represents the grant date fair value detexthin accordance with ASC 71
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Option Exercises And Stock Vested

The following table sets forth information regamlioptions exercised and shares of common stockiracqupon vesting by our namn
executive officers and employees during the figealr ended June 30, 2012:

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of
Shares Value Shares Value
Acquired on Realized or  Acquired on Realized or
Name Exercise (#  Exercise ($ Vesting (#) Vesting ($)
George R. Jensen, Jr. | - $ - 141,66 $ 195,50(
Stephen P. Herbert (; - 8 - 154,53 $ 229,99:
David M. DeMedio (3’ - $ - 56,75( $ 83,531
Cary Sagad' - 8 - - 8 -
Michael Lawlor - 8 - - 8 =

Q) Represents 50,000 shares valued at $1.71 per thizaineested on September 27, 2011, and 91,667sshaleed at $1.20 per share
vested on October 14, 2011. Mr. Jensen resigneehmidoyment with the Company on October 14, 2

(2) Represents 33,333 shares valued at $1.71 per gtareested on September 27, 2011, 25,000 shahesdvat $1.34 per share t
vested on April 14, 2012 and 96,201 shares valu&d .45 that vested on June 30, 2(

3) Represents 8,333 shares valued at $1.71 per $tareested on September 27, 2011, 8,333 sharesdvatubl.34 per share that ve:
on April 14, 2012 and 40,084 shares valued at $thdbvested on June 30, 20
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Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year-End

The following table shows information regarding xecised stock options and unvested equity awaraisted to the executive officers a:

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012:

Option Awards Stock Awards
Market
Number of Number of Value of
Securities Shares or Shares or
Underlying Units of Units of
Unexercised Option Option Stock That Stock That
Options(#) Exercise Expiration Have Not Have Not
Name Exercisable Price($) Date Vested (# Vested($)
George R. Jensen, (5) 25,00((1) $ 7.5C 6/29/201. - -
Stephen P. Herbe 6,00((1) $ 7.5C 6/29/201. 25,00((2) $ 36,25(
66,66(3) $ 96,66
David M. DeMedic 2,3351) $ 7.5C 6/29/201. 8,33%2) $ 12,08
16,667(3) $ 24,16
Cary Sagad -9 = = =
Michael Lawlor -9 - 20,00((4) $ 29,00(
Q) Options vested and became exercigabliune 30, 2008.

(2) Reflects shares granted under amendments datedd14pf011, to employment agreements. Shares we&pdl 14, 2013. The closir
market price on June 30, 2012, or $1.45 per shas,used in the calculation of market va

3 Reflects shares granted under amendments Sajge@mber 27, 2011, to employment agreementsHitberts shares vest as folloy
33,333 shares vest on September 27, 2012 and 38h28ds vest on September 27, 2013. Mr. DeMsdibares vest as follows: 8,.
shares vest on September 27, 2012 and 8,334 skesesn September 27, 2013. The closing markeé gmicJune 30, 2012, or $1
per share, was used in the calculation of markieev

4 Reflects shares granted under an amendmead dgpril 27, 2012, to an employment agreement. Mawlor ' s shares vest
follows: 5,000 shares on September 30, 2012; 5sb@Pes on December 31, 2012; 5,000 shares on N34rc?013; and 5,000 sha
on June 30, 2013. The closing market price on 30n2012, or $1.45 per share, was used in the lesilmu of market value

(5) Mr. Jensen resigned his employment with the Commen§@ctober 14, 201.

Executive Employment Agreements

Stephen P. Herbert

On September 24, 2009, Mr. Herbert and the Compatsred into an Amended and Restated Employmeraehgent which replaced his pi
employment agreement. The Agreement extended timedEMr. Herberts employment with the Company from June 30, 201l 8aptembe
30, 2012, and will automatically continue from yéauyear thereafter unless terminated as of theoétide original term or any such one y
renewal period by the Company or Mr. Herbert byeast 90days notice. Mr. Herbert was granted 9,000 shafe®mmon stock under t
2008 Stock Incentive Plan which vested as folla3y800 on October 1, 2009; 3,000 on April 1, 201® 8,000 on September 30, 2010.

The agreement continued Mr. HerbsrBase salary at $320,000 per annum. The agreeewmuites Mr. Herbert to devote his full time .
attention to the business and affairs of the Compand obligates him not to engage in any investmenactivities which would compete w
the Company during the term of the agreement andafperiod of two years thereafter. The Company d@®ed to obtain and pay

premiums for a term life insurance policy in thecamt of $1,500,000 on the life of Mr. Herbert while is employed by the Company.

Herbert has the right to designate the benefiagéithe policy. The Company has agreed to obtaingaydthe premiums for a supplemental |
term disability policy covering Mr. Herbert overdaabove the existing longrm group disability plan of the Company. If heallibecom
disabled while employed by the Company, the polisyuld provide for monthly disability coverage of wp 65% of his monthly ba
compensation payable to age 65 or death.
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The agreement also provides that if Mr. Herbert ba@rminate his employment with the Company foodaeason (as defined in

agreement), or if the Company would terminate nipleyment without cause (as defined in the agreémtren the Company would pay
him a lump sum equal to two times his base salargrdbefore the termination of his employment athdiavested restricted stock awards
stock options would become immediately vested diiteon, upon any such termination of Mr. Herbegmployment, the Company has agr
at its cost, for a period of two years, to continagrovide Mr. Herbert with health, life and didip benefits substantially similar to thc
which he had been receiving immediately prior te tlate of termination. The term good reason aneefin the agreement, includes: (4
material breach of the terms of the agreement byGbmpany; (B) the assignment by the Company to Hiérbert of duties in any w
materially inconsistent with his authorities, datier responsibilities, or a material reductioraltberation in the nature or status of his authg
duties, or responsibilities as the President of Genpany; (C) the Company reduces Mr. Hereahnual base salary; or (D) a mat
reduction by the Company in the kind or level ofpdoyee benefits to which Mr. Herbert is entitledhiediately prior to such reduction with
result that his overall benefit package is sigaifity reduced unless such failure to continue a,ptalicy, practice or arrangement pertair
all plan participants generally. As a conditionMo. Herbert receiving any payments or benefits up@ntermination of his employment
good reason, Mr. Herbert shall have executed alideded (and not revoked) a release of any andlalins, suits, or causes of action ag:
the Company and its affiliates in form reasonalugeptable to the Company.

The agreement also provides that as a conditidgheotonsummation of a USA Transaction (as defimetthé agreement), the successor t
Company'’s business or assets would agree to assodiperform Mr. Herberd' employment agreement. If any such successor wmildo sc
Mr. Herberts employment would terminate on the date of consatiom of the USA Transaction, and the Company waalg to Mr. Herbert
lump sum equal to two times his base salary onedorb the termination of his employment, all unedstestricted stock awards and s
options would become immediately vested, andsatast, for a period of two years would continu@rtavide Mr. Herbert with health, life a
disability benefits substantially similar to thoshich he is receiving immediately prior to the dateermination.

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. Herbert egdeinto an amendment to the employment agreeraetamendment extended the t
of Mr. Herberts employment with the Company from September 3Q22mtil June 30, 2014. In connection with the admeent, and i
recognition of his dedicated and valuable serviche Company and extending the term of his empétragreement, Mr. Herbert was iss
75,000 shares of common stock under the 2010 Stmeitive Plan which vest as follows: 25,000 oniAp4, 2011; 25,000 on April 14, 201
and 25,000 on April 14, 2013.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Hedrgdred into a second amendment to his employngneement. The amendm
eliminated the provisions of his prior agreemeniclhobligated the Company to pay any excise tatgbatable to any excess paract
payments which would be received by Mr. Herbertruite occurrence of a USA Transaction as well asGbmpanys related obligation

make tax gross up payments. The new agreemenstaiea that the premiums for Mr. Herbersupplemental long term disability policy be
paid by the Company would now be included in hig@gand be taxable to him. In exchange for elirmgahe excise tax and related gros
provisions, the Company issued an aggregate o000Ghares of common stock to Mr. Herbert undestidsk incentive plans which vest
follows: 33,333 on the date the agreement was didpyeMr. Herbert and the Company; 33,333 on th& finniversary of the date of signi
and 33,334 on the second anniversary of the datigoing.

On November 30, 2011, the Company and Mr. Herldred into an Amended and Restated EmploymentNamdCompetition Agreeme
that replaced his prior employment agreement with Company. The agreement provides for an iniahtcontinuing through January
2013, which is automatically renewed for conse@utime year periods unless terminated by eitherHdrbert or the Company upon at ¢
ninety days notice prior to the end of the initedm or any one year extension thereof. The agretommtinues the existing compensation
fringe benefits received by Mr. Herbert under Setf of his prior employment agreement except (dtis base salary is $341,227 whic
equal to the base salary under his prior employragntement plus an amount equal to the cost tcCtrapany of the car allowance
supplemental disability insurance coverage provittletiim under his prior employment agreement; tfig car allowance and suppleme
disability insurance coverage that had been pravidehim under his prior employment agreement Hagen discontinued; and (iii) he
eligible for a cash bonus as described in the semntence. The agreement provides for the paymewit.tblerbert of a cash bonus of $30,0C
the Company would achieve all of the minimum thoddhperformance target goals under the Fiscal Y842 Performance Share Plan
$50,000 if the Company would achieve all of thgéamperformance goals under the plan, and of $05f0hie Company would achieve all
the maximum distinguished performance target goadker the plan.
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The agreement requires Mr. Herbert to devote Higifne and attention to the business and affairthe Company, and obligates him na
engage in any investments or activities which waudchpete with the Company during the term of thee@gent and for a period of two ye
thereafter. The Company has agreed to pay the presifor a term life insurance policy in the amoof$1,500,000 on the life of Mr. Herb
while he is employed by the Company. Mr. Herbesg tie right to designate the beneficiary of thegyol

The agreement also provides that if Mr. Herbert ba@rminate his employment with the Company foodaeason (as defined in

agreement), or if the Company would terminate hipleyment without cause (as defined in the agreémenif the Company would provi
Mr. Herbert with a notice of norenewal of his employment agreement, then the Casnpeuld pay to him a lump sum equal to two timés
base salary on or before the termination of hisleympent. The term good reason as defined in theeagent, includes: (A) a material breac
the terms of the agreement by the Company; (Byagsignment by the Company to Mr. Herbert of dutieany way materially inconsiste
with his authorities, duties, or responsibilitiesr, a material reduction or alteration in the natorestatus of his authority, duties,
responsibilities as the Chief Executive Officertioé Company; (C) the Company reduces Mr. Herbextinual base salary; or (D) a mat
reduction by the Company in the kind or level ofpdoyee benefits to which Mr. Herbert is entitledhiediately prior to such reduction with
result that his overall benefit package is sigaffity reduced unless such failure to continue a,ptalicy, practice or arrangement pertair
all plan participants generally. As a conditionMo. Herbert receiving any payments or benefits ugmtermination of his employment
good reason, Mr. Herbert shall have executed atideded (and not revoked) a release of any andlaims, suits, or causes of action ag:
the Company and its affiliates in form reasonalugeptable to the Company.

The agreement also provides that as a conditidgheotonsummation of a USA Transaction (as defimetthé agreement), the successor t
Company’s business or assets would agree to assudperform Mr. Herberd’ employment agreement. If any such successor wmildo sc
Mr. Herberts employment would terminate on the date of consatiom of the USA Transaction, and the Company waalg to Mr. Herbert
lump sum equal to two times his base salary oretork the termination of his employment.

David M. DeMedio

On April 12, 2005, Mr. DeMedio and the Company esdeinto an employment agreement pursuant to wh&hvas employed as the Ci
Financial Officer of the Company. The agreementiiteg Mr. DeMedio to devote his full time and atten to the business and affairs of
Company, and obligates him not to engage in angstments or activities which would compete with @@mpany during the term of 1
agreement and for a period of one year theredftethe event that a USA Transaction (as definetham agreement) shall occur, then
DeMedio has the right to terminate his agreemenh9 days notice to the Company.

On September 24, 2009, the Company agreed to olaipay the premiums for a term life insurancécgah the amount of $750,000 on
life of Mr. DeMedio while he is employed by the Cpamy. Mr. DeMedio has the right to designate theefieiary of the policy. The Compa
has agreed to obtain and pay the premiums for plesuental long term disability policy covering MdeMedio over and above the exisi
longterm group disability plan of the Company. If halslbecome disabled while employed by the Compdmg,policy would provide fc
monthly disability coverage of up to 65% of his rtidp base compensation payable to age 65 or déaihr. DeMedio’s employment with tt
Company would be terminated without cause, the Gomas agreed, at its cost, to continue to proMdeDeMedio with health insuran
benefits substantially similar to those which hedeeiving immediately prior to the date of terntioa for a one year period following st
termination.

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMedio emteinto an additional amendment to the employnagreement. The agreem
extended the term of Mr. DeMed®employment with the Company from June 30, 201l dune 30, 2014, and will automatically conti
from year to year thereafter unless terminatedfabeoend of the original term or any such one yeaewal period by the Company or
DeMedio by at least 96ays notice. In connection with the amendment,iamdcognition of his dedicated and valuable serticthe Compar
and extending the term of his employment agreenMntPeMedio was issued 25,000 shares of commorckatader the 2010 Stock Incent
Plan which vest or vested as follows: 8,333 on Kptj 2011; 8,333 on April 14, 2012; and 8,334 qwiAl4, 2013.

Effective July 1, 2011, Mr. DeMedio’s annual baakasy was increased to $220,000.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. DeMeutiered into another amendment to his employmemeagent pursuant to which |
DeMedio was granted an aggregate of 25,000 shdresnamon stock as a bonus for his performance dutie last six months of the 2(
fiscal year which vest as follows: 8,333 on theedaitsigning the amendment; 8,333 on the first\amsiary of such signing date; and 8,33.
the second anniversary of such signing date. MM&o also agreed that the premiums for his supetgai long term disability policy bei
paid by the Company would now be included in hig@gand be taxable to him.
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Cary Sagady

On July 2, 2008, the Company and Mr. Sagady entatecan employment agreement pursuant to whictCin@pany continued to employ !
Sagady as a Senior Vice President, Product Developfor a one-year term. Mr. Sagaslgmployment with the Company shall automatic
continue for consecutive one-year periods unlesaitated by either party upon notice of at leastd@gs prior to the end of each oyea
extension. Effective January 1, 2011, Mr. Sagadyase salary has been $192,500 per annum. Iricald¥ir. Sagady is eligible to earn
annual discretionary bonus in the maximum amou®086 of his annual base salary based upon hismpeafice. Mr. Sagady is also entitle
be reimbursed by the Company for all reasonableeesgs incurred by him in connection with his empiewt duties. Upon renewal of
employment agreement in April 2009, Mr. Sagady wased an additional 5,000 shares of common stoakvested quarterly in fiscal y
2010. Mr. Sagady is also entitled to be coveredlbgtandard fringe and employee benefits maddablaito other employees of the Compi
including medical and dental insurance, paid vacatind holidays, a 401(k) plan and a ldagn disability plan. The agreement requires
Sagady to devote his full time and attention tolibeiness and affairs of the Company, and obligaitasnot to engage in any investment
activities which would compete with the Companyidgithe term of the agreement and for a periodhef year thereafter.

Michael Lawlor

On June 7, 2010, the Company and Mr. Lawlor enteriedan employment agreement pursuant to whictCibrapany employed Mr. Lawlor
a Senior Vice President, Sales and Business Deweopthrough June 30, 2011. The Company issuedrtd 8vlor an incentive bonus
$10,000 upon the signing of his employment agre¢raed on the renewal of the agreement, on Apr,1, Mr. Lawlor was issued 10,(
shares of common stock. Mr. Lawlor's employmenthwtihte Company shall automatically continue for esusive onegear periods unle
terminated by either party upon notice of at l&dstlays prior to the end of each gremr extension. In addition, Mr. Lawlor is eligitite ear
an annual discretionary bonus in the maximum amaoiirt00% of his annual base salary based upon éif®nmance. Mr. Lawlor is al:
entitled to be reimbursed by the Company for akmable expenses incurred by him in connectioln g employment duties. Mr. Lawlol
also entitled to be covered by all standard fringd employee benefits made available to other grapkof the Company, including med
and dental insurance, paid vacation and holiday§14k) plan and a longerm disability plan. The agreement requires Mmwvloa to devote hi
full time and attention to the business and affafrthe Company, and obligates him not to engagmininvestments or activities which wo
compete with the Company during the term of theagrent and for a period of one year thereafter.

On April 27, 2012, the Company and Mr. Lawlor eatkinto the first amendment to the employment ages#. The agreement extended
term of Mr. Lawlors employment with the Company from June 30, 2012 dune 30, 2013, and will automatically contirfoem year to ye:
thereafter unless terminated as of the end of tigénal term or any such one year renewal periodhieyCompany or Mr. Lawlor by at least 60
days notice. In connection with the amendment, IMmvlor shall receive a base salary of $179,800ygar and an incentive bonus of 20,
shares of common stock which vest as follows: 58@yes on September 30, 2012; 5,000 shares omibec@1, 2012; 5,000 shares on M:
31, 2013; and 5,000 shares on June 30, 2013.

George R. Jensen, Jr.

On September 24, 2009, Mr. Jensen, the Compdoyimer Chief Executive Officer, and the Companteeed into an Amended and Rest.
Employment Agreement which replaced his prior emplent agreement. The Agreement extended the tedr.odensers employment wit
the Company from June 30, 2011 until September28@2. Mr. Jensen was granted 30,000 shares of constock under the 2008 St
Incentive Plan which vested as follows: 10,000 @toBer 1, 2009; 10,000 on April 1, 2010; and 10,68Geptember 30, 2010.

The agreement continued Mr. Jensebase salary at $365,000 per annum. The Companggdraed to obtain and pay the premiums for a
life insurance policy in the amount of $2,000,000tbe life of Mr. Jensen while he is employed by @ompany. Mr. Jensen has the rigl
designate the beneficiary of the policy. The Conyplaais agreed to obtain and pay the premiums fapplemental long term disability poli
covering Mr. Jensen over and above the existing-tenm group disability plan of the Company.
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The agreement also provides that if Mr. Jensen dvéeiminate his employment with the Company for dj@eason (as defined in -
agreement), or if the Company would terminate nipleyment without cause (as defined in the agreémtren the Company would pay
him a lump sum equal to two times his base salargrdbefore the termination of his employment athdiavested restricted stock awards
stock options would immediately become vested.dditéon, upon any such termination of Mr. Jenseemployment, the Company has agr
at its cost, for a period of two years, to contibm@rovide Mr. Jensen with health, life and difgbbenefits substantially similar to those wt
he had been receiving immediately prior to the ddteermination. The term good reason as definetthénagreement, includes: (A) a mate
breach of the terms of the Agreement by the CompéBlythe assignment by the Company to Mr. Jendeduties in any way material
inconsistent with his authorities, duties, respbitiies, and status, as the Chief Executive Officethe Company, or a material reductiol
alteration in the nature or status of his authodiyties, or responsibilities; (C) the Company m@uMr. Jenser’annual base salary; or (C
material reduction by the Company in the kind eeleof employee benefits to which Mr. Jensen istledtimmediately prior to such reduct
with the result that his overall benefit packageignificantly reduced unless such failure to comé a plan, policy, practice or arranger
pertains to all plan participants generally. As andition to Mr. Jensen receiving any payments anefiss upon his termination of |
employment for good reason, Mr. Jensen shall haeewted and delivered (and not revoked) a relehaayand all claims, suits, or cause
action against the Company and its affiliates imfeeasonably acceptable to the Company.

The agreement also provides that upon the occuereha USA Transaction, the Company will issue to 3&nsen 140,000 shares of com
stock subject to adjustment for stock splits or borations (the “Jensen Shared)r. Jensen is not required to pay any additionakateratiol
for the Jensen Shares. At the time of any USA Taeatisn, all of the Jensen Shares are automaticelgmed to be issued and outstan
immediately prior to any USA Transaction, and anditied to be treated as any other issued and andsig shares of common stocl
connection with such USA Transaction. The JenseareShare irrevocable and fully vested, representirmonditional obligation of tt
Company, and will not be affected by the terminatid Mr. Jensen’s employment with the Company foy eason whatsoever.

The term USA Transaction is defined as (i) the &itjon of fifty-one percent or more of the then outstanding vatew@rities entitled to vc
generally in the election of Directors of the Compéy any person, entity or group, or (ii) the ap@l by the shareholders of the Compar
a reorganization, merger, consolidation, liquidatior dissolution of the Company, or the sale, dfan lease or other disposition of all
substantially all of the assets of the Companyjidra change in the composition of the Board afddtors of the Company over a periot
twelve (12) months or less such that the contindiingctors fail to constitute a majority of the Bda

On April 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. Jensen edtérto an amendment to the employment agreeméetamendment extended the t
of Mr. Jensers employment with the Company from September 3@22ntil June 30, 2014. In connection with the admeent, Mr. Jens¢
was issued 125,000 shares of common stock und&20th@ Stock Incentive Plan which vest as follows:666 on April 14, 2011; 41,667
April 14, 2012; and 41,667 on April 14, 2013.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Jemgered into an amended and restated employmentmagrd, as well as the Jensen S
Agreement described below. The new employment aggae continued substantially all of the previousnte and conditions of his pr
employment agreement other than the provisionsele the Jensen Shares. The new agreement dicbntibhue the provisions of his pr
agreement which obligated the Company to pay anisexaxes attributable to any excess parachutegatg which would be received by |
Jensen upon the occurrence of a USA Transactiomedisas the Compang’ related obligation to make tax gross up paymerite. nev
agreement also stated that the premiums for Misele supplemental long term disability policy beingdohy the Company would now
included in his wages and be taxable to him. Irherge for modifying the excise tax and related §igs provisions, the Company issuet
aggregate of 150,000 shares of common stock toJemsen under its stock incentive plans which vedsiohows: 50,000 on the date

agreement was signed by Mr. Jensen and the ComB®@00 on the first anniversary of the date ohisig; and 50,000 on the sect
anniversary of the date of signing.

On September 27, 2011, the Company and Mr. Jerisereatered into a new agreement (the “Jensen $tgokement”)which contained tt
provisions relating to the issuance by the Comganyr. Jensen of the Jensen Shares which had m#yibeen set forth in his employm
agreement. The provisions of Mr. Jenseprior employment agreement which required the Gy to pay any excise taxes attributable ti
excess parachute payments attributable to the d&Sisares as well as the related obligation to niakeross up payments have been ret:
in the Jensen Stock Agreement and continue to apghe Jensen Shares.
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On October 14, 2011, the Company and Mr. Jensemrezhinto a Separation Agreement and Release $pdration Agreement’Pursuant t
the Separation Agreement, Mr. Jensen resigned asrtdn, Chief Executive Officer and as a Directbthe Company, effective immediate
The Separation Agreement states that the Compaalymiovide Mr. Jensen with (i) a lump sum paymeh$365,000 which is equal to ¢
yeals base salary subject to applicable payroll andwithholding; (i) a lump sum payment of $17,87%hieh is equal to one year'ca
allowance subject to applicable payroll and taxhtwitiding; (iii) a lump sum payment of $28,077 whishattributable to Mr. Jensenunuse
vacation subject to applicable payroll and tax tding; (iv) group medical and dental insuranceecage for one year at no cost to
Jensen; (v) the 41,667 shares of the Commaggmmon stock which were awarded to Mr. Jensenommection with the signing of
amendment to his employment agreement in April 281d which would not have otherwise vested untilil&¥012; and (vi) the 50,000 sha
of the Companys common stock which were awarded to Mr. Jenseroimmection with the signing of his amended andatedtemployme
agreement in September 2011 and which would no¢ loiverwise vested until September 2012. The SeparAgreement provides that 1
confidentiality and restrictive covenant provisiafdMr. Jensers September 2011 amended and restated employnreenzgnt and the Jen:
Stock Agreement shall remain in full force and efffan accordance with their terms. Except for tlagrpents and benefits provided in
Seperation Agreement, Mr. Jensen is not entitleany further payments or benefits from the Compacjuding any payments, awards
benefits provided for under his employment agredmén Jensen has released the Company and cettsn parties from and against any
all claims he may have, subject to any rights ttemnification or coverage which he may have unagrexisting insurance policies of -
Company, the bylaws of the Company, or the existidgmnification agreement between him and the GompMr. Jensen has also agree
certain standstill provisions for a three year @eri

Potential Payments Upon Termination Or Change Of Cotrol

As described above, each of the employment agresnoérour executive officers include provisions the payment and/or the provisior
benefits to the executives upon termination of ewyplent under certain conditions or if a successdhé Company business or assets d
not agree to assume and perform his employmenéeagnet as a condition to the consummation of a US#daction.

The term USA Transaction means: (i) the acquisitidriifty-one percent or more of the then outstanding vosi@curities entitled to vc
generally in the election of Directors of the Compdy any person, entity or group, or (ii) the apg@l by the shareholders of the Compar
a reorganization, merger, consolidation, liquidatior dissolution of the Company, or the sale, dfan lease or other disposition of all
substantially all of the assets of the Companyjidra change in the composition of the Board afddtors of the Company over a periot
twelve (12) months or less such that the contindiingctors fail to constitute a majority of the Bda

If Mr. Herbert's employment had been terminated as of June 3@, @@en the closing price per share was $1.43)y(inim for good reasa
or (ii) by the Company without cause, or (iii) ifsaccessor to the Compasybusiness or assets had not agreed to assumesdondchphis
employment agreement as a condition to the constimmef a USA Transaction, then Mr. Herbert woultve been entitled to receive: (i
cash bonus in the amount of $50,000 as if USA Iuhitaed all of the target performance goals under2012 Performance Share Plan dt
the fiscal year; (b) an aggregate cash paymenwigkthis annual base salary or $682,454; and (Gganegate of 91,667 shares previo
issued to him under his employment agreement, whiobld become automatically vested as of the déterination, with a value
$132,917.

As described above, if Mr. DeMed®Employment with the Company would be terminatethe Company without cause, the Company w
pay health insurance premiums for a one year pdolbalving termination in the aggregate amount 86824. The aforesaid premium amc
is based on an estimated monthly premium of $1,402.

Compensation Committee Interlocks And Insider Partctipation

During the fiscal year 2012, Jack Price, StevemBart and Peter Michel served at various times eslpers of the Compensation Commi
of our board of directors. No member of the Compéna Committee was an employee or former emplamfeeur Company or any of @
subsidiaries, or had any relationship with us reggidisclosure herein.

During the 2012 fiscal year, none of our executifficers served as: (i) a member of the compensat@mmmittee (or other committee of
board of directors performing equivalent functiamsin the absence of any such committee, theeehtiard of directors) of another entity,
of whose executive officers served on our Compéms&ommittee; (ii) a director of another entityyeoof whose executive officers servec
our Compensation Committee; or (iii) a member &f tompensation committee (or other committee ofltbard of directors performii
equivalent functions or, in the absence of any st@mhmittee, the entire board of directors) of apothntity, one of whose executive offic
served as a director on our board of directors.
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Compensation Of Directors

Members of the Board of Directors receive cashequity compensation for serving on the board ofators, as determined from time to t
by the Compensation Committee with subsequent apptbereof by the board of directors.

Director Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the compensation eamepdid in cash by the Company to nemployee Directors during the fiscal year er
June 30, 2012.

Fees Earned Stock Award:

or Paid in
Name Cash($)(3 ($)(4) Total($)
Deborah G. Arnolc
Q) $ 10,83! $ 9,40C $ 20,23t
Steven D. Barnha $ 75,000 $ - $ 75,00(
Joel Brooks $ 30,00¢ $ - $ 30,00(
Steve G. llles(1 $ 8,33: % 3,13: % 11,46¢
Douglas M. Luric  $ 20,00( $ - $ 20,00(
Albin F. Moschnel $ 333 % - % 3,33:
Frank A. Petito, IlI
(D) $ 10,83! $ 9,40C $ 20,23t
Jack E. Prict $ 50,00 $ - % 50,00(
Bradley M. Tirpak
(2 $ 22,50 $ - $ 22,50(
Q) Appointed as a Director effective rebry 3, 2012.
(2) Resigned as a Director effective Nha2¢2012.
3) During fiscal year ended June, 3@,2@&nd included in the above table, we paid tHewviing fees during the fiscal year:

e Director: each of Messrs. Barnhart, Brooks, Luma &rice received $20,000. Mr. Tirpak received 826, Messrs. llles al
Petito, and Ms. Arnold each received $8,333. Mrshkhmer received $3,333, which he elected to redeiv@ommon Stoc
and was issued 2,299 shat

e Lead Independent Director: Mr. Barnhart receive8,820. Mr. Barnhart elected to receive this in Camn$tock and wi
issued 19,175 share

e Audit Committee: each of Messrs. Barnhart, Broakd Brice received $10,00
e Compensation Committee: each of Messrs. BarnhdrPaice received $10,000. Mr. Petito received 32,

e Nominating Committee: each of Messrs. Barnhart Bride received $10,000. Mr. Tirpak received $7,50d Ms. Arnoli
received $2,50(

4 Amounts represent the aggregate fair value of Com8tock granted to the members of our Board of dims during the year enc
June 30, 2012. No stock options were granted tonda@bers of our Board of Directors during the yaated June 30, 201
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| tem 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaDwners and Management and Related Shareholder Matts.
Common Stock

The following table sets forth, as of June 30, 20h2 beneficial ownership of the common stock atheof the Companyg’ directors ar
executive officers, the other employees named énstmmary compensation table set forth above, #sawdy the Company’ directors ar
executive officers as a group. Except as set foelow, the Company is not aware of any beneficiaher of more than five percent of
common stock. Except as otherwise indicated, theg@2my believes that the beneficial owners of themon stock listed below, based
information furnished by such owners, have solegtment and voting power with respect to such shateject to community property le
where applicable:

Number of Shares
Common Stock

Beneficially Percent of
Name and Address of Beneficial Owne Owned(2) Class
Deborah G. Arnolc 10,00((3) *

9704 Clos du Lac Circl

Loomis, CA 9563(

Steven D. Barnha 151,36:(4) *
1143 N. Sheridan Roe

Lake Forest, IL 6004

Joel Brooks 35,00((5) *
303 George Street, Suite 1

New Brunswick, New Jersey 089

David M. DeMedia 108,4846) *
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 1¢

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!

Stephen P. Herbe 350,6047) 1.07%
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 1¢

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!

Steve G. llles 708,94¢8) 2.17%
1926 Roadrunner Avent

Thousand Oaks, CA 913.

Michael Lawlor 35,55%(9) *
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 1¢

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!

Douglas M. Luric 76,90410) *
2005 Market Street, Suite 31

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 191

Albin F. Moschnel 407,10((11) 1.24%
660 Northcroft Cour

Lake Forest, lllinois 6004

Frank A. Petito, IlI 20,00((12) *
1111 Elmwood Avenu

Wilmette, IL 60091

Jack E. Prict 10,00((13) *
12942 NE 24th Stret

Bellevue, WA 9800!

Cary Sagad: 5,05( *
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 1¢

Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!

S.A.\V.E. Partners, IV, LL( 2,550,60(14) 7.80%
500 West Putnam Avenue, Suite ¢

Greenwich, Connecticut 068.

All Directors and Executive Officel 1,878,40. 5.71%
As a Group (10 person

* Less than one percent (1%)
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(1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordancthwhe rules of the Securities and Exchange Conionisand derives from eith
voting or investment power with respect to secesitiShares of Common Stock issuable upon conves$ithre Series A Preferred Sta
or shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercigeaofints and options currently exercisable, or@sable within 60 days of June
2012, are deemed to be beneficially owned for psepdiereot

(2) The percentage of common stock beneficially owsdshised on 32,687,890 shares outstanding as oB0u2812

(3) Includes 10,000 shares issued to Ms. Arnold asreentployee director of the Company as of April 1, 2@thich vest or vested
follows: 3,333 shares on April 1, 2012, 3,333 shame April 1, 2013 and 3,334 shares on April 1,21

(4) Includes 32,538 shares underlying common stockamésr Includes 10,000 shares issued to Mr. Barrdsag noremployee director 1
the Company as of June 30, 2011 which vest or gdemdollows: 3,333 shares on June 30, 2011, FBass on June 30, 2012 and 3
shares on June 30, 20:

(5) Includes 10,000 shares issued to Mr. Brooks asreentployee director of the Company as of June 301 2@ich vest or vested
follows: 3,333 shares on June 30, 2011, 3,333 stardune 30, 2012 and 3,334 shares on June 38,

(6) Includes 2,333 shares underlying stock optionduttes 25,000 shares of common stock issued to Mk éalio on April 14, 2011 whic
vest or vested as follows: 8,333 on April 14, 208,833 on April 14, 2012; and 8,334 on April 14,130and 25,000 shares of comr
stock issued as of September 27, 2011 which veststed as follows: 8,333 on September 27, 20BB3opn September 27, 2012;
8,334 on September 27, 20:

(7) Includes 32,010 shares of common stock beneficadiged by Mr. Herbers child, 27,440 shares of common stock benefic@aiyed b
his spouse and 6,000 shares underlying vested sfmains. Includes 75,000 shares of common stasikeis$ to Mr. Herbert on April 1
2011 which vest or vested as follows: 25,000 onilApt, 2011; 25,000 on April 14, 2012; and 25,000 April 14, 2013, and 100,0
shares of common stock issued as of September@32, &hich vest or vested as follows: 33,333 on &eper 27, 2011; 33,333
September 27, 2012; and 33,334 on September 23,

(8) Includes 10,000 shares issued to Mr. llles as aemoployee director of the Company as of April 1, 2®dhich vest or vested as follo\
3,333 shares on April 1, 2012, 3,333 shares onlApi2013 and 3,334 shares on April 1, 2014. Inetudi26 shares underlying Serie
Convertible Preferred Stock, and 34,420 sharesmwihcon stock underlying common stock warra

(9) Includes 20,000 shares issued to Mr. Lawlor in emtion with the First Amendment to his Employmemd &lonCompetition Agreeme
dated as of April 27, 2012, which vest as follow£00 on September 30, 2012; 5,000 on Decembe2®@2,; 5,000 on March 31, 20:
and 5,000 on June 30, 2013.

(20) Includes 3,000 shares underlying stock optionduties 10,000 shares issued to Mr. Lurio as aerapioyee director of the Company
of June 30, 2011 which vest or vested as follow833 shares on June 30, 2011, 3,333 shares or30u2®12 and 3,334 shares on .
30, 2013

(11) Includes 132,100 shares underlying common stockamts.

(12) Includes 10,000 shares issued to Mr. Petito asreemployee director of the Company as of April 1, 20thich vest or vested
follows: 3,333 shares on April 1, 2012, 3,333 shame April 1, 2013 and 3,334 shares on April 1,42

(13) Includes 10,000 shares issued to Mr. Price as aengsloyee director of the Company as of June 301 20hkich vest or vested
follows: 3,333 shares on June 30, 2011, 3,333 st@aregJune 30, 2012 and 3,334 shares on June 3B,

(14) Based upon an amended Schedule 13D filed with gueir8ies and Exchange Commission on June 8, 2022V.E. Partners, IV, LL
(“SAVE") is a limited liability company, the manayj member of which is Locke Partners | LLC, a lexdifiability company (“Locke}.
Each of Bradley M. Tirpak and Craig W. Thomas arémanaging members of Locke and, by virtue of thelmtionship with Locke, she
the power to vote and dispose of the shares béalbfiowned by SAVE

Preferred Stock

There were no shares of preferred stock that weneficially owned as of June 30, 2012 by the Comifsadirectors, executive officers, or
other employees named in the Summary Compensatible Bet forth above.
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| tem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdmns, and Director Independence.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the g2zoy incurred professional fees of approximate4$@00 in connection with legal servi
rendered to the Company by Lurio & Associates, PaClaw firm of which Douglas M. Lurio, a Directaluring the 2012 fiscal year,
President. Of such amount of professional feesrcaqapately $236,000 was attributable to issuesiragisrom the proxy contest and rela
litigation, and approximately $103,000 was attrdhi¢ to issues arising from the Audit Committeeihvestigation and the resignation of
former CEO.

REVIEW, APPROVAL OR RATIFICATION OF TRANSACTIONS WI TH RELATED PERSONS

Our policy is that all related party transactiom$iich are required to be disclosed under Item 40Reagulation SK promulgated under tl
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are to bewedeand approved by the Audit Committee for anysjiids conflicts of interest. This policy
evidenced in the Charter of the Audit Committe¢hef Board of Directors of the Company.

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The Board of Directors has determined that Deb@aArnold, Steven D. Barnhart, Joel Brooks, AlbinMoschner, Frank A. Petito, Ill, Je
E. Price, William J. Reilly, Jr., and William J. I8ch, which members constitute a majority of therently serving Board of Directors,
independent in accordance with the applicablenlistitandards of The NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc.

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit ConaeittNominating Committee, and Compensation Comeitte

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors praieconsists of Mr. Brooks (Chairman), Mr. Barnhaur. Price and Mr. Reilly. The Auc
Committee recommends the engagement of the Compamgépendent accountants and is primarily resptagor approving the servic
performed by the Company’s independent accountdotsreviewing and evaluating the Compasydccounting principles, reviewing
independence of independent auditors, and reviethie@dequacy and effectiveness of the Compaimyernal controls. The Audit Commit
operates pursuant to a charter that was last ardeamttb restated by the Board of Directors on Aptil 2006, a copy of which is accessible
the Company’s website, www.usatech.com

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Direcfmesently consists of Mr. Price (Chairman), Marfhart, Mr. Moschner and Mr. Pet
The Board of Directors has determined that eadheturrent members of the Compensation Commistémdiependent in accordance with
applicable listing standards of The Nasdaq Stockksta LLC. The Committee reviews and recommends pmeation and compensali
changes for the executive officers of the Compang administers the Compamy'stock option and restricted stock grant planse
Compensation Committee operates pursuant to aechthet was adopted by the Board in September 200@py of which is accessible on
Company’s website, www.usatech.com

The Nominating Committee of the Board of Directpresently consists of Ms. Arnold (Chairman), Mrrizart, Mr. Price, Mr. Reilly and NV
Schoch. The Board of Directors has determined éhah of the current members of the Nominating Cdtemiis independent in accorda
with the applicable listing standards of The Nas&tgck Market, LLC. The Committee recommends to enére Board of Directors f
selection any nominees for director. The Nominatdammmittee operates pursuant to a charter thatadaepted by the Board of Directors
November 3, 2009, a copy of which is accessibléherCompan’s website, www.usatech.com
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| tem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and 2@&$ in connection with services rendered by Md@y LLP were as set forth below:

Fiscal
2011

$ 190,00(
24,00(
5,10C

Fiscal

2012
Audit Fees $ 197,50(
Audit-Related Fee 20,50(
Tax Fees -
All Other Fees -
Total $ 218,00(

$ 219,10(

Audit fees consisted of fees for the audit of oonwal financial statements and review of quartéifgncial statements as well as serv
normally provided in connection with statutory amdgjulatory filings or engagements, consents angtasse with and reviews of Comp:
documents filed with the Securities and Exchange@ission.

Audit related fees were primarily incurred in coati@en with our equity offerings, and fees in conti@t with attending the annual sharehol;

meeting.

Tax fees related to the review of our analysishefttiming and extent to which the Company canagtifuture tax deductions in any year, wil
may be limited by provisions of the Internal Rever@ode regarding changes in ownership of corporaijoe. IRS Code Section 382).

AUDIT COMMITTEE PRE-APPROVAL POLICY

The Audit Committee’s policy is to pre-approve alldit and permissible naidit services provided by the independent regdtgrublic
accounting firm on a case-by-case basis.
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P ART IV

| tem 15. Exhibits , Financial Statement Schedules.

Exhibit
Number
3.1

3.11

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.14

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

412

4.13

Description
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatiorhef Company filed January 26, 2004 (Incorporatedefigrence to Exhik
3.1.19 to Form 1-QSB filed on February 12, 200¢

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Articlelnodrporation of the Company filed on March 1702{Incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 3.1.1 to Forr-1 Registration Statement No. -124078).

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Artidelmamrporation of the Company filed on December, 280¢
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1.2 to F&-1 Registration Statement No. ~130992).

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Articlemobdrporation of the Company filed on July 25, 20(ncorporate
by reference to Exhibit 3.1.3 to Form-K filed September 23, 200¢

Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Articlesnoorporation of the Company filed on March 6,08
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1.4 to FA€-K filed September 23, 200¢

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Comp#mgorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) to FAOQ/A filed or
February 22, 2010

Form of Warrant No. SAC-001 issued to S.AC@pital Associates, LLC (Incorporated by referetecExhibit 4.2 to Form 8-
K filed on March 15, 2007

Registration Rights Agreement between the Compamy 8.A.C. Capital Associates, LLC dated March 1007
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to For-K filed on March 15, 2007

Warrant No.CRO01 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Cranshire @&pL.P. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4f
Form &-1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR02 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Freestone Athge Partners, LP (Incorporated by referent
Exhibit 4.2 of Form -1 filed March 31, 2011’

Warrant No.CRW03 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Iroquois Magtend Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to Exhib ¢
Form &-1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR04 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Kingsbrook ogpgnities Master Fund LP (Incorporated by refes
to Exhibit 4.4 of Form -1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CRX05 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Hudson Bay tétaBund Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to Ex
4.5 of Form -1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CR06 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Cowen Overseasstment LP (Incorporated by reference to Ex
4.6 of Form -1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CRO7 dated March 16, 2011 in favor of Ramius Sdtptity Fund LP (Incorporated by reference to Ex
4.7 of Form -1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CRA01 dated March 17, 2011 in favor of Chardan Chptarkets, LLC (Incorporated by reference to Ext
4.8 of Form -1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CRA02 dated March 17, 2011 in favor of Jonathan Salee¢Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 ofrf
S-1 filed March 31, 2011

Warrant No.CRA-003 dated March 17, 201fairor of Joseph Reda (Incorporated by referendextobit 4.10 of Form S-
filed March 31, 2011)

Warrant No.CRA-004 dated March 17, 201fauor of Adam Selkin (Incorporated by referencdtdibit 4.11 of Form S
filed March 31, 2011)
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10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16**

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

Agreement of Lease between Pennswood Spring MibAsites, as landlord, and the Company, as tedatgd Septemb
2002, and the Rider thereto (Incorporated by refeeo Exhibit 10.21 to Form -KSB filed on September 28, 200.

Agreement of Lease between Deerfield Corporate é2ehtAssociates LP, as landlord, and the Companyemant, date
March 2003 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibi22do Form 1-KSB filed on September 28, 200

Amendment to Office Space Lease dated as of Apr20D5 by and between the Company and Deerfielgp@@ate Cente
Associates, LP. (Incorporated by reference to Ekhib19.1 to Form -1 Registration Statement No. -124078).

Employment and No@empetition Agreement between the Company and DaWidDeMedio dated April 12, 20l
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to F&-1 Registration Statement No. -124078).

First Amendment to Employment and N@wmpetition Agreement between the Company and DBlideMedio date
May 11, 2006 (Incorporated by reference to ExHibi3 to Form 1-Q filed on May 15, 2006

Option Certificate (No. 200) dated April 12, 2006favor of David M. DeMedio (Incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.2
to Form {1 Registration Statement No. -124078).

Option Certificate (No. 201) dated May 11, 2006awor of George R. Jensen, Jr. (Incorporated bgreefice to Exhibit 10.:
to Form 1K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 202) dated May 11, 2006awor of Stephen P. Herbert. (Incorporated by exiee to Exhibit 10.z
to Form 1K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 203) dated May 11, 2008awor of David M. DeMedio. (Incorporated by refecerto Exhibit 10.2
to Form 1K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 206) dated April 21, 2006 favor of Steven Katz. (Incorporated by referetmweé=xhibit 10.21 t
Form 1(-K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 207) dated April 21, 2006favor of Douglas M. Lurio. (Incorporated by reface to Exhibit 10.2
to Form 1K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 208) dated April 21, 2006favor of Albert Passner. (Incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.21 1
Form 1(-K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 209) dated July 20, 2006awor of Stephen W. McHugh. (Incorporated by refee to Exhibit 10.2
to Form 1K filed on September 28, 200¢

USA Technologies, Inc. 2010 Stock IncentRlan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@.Form S8 filed April 14
2011).

USA Technologies, Inc. 2011 Stock Incentlan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Form S8 filed October 2¢
2011).

USA Technologies, Inc. 2012 Stock Incentive P

Amendment to Agreement of Lease betwee®REring Mill Drive, L.P., as landlord, and the Compaas tenant, dat
January 15, 2007 (Incorporated by reference toltixh0.1 to Form 1-Q filed on February 13, 2007

Second Amendment to Agreement of Leasedset BMRSpring Mill Drive, L.P., as landlord, and the Compaas tenar
dated December 28, 2010. (Incorporated by referenEshibit 10.1 to Form 2-Q filed on January 20, 2011

Third Amendment to Agreement of Lease betwBMRSpring Mill Drive, LP as landlord, and the Compas@g, tenan
dated October 10, 2011. (Incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.1 to Form 1-Q filed on February 8, 201z

Second Amendment to Employment and Nompetition Agreement dated March 13, 2007, betwibenCompany ar
David M. DeMedio (Incorporated by reference to Eihi0.34 to Form -1 filed April 12, 2007)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Comypand each of its officers and Directors (Incogted by referent
to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 1-Q filed May 14, 2007)
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10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

First Amendment to MasterCard PayPass Particip&tgneement dated August 17, 2007 between the CompaasterCar
International Incorporated and Coca Cola Enterpriee. And Its Bottling Subsidiaries. (Incorporatadreference to Exhik
10.26 to Form 1-K filed September 27, 2007

Third Amendment to Employment and Noompetition Agreement between the Company and DividDeMedio date
September 22, 2008. (Incorporated by referencextdbf 10.29 to Form 1-K filed September 24, 200¢

Amended and Restated Employment and Glumpetition Agreement between the Company and @eBrgJensen, J
dated September 27, 2011. (Incorporated by referemExhibit 10.23 to Form -K filed September 27, 2011

Separation Agreement and Release between the CgrapdrGeorge R. Jensen, Jr., dated October 14, @@ddrporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Forr-K filed October 17, 2011

Amended and Restated Employment and Glampetition Agreement between the Company and Steph Herbert dat
September 24, 2009. (Incorporated by referencextdbf 10.31 to Form 1-K filed September 25, 200¢

Securities Purchase Agreement dated March 14, Xetdieen the Company and each of the Buyers (Incatgd b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Forn-K filed on March 14, 2011

Promotional Agreement between the Company and Mi§&A. Inc., dated October 12, 2011 (Portions @ txhibit wer:
redacted pursuant to a confidential treatment reju@ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 tostEffective
Amendment No.4 to Form-1 Registration Statement No. -1655186).

Letter from the Company to David M. DeMedio datezpt@mber 24, 2009. (Incorporated by reference tuitfix10.32 t
Form 1(-K filed September 25, 200¢

Settlement Agreement dated February 4, 2010 byasnong USA Technologies, Inc., Shareholder Advoc&tasValue
Enhancement, Bradley M. Tirpak, Craig W. Thomagsl eertain other parties (Incorporated by refereiocExhibit 10.1 ti
Form &K filed on February 5, 2010

Second Settlement Agreement dated May 19, 201ht#ymong USA Technologies, Inc., Shareholder AdiescBRor Valu
Enhancement, Bradley M. Tirpak, Craig W. ThomagePA. Michel and certain other parties (Incorpethby reference
Exhibit 99.1 to Form -K filed on June 1, 2011

Third Settlement Agreement dated March 2, 2012ray @among USA Technologies, Inc., Shareholder Adiesc&or Valu
Enhancement, Bradley M. Tirpak, Craig W. Thomas e@dain other parties (Incorporated by referemc&sthibit 99.1 ti
Form &K filed on March 5, 2012

Settlement and Release Agreement dated as of AudysP012 by and among USA Technologies, Inc., &iade
Advocates For Value Enhancement, Bradley M. Tirfizdaig W. Thomas and certain other parties (Incaisal by referen:
to Exhibit 99.1 to Form-K filed on August 16, 2012

Jensen Stock Agreement between the Company andg&&ar Jensen, Jr., dated September 27, 2011. foreded b
reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Form-K filed September 27, 2011

Second Amendment to Employment and Nompetition Agreement dated September 27, 2011dmtthe Company a
Stephen P. Herbert. (Incorporated by referencectolit 10.30 to Form 1-K filed September 27, 2011

Amended and Restated Employment and Glampetition Agreement between the Company and Steph Herbert dat
November 30, 2011. (Incorporated by reference toilix10.1 to Form -K filed December 5, 2011

Fifth Amendment to Employment and Noompetition Agreement dated as of July 1, 2011 betwthe Company and Da
M. DeMedio. (Incorporated by reference to Exhiltit3l to Form 1-K filed September 27, 2011

Sixth Amendment to Employment and Nimmpetition Agreement dated September 27, 2011 dmivthe Company a
David M. DeMedio. (Incorporated by reference to ibih10.32 to Form 1-K filed September 27, 2011
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10.39

10.40**

10.41*

21

23.1**

31.1*

31.2**

32**

Second Amendment to Office Space Lease dated a$owémber 17, 2010 by and between the Company ahdrty
Malvern, LP. (Incorporated by reference to Exhilfit2 to Form 1-Q filed on January 20, 201!

Loan and Security Agreement between tbenGany and Avidbank Corporate Finance, a divisioAvidbank, dated as of
June 21, 2012

Intellectual Property Security Agreeméetween the Company and Avidbank Corporate Finandejision of Avidbank,
dated as of June 21, 20:

List of significant subsidiaries of the Comp&aIncorporated by reference to Exhibit 21 to Fo®qt filed on March 1¢
2010).

Consent of McGladrey LLP, Independent Registerdai®hccounting Firm
Certifications of Chief Executive Officer pursudatRule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
Certifications of Chief Financial Officer pursudntRule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1!

Certifications by the Chief Executive Officer andhi€f Financial Officer pursuant to 18 USC Sectid3bQ, as adopte
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

** Filed herewith
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Item 15(a).

SCHEDULE II

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012, 2011, AND 2010

Deductions
uncollectible
Balance a Additions receivables Balance
written off,
beginning charged tc net at end
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE of period earnings of recoveries of period
June 30, 201 $ 113,000 $ (46,000 $ 42,000 $ 25,00(
June 30, 201 $ 41,000 $ 92,000 $ 20,000 $ 113,00(
June 30, 201 $ 42,000 $ (1,000 $ - $ 41,00(
Balance a Additions Deductions Balance
beginning charged t¢  Shrinkage an at end
INVENTORY of period earnings obsolescenc of period
June 30, 201 $ 628,000 $ 136,000 $ 52,000 $ 712,00(
June 30, 201 $ 741,000 $ 11,000 $ 124,000 $ 628,00(
June 30, 201 $ 596,000 $ 171,000 $ 26,000 $ 741,00(
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgjgaAct, the registrant has duly caused this refmtbe signed on its behalf by
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By: /s/ Stephen P. Herbe

Stephen P. Herbert, Chairm
and Chief Executive Office

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this repostiieen signed below by the following persons oralbeti the registrant and in the capaci
and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURES TITLE DATE
/sl Stephen P. Herbe Chairman of the Board of Directors Septemtigr2d12
Stephen P. Herbe and Chief Executive Office

(Principal Executive Officer
/s/ David M. DeMedic Chief Financial Officer (Principal Septembér, 2012
David M. DeMedic Accounting Officer)
/s/ Deborah G. Arnolt Director September 25, 2012
Deborah G. Arnolt
/sl Steven D. Barnha Director September 25, 2012
Steven D. Barnha
/sl Joel Brooks Director September 25, 2012
Joel Brooks
/s/ Albin F. Moschnel Director September 25, 2012
Albin F. Moschne!
/sl Frank A. Petito, llI Director September 25, 2012
Frank A. Petito, IlI
/sl Jack Prici Director September 25, 2012
Jack Price
/s/William J. Reilly, Jr. Director September 25, 2012

William J. Reilly, Jr.

/s/William J. Schoct Director September 25, 2012
William J. Schoct
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Exhibit 10.16
USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
2012 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

1. Purpose. The purpose of the USA Technologies, Inc. 201ZIStncentive Plan is to provide an incentive tofogees, Consultar
and Directors of the Company who are in a positioontribute materially to the lortgrm success of the Company, to increase theiresitér
the Companys welfare, and to aid in gaining the services oplayees, Consultants and Directors of outstandbilifyawho will contribute tc
the Company’s success.

2. Definitions .
2.1 “Award” means an award of Stock urttie Plan.
2.2 “Board” means the Board of DirectofdJSA.
2.3 “Codemeans the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ameR@ééerence to a specific section of the Code shellide an
successor to such section.
2.4 “Committeetneans the Compensation Committee of the Board;igedy however, that if an Award is to be made t

Employee who is an executive officer of USA or tDiaector of USA, any award to be made to any sexdcutive officer or Direct
shall also be approved by the Directors of USA.

25 “Common Stockheans USA common stock, no par value per sha®jdar other class or kind of shares of capital sty
other securities as may result from the applicatib8ection 7 hereof.

2.6 “Company” means USA and any sucaetssoeof.

2.7 “Consultant” means a consultantineté to provide bona fide services to, and whaoisam employee of USA.

2.8 “Director” means each director ofAJ&ho is not an employee of USA.

29 “Employee” means an officer or enygle of the Company including a director who is sastemployee.

2.10 “Fair Market Valuefheans, on any given date, the mean between theahidhow prices of actual sales of Common S

on the principal national securities exchange oitlwkthe Common Stock is listed on such date, aihéf Common Stock was not
listed, the average closing bid price of the stimcleach of the five trading days prior to suchedat

2.11 “Holder” means an Employee, DireapfConsultant to whom an Award is made.
2.12 “USA” means USA Technologies, IncRennsylvania corporation and any successor thereto
2.13 “1933 Act” means the Securities Ac1833, as amended.
2.14 “Plan” means the USA 2011 Stock ItieenPlan herein set forth, as amended from timinte.
2.15 “Stock” means Common Stock awardetheyCommittee under Section 6 of the Plan.
2.16 “SEC” means the United States Sdesrind Exchange Commission.
2.17 “Stock Award Agreement” means a StAekard Agreement evidencing an Award granted utiderlan.
3. Eligibility . Any Employee, Director or Consultant is eligibdereceive an Award.
4, Administration of Plan .
4.1 The Plan shall be administered amdrpreted by the Committee, which shall have &uthority to act in selectii

Employees, Directors and Consultants to whom Awarntisbe made, in determining the type and amourAwards to be granted
each such Holder, the terms and conditions of Awaadd the terms of agreements which will be entéménl with Holders il
connection with Awards.

4.2 The Committegpowers shall include, but not be limited to, plogver to determine whether, to what extent and undiex
circumstances an Award is made.
4.3 The Committee shall have the powerdopt regulations for carrying out the Plan amdniake such changes in s

regulations as it shall from time to time deem adble. The Committee shall have the power unilbyeasd without approval of
Holder to amend any existing Award in order to gayut the purposes of the Plan so long as such émemt does not deprive !
Holder of any benefit granted by the Award and aoglas the amended Award comports with the termbieflan. Amendmer
adverse to the interests of the Holder must beaygior by the Holder. Any interpretation by the Corttes of the terms and provisic
of the Plan and the administration thereof, an@etilon taken by the Committee, shall be final Bimtling on Plan participants.

5. Shares of Stock Subject to the Plan
51 Subject to adjustment as provide8eawtion 7, the total number of shares of CommaakSavailable for Awards under
Plan shall be 500,000 shares.
5.2 Any shares issued hereunder mayistpms whole or in part, of authorized and unigbshares or treasury shares. If

shares subject to any Award granted hereunderoafeited or such Award otherwise terminates withihgt issuance of such sha
the shares subject to such Award, to the exteahgfsuch forfeiture or termination, shall agairaelvailable for Awards under the Plan.



6. Stock.

An Award of Stock is a grant by the Company of acified number of shares of Common Stock to thedkeiglwhich shares may
subject to forfeiture upon the happening of spediftvents. Such an Award may be subject to theviollg terms and conditions:

6.1 An Award of Stock may be evidencgdalbStock Award Agreement. Such agreements shafbom to the requirements
the Plan and may contain such other provisione@€bmmittee shall deem advisable.

6.2 Upon determination of the numbeslwdres of Stock to be granted to the Holder, ther@ittee shall direct that a certific
or certificates representing the number of shaf€doommon Stock be issued to the Holder with theddoldesignated as the registe
owner.

6.3 The Committee may condition the gj@nan Award of Stock upon the Holdgrachievement of one or more perform

goal(s) specified in the Stock Award Agreementhd Holder fails to achieve the specified perforoegoal(s), the Committee st
not grant the Stock to the Holder, or the Holdeallsforfeit the Award of Stock and the Common Statiall be forfeited to tt
Company.

6.4 The Stock Award Agreement, if anyals specify the performance, employment or ott@rditions (including terminatic
of employment on account of death, disability,regtient or other cause) under which the Stock mdgtieited to the Company.
6.5 The Stock Award Agreement may alsotain (a) an agreement not to compete with the @@my and its subsidiaries wh
shall become effective as of the date of the goattie Award and remain in effect for a specifietipd of time following terminatic
of the Holders employment with or affiliation with the Companfjg) an agreement to cancel any employment agreerfrerge
benefit or compensation arrangement in effect betwbe Company and the Holder; and (c) an agreetoastain the confidentiali
of certain information.

7. Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization In the event of a reorganization, recapitalizatistock split, spin-off, split-off, split-
up, stock dividend, issuance of stock rights, coration of shares, merger, consolidation or anyrathange in the corporate structure of {
affecting the Common Stock, or any distributiorst@reholders other than a cash dividend, the Bstzati make appropriate adjustment in
number and kind of shares authorized by the Plahdetermines appropriate. No fractional sharestofk shall be issued pursuant to suc
adjustment, but an amount equivalent to the pomibRair Market Value attributable to any such fiaeal shares shall, where appropriate
paid in cash to the Holder.

8. Termination and Amendment. The Plan shall remain in full force and effectilterminated by the Board. The Board shall haw
power to amend, suspend or terminate the Planyatimue without the approval of the shareholdershaf Company, unless such approv.
required by applicable law, regulation or rule of &tock exchange on which the shares of CommockStee listed.

9. Form S-8.

9.1 Promptly upon the approval of thiarPby the Board of Directors of USA and the shaltéérs, the Company shall, at
cost and expense, register all of the Stock uridef 933 Act pursuant a to Form S-8 registratiotestant.

9.2 Notwithstanding anything else settfderein, an Award shall not be made to any DinecConsultant or Employee unl
such person is eligible to receive Stock which besn registered under a Forn83egistration statement. In this regard, any £
issuable to a Consultant or Director shall be iddoean individual who provided bona fide servie@®)SA and such services shall
be in connection with the offer or sale of secestin a capitataising transaction, and shall not directly or iedtly promote ¢
maintain a market for USA’s securities.

9.3 In connection with the issuance mf &tock pursuant to the Plan, USA shall at itsemse, use its best efforts to have
such Stock exempted from the registration requirégmender applicable state securities laws.
9.4 The documents incorporated by refegein Item 3 of Part Il of the Form &registration statement, and any additi

information about the Company, the Plan and the Btiministrators may be obtained, without chargenuwritten request made
the Company at 100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140, MalvPA 19355, Attn: Stephen P. Herbert, Chief ExigeuOfficer, or by callin
610-989-0340.

10. General Provisions.

10.1 The Plan shall become effective ugoapproval by the Board, subject to the appro¥dhe Plan by the shareholders of
Company at the Company’s annual meeting of shaden®held on June 28, 2012, and any adjournmemsiponement thereof.
10.2 Nothing contained in the Plan, orfamard granted pursuant to the Plan, shall confenugn Employee any right w
respect to continuance of employment by the Commanypon any Director or Consultant any right wiéspect to continuance
Board service or the consulting arrangement (asdise may be), nor interfere in any way with tlghtriof the Company to termini
such relationships at any time.

10.3 Holders shall be responsible to magpropriate provision for all taxes required towii¢hheld in connection with ai
Award. Such responsibility shall extend to all apgible federal, state, local or foreign withholditaxes. Stock Award Agreeme
evidencing Awards may contain appropriate provisitmeffect withholding, including providing foretwithholding of Stock by US
otherwise deliverable to a Holder having a Fair kaValue equal to the minimum amount requiredaanlithheld by the Compar
The Plan is not qualified under Section 401(ahefCode.

10.4 To the extent that federal laws (saglhe 1934 Act, the Code or the Employee Retineimeome Security Act of 1974)
not otherwise control, the Plan and all determoratimade and actions taken pursuant hereto shabberned by the law of t
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and construed acagisdin






Exhibit 10.40

ThisLoAaN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT is entered into as of June 21, 2012, by and betwwe@bank Corporate Finance, a divisior
Avidbank (“Bank”) and USA Technologies, Inc. (“Boxwer”).

REcITALS

Borrower wishes to obtain credit from time to tifinem Bank, and Bank desires to extend credit tor@wer. This Agreement s
forth the terms on which Bank will advance crediBorrower, and Borrower will repay the amountsmyvio Bank.

AGREEMENT
The parties agree as follows:
1. DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION .
1.1 Definitions . As used in this Agreement, the following terrhalshave the following definitions:

“Accounts” means all presently existing and hereafter arisiogounts, contract rights, payment intangibles, ahather forms ¢
obligations owing to Borrower arising out of thdesar lease of goods (including, without limitatjothe licensing of software and ot
technology) or the rendering of services by Borngwéhether or not earned by performance, and adyadircredit insurance, guaranties,
other security therefor, as well as all merchandi¢erned to or reclaimed by Borrower and Borrowé&boks relating to any of the foregoing.

“Adjusted EBITDA” means net income (loss) before interest incomerést expense, income taxes, depreciation, amibotizaan(
change in fair value of warrant liabilities and citdbased compensation expense. For the fiscaltejuanding June 30, 2012Adjustec
EBITDA” means net income (loss) before interest incomerdst expense, income taxes, depreciation, amiotizachange in fair value
warrant liabilities, stockbased compensation expense, and the costs andsespaourred or accrued by Borrower in connectigh or relating
to the proxy contest in progress as of the CloBiate.

“Advance” or “Advances” means a cash advance dn easances under the Revolving Facility.

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any Personotimas or controls directly or indirectly such Persany Person th
controls or is controlled by or is under commontooinwith such Person, and each of such Pesseehior executive officers, directors,
partners.

“Bank Expenses” means all: reasonable costs oeresgs (including reasonable attorneg®s and expenses) incurred in conne
with the preparation, negotiation, administrati@amd enforcement of the Loan Documents; reasonabl&at€ral audit fees; and Barsk
reasonable attorney$tes and expenses incurred in amending, enforaingefending the Loan Documents (including fees arpenses 1
appeal), incurred before, during and after an iesaty Proceeding, whether or not suit is brought.

“Borrower’s Books” means all of Borrower’s booksdarecords including: ledgers; records concerning®ver’s assets or liabilitie
the Collateral, business operations or financiatdition; and all computer programs, or tape filasd the equipment, containing s
information.

“Borrowing Base” means an amount equal to (i) sewéime percent (75%) of Eligible Accounts, as detared by Bank as determir
by Bank’s Factor SQL system, plus (ii) eighty percent (8@¥oProcessing Revenues, as determined by Bankrefiéhence to the most rec
Borrowing Base Certificate delivered to Bank, pded, however, that the aggregate amount includederBorrowing Base pursuant to 1
clause (ii) shall at no time exceed the ProcesRienenues Sublimit at any time.



“Business Day’'means any day that is not a Saturday, Sundayher diay on which banks in the State of Caliform@authorized «
required to close.

“Change in Control” shall mean a transaction inahhany “person” or “group”within the meaning of Section 13(d) and 14(d)(z
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) becomes tle@éhcial owner” (as defined in Rule 13dunder the Securities Exchange Act of 1¢
directly or indirectly, of a sufficient number ohares of all classes of stock then outstanding @fdver ordinarily entitled to vote in t
election of directors, empowering such “person™gnoup” to elect a majority of the Board of Directors ofrBiwer, who did not have su
power before such transaction.

“Closing Date” means the date of this Agreement.
“Code” means the California Uniform Commercial Code
“Collateral” means the property describediihibit A attached hereto.

“Contingent Obligation"means, as applied to any Person, any direct oreictdiiability, contingent or otherwise, of thatrBen witt
respect to (i) any indebtedness, lease, dividextterlof credit or other obligation of another) éiny obligations with respect to undrawn let
of credit, corporate credit cards, or merchantisesvissued or provided for the account of thas®erand (iii) all obligations arising under i
agreement or arrangement designed to protect seixdof® against fluctuation in interest rates, cuayeexchange rates or commaodity pris
provided, however, that the term “Contingent Obiiga’ shall not include endorsements for collection opa#it in the ordinary course
business. The amount of any Contingent Obligasiosll be deemed to be an amount equal to the statddtermined amount of the prim
obligation in respect of which such Contingent @ation is made or, if not stated or determinalfle,haximum reasonably anticipated liab
in respect thereof as determined by Bank in goiti;farovided, however, that such amount shallin@ny event exceed the maximum am
of the obligations under the guarantee or othepstmrrangement.

“Copyrights” means any and all copyright rights, copyright aggilons, copyright registrations and like protetsion each work «
authorship and derivative work thereof.

“Credit Extension” means each Advance or any ogixéension of credit by Bank for the benefit of Bomer hereunder.

“Daily Balance” means the amount of the Obligatiomsed at the end of a given day.

“Eligible Accounts” means those Accounts that aiiséhe ordinary course of Borrower’s business ttaatply with all of Borrowers
representations and warranties to Bank set foreiction 5.4; provided, that standards of eligipithay be fixed and revised from time to ti
by Bank in Banks reasonable judgment and upon notification theted&orrower in accordance with the provisions bérdJnless otherwis
agreed to by Bank, Eligible Accounts shall noturdg the following:

€)] Accounts that the account debtor hdeddb pay within ninety (90) days of invoice date;

(b) Accounts with respect to an account aelitventyfive percent (25%) of whose Accounts the acc
debtor has failed to pay within ninety (90) daysneice date;

(c) Accounts with respect to which the acttalebtor is an officer, employee, or agent of Baer;

(d) Accounts with respect to which goods @leeed on consignment, guaranteed sale, saleéwnyreale o
approval, bill and hold, demo or promotional, dnatterms by reason of which the payment by thewattcdebtor may be conditional;



(e) Accounts with respect to which the actalebtor is an Affiliate of Borrower;

® Accounts with respect to which the acttodebtor does not have its principal place of hess in th
United States, except for Eligible Foreign Accounts

Accounts with respect to which the actodebtor is the United States or any departmeygney, o
instrumentality of the United States, except fathshccounts in which Borrower has assigned its paynmights to Bank, the assignment
been acknowledged under the Assignment of ClaimsoA&940 (31 U.S.C. Section 3727), and such asségr otherwise complies with 1
Assignment of Claims Act to Bank’s reasonable fattton;

(h) Accounts with respect to which Borrowgeliable to the account debtor for goods soldeswises rendere
by the account debtor to Borrower or for depositoiher property of the account debtor held by Baar, but only to the extent of ¢
amounts owing to the account debtor against amavnésl to Borrower;

0] Accounts with respect to an accountadefncluding Subsidiaries and Affiliates, whosétmbligations t
Borrower exceed thirty percent (30%) of all Accayrib the extent such obligations exceed the afenéioned percentage, except as appr
in writing by Bank;

0) Accounts that have not yet been billedhte account debtor or that relate to depositsh(ss good fai
deposits) or other property of the account deb#dd by Borrower for the performance of serviceslelivery of goods which Borrower has
yet performed or delivere:

(k) Accounts with respect to which the actodebtor disputes liability or makes any claim hwitspec
thereto as to which Bank believes, in its solerdison, that there may be a basis for dispute @byt to the extent of the amount subject to :
dispute or claim), or is subject to any InsolveRegceeding, or becomes insolvent, or goes out sihkas; and

0] Accounts the collection of which Banksenably determines to be doubtful.

“Eligible Foreign Accounts’means Accounts with respect to which the accoubtadaloes not have its principal place of busirie
the United States and that (i) are supported byanaore letters of credit in an amount and ofreoteand issued by a financial instituti
acceptable to Bank, (ii) are supported by credtiiance naming Bank as the loss payee in an amamwaitissued by a insurance comp
acceptable to Bank, or (iii) that Bank approvesaarase-by-case basis.

“Equipment” means all present and future machinery, equipntengint improvements, furniture, fixtures, vehiclegls, parts ar
attachments in which Borrower has any interest.

“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Ségéct of 1974, as amended, and the regulationethwaler.

“Event of Default” has the meaning assigned in deti8.

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting priresms in effect from time to time.

“Indebtednessineans (a) all indebtedness for borrowed moneyedéferred purchase price of property or servicesjding withou

limitation reimbursement and other obligations wiéispect to surety bonds and letters of creditalidbligations evidenced by notes, boi
debentures or similar instruments, (c) all cagéake obligations and (d) all Contingent Obligagion



“Insolvency Proceedingiheans any proceeding commenced by or against asgrper entity under any provision of the Unitedt&:
Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or under any othéeripaity or insolvency law, including assignments tlee benefit of creditors, formal
informal moratoria, compaositions, extension gergnalth its creditors, or proceedings seeking remigation, arrangement, or other relief.

“Intellectual Property Collateral” means all of Bawer’s right, title, and interest in and to the follogirCopyrights, Trademarks &
Patents; all trade secrets, all design rightspdaior damages by way of past, present and fuhfregement of any of the rights incluc
above, all licenses or other rights to use anyhefGopyrights, Patents or Trademarks, and all $iedaes and royalties arising from such u:
the extent permitted by such license or rightsaailendments, renewals and extensions of any @@ dipgrights, Trademarks or Patents; an
proceeds and products of the foregoing, includinhaut limitation all payments under insurance ay andemnity or warranty payable
respect of any of the foregoing.

“Inventory” means all inventory in which Borrower has or acgglimny interest, including work in process andsfied produc
intended for sale or lease or to be furnished uadmontract of service, of every kind and desariptiow or at any time hereafter owned b
in the custody or possession, actual or constreicti’Borrower, including such inventory as is temgpily out of its custody or possession ¢
transit and including any returns upon any accoantther proceeds, including insurance proce&dsilting from the sale or disposition of .
of the foregoing and any documents of title repnéiag any of the above, and Borrower’s Books ratato any of the foregoing.

“Investment” means any beneficial ownership of (including stauértnership interest or other securities) any derer any loai
advance or capital contribution to any Person.

“IRC” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 nasraled, and the regulations thereunder.
“Lien” means any mortgage, lien, deed of trustrgkeapledge, security interest or other encumbrance

“Loan Documents”’means, collectively, this Agreement, any note otesoexecuted by Borrower, any guarantees execuw
Borrower’s Subsidiaries, and any other agreement enteredhirconnection with this Agreement, all as amenaoteextended from time to tim

“Material Adverse Effectimeans a material adverse effect on (i) the busiopsgations, condition (financial or otherwise)poospect
of Borrower and its Subsidiaries taken as a whol§ipthe ability of Borrower to repay the Obligas or otherwise perform its obligatic
under the Loan Documents or (iii) the value or ptyoof Bank’s security interests in the Collateral

“Negotiable Collateral’means all letters of credit of which Borrower ibeneficiary, notes, drafts, instruments, securitieEument
of title, and chattel paper, and Borrower’s Boodisiting to any of the foregoing.

“Obligations” means all debt, principal, interest, Bank Experesed other amounts owed to Bank by Borrower purstarthis
Agreement or any other agreement, whether absolutmntingent, due or to become due, now existinyareafter arising, including a
interest that accrues after the commencement dfisoivency Proceeding and including any debt, lighior obligation owing from Borrow:
to others that Bank may have obtained by assignorestherwise.

“Patents” means all patents, patent applications and liketeptions including without limitation improvementslivisions
continuations, renewals, reissues, extensions amihcations-in-part of the same.

“Periodic Paymentsineans all installments or similar recurring payrsehtit Borrower may now or hereafter become olddjad pa
to Bank pursuant to the terms and provisions ofiasyument, or agreement now or hereafter in erst between Borrower and Bank.



“Permitted Indebtedness” means:

€) Indebtedness of Borrower in favor of Banising under this Agreement or any other Loacudoent;
(b) Indebtedness existing on the Closingelzaid disclosed in the Schedule;
(c) Indebtedness secured by a lien describatdause (c) of the defined term “Permitted Ligngrovidec

(i) such Indebtedness does not exceed the lessbe afost or fair market value of the equipmenariced with such Indebtedness and (i
amount of such Indebtedness incurred by Borrowemduany fiscal year (in excess of that which igstanding as of the Closing De
shall not exceed $500,000 in the aggregate; and

(d) Subordinated Debt.
“Permitted Investment” means:
(a) Investments existing on the Closing Ddiselosed in the Schedule; and

(b) (i) marketable direct obligations issu@dunconditionally guaranteed by the United StateAmerica o
any agency or any State thereof maturing within @)ey/ear from the date of acquisition thereof), ¢dmmercial paper maturing no more t
one (1) year from the date of creation thereof emdently having rating of at least A-2 or P-2 fraither Standard & Po@’Corporation ¢
Moody'’s Investors Service, (iii) certificates of depasiituring no more than one (1) year from the datewdstment therein issued by Bi
and (iv) Bank’'s money market accounts.

“Permitted Liens” means the following:

€) Any Liens existing on the Closing Datelaisclosed in the Schedule or arising under Algiseement ¢
the other Loan Documents;

(b) Liens for taxes, fees, assessmentshar giovernmental charges or levies, either nondaént or bein
contested in good faith by appropriate proceedipgsyided the same have no priority over any oflBasecurity interests;

(c) Liens (i) upon or in any equipment whighs not financed by Bank acquired or held by Beeoor any ¢
its Subsidiaries to secure the purchase price df sguipment or indebtedness incurred solely fergtrpose of financing the acquisitior
such equipment, or (ii) existing on such equipmanthe time of its acquisition, provided that thierLis confined solely to the property
acquired and improvements thereon, and the proadfesish equipment;

(d) Liens incurred in connection with thetamsion, renewal or refinancing of the indebtedresssured b
Liens of the type described in clauses (a) throfgytabove, provided that any extension, renewakptacement Lien shall be limited to
property encumbered by the existing Lien and tlecfal amount of the indebtedness being extendgeiwed or refinanced does not incre

“Person” means any individual, sole proprietorship, parthigxslimited liability company, joint venture, trijsunincorporate
organization, association, corporation, institutipablic benefit corporation, firm, joint stock cpany, estate, entity or governmental agency.

“Prime Rate” means the variable rate of interest,gnnum, that appears_in The Wall Street Jodroai time to time, whether or r
such announced rate is the lowest rate availabta Bank.

“Processing Revenues” means Borrower's revenuesuned in accordance with GAAP, for the preceding-tmonth period, fror
networking service fees and transaction processamgnues that are not invoiced on a monthly basis gaid pursuant to other contrac
arrangements, and not included in Eligible Accounts



“Processing Revenues Sublimit” means Borrowéttcounts relating to the Processing Revenuesshwghall not exceed One Millii
Dollars ($1,000,000) at any time without the Bani’®r consent.

“Responsible Officer'means each of the Chief Executive Officer, the Chiperating Officer, the Chief Financial Officer dathe
Controller of Borrower.

“Revolving Facility” means the facility under which Borrower may requgahk to issue Advances, as specified in Sectib(a;
hereof.

“Revolving Line” means a credit extension of upltaree Million Dollars ($3,000,000).
“Revolving Maturity Date” means the first annivengaf the Closing Date.
“Schedule” means the schedule of exceptions attalbbeeto and approved by Bank, if any.

“Subordinated Debtmeans any debt incurred by Borrower that is sulbatéd to the debt owing by Borrower to Bank on 8
acceptable to Bank (and identified as being sucBdyyower and Bank).

“Subsidiary” means any corporation, company or partnership iictwfi) any general partnership interest or (ii)rsxthan 50% of tt
stock or other units of ownership which by the tettmereof has the ordinary voting power to eleetBloard of Directors, managers or trus
of the entity, at the time as of which any detemtion is being made, is owned by Borrower, eitheadly or through an Affiliate.

“Trademarks’means any trademark and servicemark rights, wheduistered or not, applications to register argisteations of th
same and like protections, and the entire good#ilhe business of Borrower connected with and ylinéd by such trademarks.

1.2 Accounting Terms. All accounting terms not specifically definedréie shall be construed in accordance
GAAP and all calculations made hereunder shall bdarin accordance with GAAP. When used hereinteéimas “financial statementshal
include the notes and schedules thereto.

2. L oAN AND TERMS OF PAYMENT .
2.1 Credit Extensions.

Borrower promises to pay to the order of Bank,awful money of the United States of America, thgragate unpaid princig
amount of all Credit Extensions made by Bank torBeer hereunder. Borrower shall also pay inteoesthe unpaid principal amount of si
Credit Extensions at rates in accordance withehag hereof.

(a) Revolving Advances.

0] Subject to and upon the terms and cmmditof this Agreement, Borrower may request Ades
in an aggregate outstanding amount not to exceedesser of (i) the Revolving Line or (ii) the Bowing Base. Subject to the terms
conditions of this Agreement, amounts borrowed yams to this Section 2.1(a) may be repaid and rela@d at any time prior to the Revolv
Maturity Date, at which time all Advances undestBiection 2.1(a) shall be immediately due and dayaBorrower may prepay any Advan
without penalty or premium.

(i) Whenever Borrower desires an Advancer@aer will notify Bank by facsimile transmission
telephone no later than 11:00 a.m. Pacific TimethenBusiness Day that is one day before the Besibay the Advance is to be made. t
such notification shall be promptly confirmed bi?ayment/Advance Form in substantially the fornErhibit B hereto. Borrower will delive
copies of invoices in connection with any Advanequest and all supporting documents, plus traradiies for all invoices and paymt
application in an electronic format acceptable &amBfor processing. Documents received by 11:60 &alifornia time on accounts accepti
to Bank will be processed on the following BusinBsg. Documents received after then will be preedswithin two Business Days. Ban
authorized to make Advances under this Agreemesgd upon instructions received from a Respon§€iffieer or a designee of a Respons
Officer, or without instructions if in Bang'discretion such Advances are necessary to mdajafibns which have become due and ret
unpaid. Bank shall be entitled to rely on anygltic notice given by a person who Bank reasonlagligves to be a Responsible Officer
designee thereof, and Borrower shall indemnify &t Bank harmless for any damages or loss sufferedBank as a result of s
reliance. Bank will credit the amount of Advanceade under this Section to Borrower’s deposit antou



2.2 Overadvances. If (a) the aggregate amount of the outstandidgahces exceeds the lesser of the Revolving
or the Borrowing Base at any time, or (b) the aggte amount of the outstanding Advances with rasjeethe Processing Revenues exc
the Processing Revenues Sublimit at any time, Barshall immediately pay to Bank, in cash, the ami@f such excess.

2.3 Interest Rates, Payments, and Calculations

(a) Interest Rates. Except as set forth in Section 2.3(b), the Advarsted| bear interest, on the outstan:
Daily Balance thereof, at a rate equal to two par¢2.00%) above the Prime Rate, provided, howet@t, in no event shall the interest
under this Section 2.3(a) be less than five per(e00%) per annum at any time.

(b) Late Fee; Default Rate. If any payment is not made within ten (10) dafter the date such paymer
due, Borrower shall pay Bank a late fee equal &léisser of (i) five percent (5%) of the amounsoth unpaid amount or (ii) the maxim
amount permitted to be charged under applicable lallv Obligations shall bear interest, from andeafthe occurrence and during
continuance of an Event of Default, at a rate eqodive (5) percentage points above the interat applicable immediately prior to
occurrence of the Event of Default.

(c) Payments. Interest hereunder shall be due and payabléefast business day of each month durin
term hereof. The minimum interest payable witlpees$ to each six month period, measured beginnitiy tive period ending six months fri
the Closing Date, and for each successive six mpettod thereafter, shall be Twenty Thousand Dsl(&20,000). Bank shall, at its opti
charge such interest, all Bank Expenses, and &lhdte Payments against any of Borrovgedeposit accounts or against the Revolving Lin
which case those amounts shall thereafter accriggest at the rate then applicable hereunder. istgrest not paid when due shall
compounded by becoming a part of the Obligations, such interest shall thereafter accrue interesttearate then applicable hereunder.
payments shall be free and clear of any taxes,heitlings, duties, impositions or other chargesh® end that Bank will receive the en
amount of any Obligations payable hereunder, rdgsscf source of payment.

(d) Lockbox . Borrower shall cause all account debtors ang af Borrowers payment processt
(including JP Morgan) to wire any amounts owind@twrrower to such account (the “Collateral Accoura’) Bank shall specify, and to mail
payments made by check to a post office box undemkB control. All invoices shall specify such posficd box as the payme
address. Bank shall have sole authority to coech payments and deposit them to the Collatecabént. If Borrower receives any amc
despite such instructions, Borrower shall immedyadeliver such payment to Bank in the form recdivexcept for an endorsement to the ¢
of Bank and, pending such delivery, shall hold spayiment in trust for Bank. Two Business Daysraftearance of any checks, Bank s
credit all amounts paid into the Collateral Accofirgt, against any amounts outstanding under tieoRing Line, and then, of any remain
balance of such amount, to Borrowgedperating account. Borrower shall enter intchsockbox agreement as Bank shall reasonably r¢
from time to time. Bank will provide reports ofvisice entry and payment to Borrower on each Busiigasy, and will from time to tin
deliver a detailed aging of open invoices upon Bawar's request. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in lidueaguiring payment processors
comply with the foregoing, on a weekly basis, Bareo shall submit to Bank a schedule reflecting neseproceeds owing to Borrower fr
Borrower’s payment processors, and such proceeadslshwired to Borrowes account with Bank on a weekly basis within twsiBess Day
following the date such schedule is due to Bankr@®meer’s failure to comply with the foregoing shall congie an immediate Event of Defe
without any cure period.



(e) Computation . In the event the Prime Rate is changed from tionme hereafter, the applicable rat
interest hereunder shall be increased or decreaffedtive as of the day the Prime Rate is chanfggdin amount equal to such change ir
Prime Rate. All interest chargeable under the Libaouments shall be computed on the basis of & thuedred sixty (360) day year for
actual number of days elapsed.

2.4 Crediting Payments. Prior to the occurrence of an Event of DefaBHnk shall credit a wire transfer of fun
check or other item of payment to such deposit aecor Obligation as Borrower specifies. After thecurrence of an Event of Default,
receipt by Bank of any wire transfer of funds, dhear other item of payment shall be immediatelplagal to conditionally reduce Obligatio
but shall not be considered a payment on accouassisuch payment is of immediately available faldemds or unless and until such ch
or other item of payment is honored when presefitegayment. Notwithstanding anything to the cangrcontained herein, any wire tran:
or payment received by Bank after 12:00 noon Ragifine shall be deemed to have been received bl Bauof the opening of business on
immediately following Business Day. Whenever aaympent to Bank under the Loan Documents would atiserbe due (except by reasol
acceleration) on a date that is not a Business 8iah payment shall instead be due on the nexnBssiDay, and additional fees or interes
the case may be, shall accrue and be payabledqrettiod of such extension.

25 Fees. Borrower shall pay to Bank the following:

€) Facility Fee. On the Closing Date, a Facility Fee equal taeleii Thousand Dollars ($15,000), wt
shall be nonrefundable; and

(b) Bank Expenses. On the Closing Date, all Bank Expenses incuthedugh the Closing Date, includi
reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses and tlatetlosing Date, all Bank Expenses, including seable attorneysfees and expenses,
and when they are incurred by Bank.

2.6 Term . This Agreement shall become effective on thesidlp Date and, subject to Section 12.8, shall oometir
full force and effect for so long as any Obligasoremain outstanding or Bank has any obligatiomttke Credit Extensions under 1
Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Bankllshave the right to terminate its obligation to keaCredit Extensions under t
Agreement immediately and without notice upon theeuorence and during the continuance of an EvenDefault. Notwithstandir
termination, Bank’s Lien on the Collateral shathain in effect for so long as any Obligations antstanding.

3. CONDITIONS OF LOANS.

3.1 Conditions Precedent to Initial Credit Extension. The obligation of Bank to make the initial Crelktension i
subject to the condition precedent that Bank dimale received, in form and substance satisfactoBahk, the following:

€) this Agreement;

(b) a certificate of the Secretary of Boresvwith respect to incumbency and resolutions aigimy the
execution and delivery of this Agreement;

(c) UCC National Form Financing Statement;

(d) an intellectual property security agreein

(e) evidence of termination of the Lien avér of PNC Bank National Association;
() certificates of insurance naming Bankoas payee and additional insured;

(9) payment of the fees and Bank Expensas dine specified in Section 2.5 hereof;



(h) account control agreement(s) with JPMar@hase, and PNC Bank National Association (fr@m@er’s
account with PNC Bank National Association contmt@be in existence as of the Closing Date);

0] current financial statements of Borrower

)] an audit of the Collateral, the reswitsvhich have already been received by Bank arghisfactory t
Bank;

(k) establishment of the Collateral Accoamd lockbox arrangements;

)] evidence of resolution of Borronweshareholder lawsuit and injunction in a manneeptable to Ban

which evidence has been received deemed acceptaBnk prior to the date hereof; and

(m) such other documents, and completiosuah other matters, as Bank may reasonably deeass@y ¢
appropriate.

3.2 Conditions Precedent to all Credit Extensions. The obligation of Bank to make each Credit Egien
including the initial Credit Extension, is furthgubject to the following conditions:

€) timely receipt by Bank of the PaymenwAdce Form as provided in Section 2.1;

(b) the representations and warranties guedain Section 5 shall be true and correct imadtterial respec
on and as of the date of such Payment/Advance lodron the effective date of each Credit Extenamthough made at and as of each
date, and no Event of Default shall have occurretitze continuing, or would exist after giving efféz such Credit Extension. The makin
each Credit Extension shall be deemed to be ageptation and warranty by Borrower on the dateuoh<Credit Extension as to the accu
of the facts referred to in this Section 3.2; and

(c) in Banks sole discretion, there has not been any mat@nihirment in the Accounts, general affe
management, results of operation, financial cooditr the prospect of repayment of the Obligatiomghere has not been any material ad\
deviation by Borrower from the most recent busir@as of Borrower presented to and accepted by Bank

4, CREATION OF SECURITY INTEREST .

4.1 Grant of Security Interest . Borrower grants and pledges to Bank a contingiegurity interest in all presen
existing and hereafter acquired or arising Colkdtar order to secure prompt repayment of any dn@laigations and in order to secure pro
performance by Borrower of each of its covenanid dnties under the Loan Documents. Except asostit in the Schedule, such sect
interest constitutes a valid, first priority se¢yrinterest in the presently existing Collateraidawill constitute a valid, first priority secur
interest in Collateral acquired after the date bkre

4.2 Delivery of Additional Documentation Required. Borrower shall from time to time execute andw®lto Bank
at the request of Bank, all Negotiable Collateddl, financing statements and other documents tratkBmay reasonably request, in fi
satisfactory to Bank, to perfect and continue tegqztion of Banks security interests in the Collateral and in otdefully consummate all |
the transactions contemplated under the Loan DontsndBorrower from time to time may deposit withrik specific time deposit account:
secure specific Obligations. Borrower authorizeslB® hold such balances in pledge and to dectifeonor any drafts thereon or any req
by Borrower or any other Person to pay or othentraesfer any part of such balances for so lonth@®©bligations are outstanding.



4.3 Right to Inspect. Bank (through any of its officers, employeesagents) shall have the right, upon reasot
prior notice, from time to time during Borrowsrtsual business hours but no more than twice a(yatess an Event of Default has occu
and is continuing), to inspect BorroweBooks and to make copies thereof and to chesk, aad appraise the Collateral in order to v
Borrower’s financial condition or the amount, cdiwh of, or any other matter relating to, the Cital.

5. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES .
Borrower represents and warrants as follows:

5.1 Due Organization and Qualification. Borrower and each Subsidiary is a corporatioly @xisting under th
laws of its state of incorporation and qualifiediditensed to do business in any state in whichctimeluct of its business or its ownershi
property requires that it be so qualified.

5.2 Due Authorization; No Conflict . The execution, delivery, and performance ofltban Documents are witt
Borrower’'s powers, have been duly authorized, amdnat in conflict with nor constitute a breachasfy provision contained in Borrower’
articles of incorporation or bylaws, nor will thegnstitute an event of default under any mategat@ament to which Borrower is a party ol
which Borrower is bound. Borrower is not in defauider any material agreement to which it is a@ypar by which it is bound.

5.3 No Prior Encumbrances. Borrower has good and marketable title to itgprty, free and clear of Liens, exc
for Permitted Liens.

5.4 Bona Fide Eligible Accounts. The Eligible Accounts are bona fide existingigafions. The property a
services giving rise to such Eligible Accounts lieen delivered or rendered to the account debtdo dhe account debtar’agent fc
immediate and unconditional acceptance by the axtabebtor. Borrower has not received notice ofialcor imminent Insolvency Proceed
of any account debtor that is included in any Barng Base Certificate as an Eligible Account.

5.5 Merchantable Inventory . All Inventory is in all material respects of gband marketable quality, free from
material defects, except for Inventory for whiclegdate reserves have been made.

5.6 Intellectual Property Collateral . Borrower is the sole owner of the Intellectuabfperty Collateral, except f
non-exclusive licenses granted by Borrower to its cm&is in the ordinary course of business. EachePatents is valid and enforceable,
no part of the Intellectual Property Collateral bagn judged invalid or unenforceable, in wholéngpart, and no claim has been made tha
part of the Intellectual Property Collateral vidatthe rights of any third party. Except as sethfin the Schedule, Borrowerrights as
licensee of intellectual property do not give rieemore than five percent (5%) of its gross reveimuany given month, including withc
limitation revenue derived from the sale, licensirendering or disposition of any product or sesvi®orrower is not a party to, or bound
any agreement that restricts the grant by Borrafi@rsecurity interest in Borrower’s rights undecls agreement.

5.7 Name; Location of Chief Executive Office Except as disclosed in the Schedule, Borrowsmiod done busine
under any name other than that specified on theatiige page hereof. The chief executive officBafrower is located at the address indic
in Section 10 hereof. All Borrower’s Inventory aBduipment is located only at the location sethfart Section 10 hereof, or at Borrower’
facility located at 30 Spring Mill Drive, Malver®ennsylvania, or at third party contract manufaatulisted on the Schedule at which no r
than an aggregate of $750,000 of Inventory andfgent is stored or maintained.

5.8 Litigation . Except as set forth in the Schedule, there areactions or proceedings pending by or ag
Borrower or any Subsidiary before any court or adstiative agency.

5.9 No Material Adverse Change in Financial Statements All consolidated and consolidating financialtetaent
related to Borrower and any Subsidiary that Ban& feceived from Borrower fairly present in all mi&krespects Borrowes’ financia
condition as of the date thereof and Borrowerdnsolidated and consolidating results of opematifor the period then ended. There ha
been a material adverse change in the consolidattte consolidating financial condition of Borravgnce the date of the most recent of
financial statements submitted to Bank.
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5.10 Solvency, Payment of Debts Borrower is solvent and able to pay its debisl(iding trade debts) as they mature.

5.11 Regulatory Compliance. Borrower and each Subsidiary have met the mimnfunding requirements of ERI¢
with respect to any employee benefit plans suliigdERISA, and no event has occurred resulting fBBonrower’s failure to comply wit
ERISA that could result in Borrower’s incurring amaterial liability. Borrower is not an “investntetompany” or a company “controllediy
an “investment companytithin the meaning of the Investment Company Actl®f#0. Borrower is not engaged principally, oroag of thi
important activities, in the business of extendiorgdit for the purpose of purchasing or carryingrgima stock (within the meaning
Regulations T and U of the Board of Governors & Hederal Reserve System). Borrower and each @dahshave complied with all tl
provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Adrrower and each Subsidiary have not violatedraaterial statutes, laws, ordinance
rules applicable to it.

5.12 Environmental Condition . None of Borrower’'s or any Subsidiasyproperties or assets has ever been us
Borrower or any Subsidiary or, to the best of Bareds knowledge, by previous owners or operators, éndisposal of, or to produce, st
handle, treat, release, or transport, any hazard@sse or hazardous substance other than in acomedaith applicable law; to the besi
Borrower’'s knowledge, none of Borrowsrproperties or assets has ever been designatédemtified in any manner pursuant to
environmental protection statute as a hazardousewais hazardous substance disposal site, or a datedfor closure pursuant to :
environmental protection statute; no lien arisimgler any environmental protection statute has la¢thdo any revenues or to any reé
personal property owned by Borrower or any Subsjgliand neither Borrower nor any Subsidiary hagires a summons, citation, notice
directive from the Environmental Protection Agemryany other federal, state or other governmemahay concerning any action or omis:
by Borrower or any Subsidiary resulting in the asi@g, or otherwise disposing of hazardous wastdamardous substances into
environment.

5.13 Taxes. Borrower and each Subsidiary have filed or cdueée filed all tax returns required to be fileasid hav
paid, or have made adequate provision for the payofeall taxes reflected therein.

5.14 Subsidiaries . Borrower does not own any stock, partnershipraggt or other equity securities of any Pel
except for Permitted Investments.

5.15 Government Consents. Borrower and each Subsidiary have obtained atenal consents, approvals
authorizations of, made all declarations or filimgigh, and given all notices to, all governmentatherities that are necessary for the contil
operation of Borrower’s business as currently cateli

5.16 Accounts. None of Borrower’s nor any Subsidiagyproperty is maintained or invested with a Pemsier tha
Bank, except as disclosed on the Schedule.

5.17 Full Disclosure. No representation, warranty or other statemesderby Borrower in any certificate or writ
statement furnished to Bank contains any untrugrsiant of a material fact or omits to state a niatéact necessary in order to make
statements contained in such certificates or statesmot misleading.

6. AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS .
Borrower shall do all of the following:

6.1 Good Standing. Borrower shall maintain its and each of its Sdibsies’ corporate existence and good standir

its jurisdiction of incorporation and maintain gifiahtion in each jurisdiction in which it is reqed under applicable law. Borrower s

maintain, and shall cause each of its Subsididdasaintain, in force all licenses, approvals agceaments, the loss of which could ha
Material Adverse Effect.
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6.2 Government Compliance. Borrower shall meet, and shall cause each Sialogitb meet, the minimum fundi
requirements of ERISA with respect to any employerefit plans subject to ERISA. Borrower shall phymand shall cause each Subsid
to comply, with all statutes, laws, ordinances gaodernment rules and regulations to which it isiseth noncompliance with which could h:i
a Material Adverse Effect.

6.3 Financial Statements, Reports, Certificates. Borrower shall deliver the following to Bank:) (aveekly
transaction reports of Borrowsrtash disbursements and collections; (b) as seenailable, but in any event within twenty (20yslafter th
last day of each month, a Borrower prepared cotat@d balance sheet, income, and cash flow statetogaring Borrowess consolidate
operations during such period, prepared in accamlavith GAAP, consistently applied, along with adistings of accounts receivable
accounts payable, together with a Borrowing Bastifi¢ate signed by a Responsible Officer in substdly the form ofExhibit C hereto, an
a Compliance Certificate signed by a Responsibfee€fin substantially the form dExhibit D hereto, all in a form acceptable to Bank; (c
soon as available, but in any event within one heddwenty (120) days after the end of Borrowdiscal year, audited consolidated finar
statements of Borrower prepared in accordance Gi##AP, consistently applied, together with an undiga opinion on such financi
statements of an independent certified public acting firm reasonably acceptable to Bank; (d) cepié all statements, reports and not
sent or made available generally by Borrower tesésurity holders or to any holders of Subordinddedbt and, if applicable, all reports
Forms 10-K and 1@ filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiss{eh promptly upon receipt of notice thereof, aae of any lege
actions pending or threatened against BorrowemngrQubsidiary that could result in damages or ctusBorrower or any Subsidiary of Fi
Thousand Dollars ($50,000) or more, or any comraétoit claim (as defined in the Code) acquiredBoyrower; (f) as soon as available, bt
any event no later than thirty (30) days after ¢imel of Borrowers fiscal year, annual operating projections (intlgdincome statemen
balance sheets and cash flow statements presemtadnionthly format) for the upcoming fiscal year, form and substance reason:
satisfactory to Bank, (g) such budgets, sales ptiojs, operating plans, other financial informatimcluding information related to t
verification of Borrowers Accounts as Bank may reasonably request from tiimigne; and (h) monthly statements from JPMorGéiase (c
any other payment processing financial institutidBorrower), within five days of Borrower's receipf such statements.

6.4 Audits. Bank shall have a right from time to time hereafteaudit Borrowers Accounts and appraise Collater:
Borrower’s expense, provided that such audits will be cormdlioo more often than every six (6) months unbssEvent of Default hi
occurred and is continuing.

6.5 Inventory; Returns . Borrower shall keep all Inventory in good andrkesable condition, free from all mate!
defects except for Inventory for which adequatemess have been made. Returns and allowancesy,iba between Borrower and its acct
debtors shall be on the same basis and in accadaitic the usual customary practices of Borrowsrireey exist at the time of the execu
and delivery of this Agreement. Borrower shallppily notify Bank of all returns and recoveries afdall disputes and claims, where
return, recovery, dispute or claim involves morartfrifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000).

6.6 Taxes. Borrower shall make, and shall cause each Sialogitb make, due and timely payment or depostilt
material federal, state, and local taxes, assessmancontributions required of it by law, and Iivekecute and deliver to Bank, on demi
appropriate certificates attesting to the paymendaposit thereof; and Borrower will make, and willuse each Subsidiary to make, tir
payment or deposit of all material tax payments aiiblholding taxes required of it by applicable Bvincluding, but not limited to, those le
concerning F.I.C.A., F.U.T.A., state disability,daiocal, state, and federal income taxes, and wplpn request, furnish Bank with pr
satisfactory to Bank indicating that Borrower ogabsidiary has made such payments or depositsidethat Borrower or a Subsidiary n
not make any payment if the amount or validity wéls payment is contested in good faith by appréppaoceedings and is reserved again:
the extent required by GAAP) by Borrower.

6.7 Insurance.
€)) Borrower, at its expense, shall keepGb#ateral insured against loss or damage by fiveft, explosior
sprinklers, and all other hazards and risks, argligh amounts, as ordinarily insured against bgrodlvners in similar businesses conductt

the locations where Borrower’'s business is condlucte the date hereof. Borrower shall also maintasurance relating to Borrower’
business, ownership and use of the Collateral iouts and of a type that are customary to busisesisglar to Borrower’s.
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(b) All such policies of insurance shall inesuch form, with such companies, and in such anwas at
reasonably satisfactory to Bank. All such policégroperty insurance shall contain a lenddo'ss payable endorsement, in a form satisfa
to Bank, showing Bank as an additional loss pakieeebf, and all liability insurance policies shetlow the Bank as an additional insured
shall specify that the insurer must give at leasinty (20) days notice to Bank before cancelingdbcy for any reason. Upon Baskieques
Borrower shall deliver to Bank certified copies @afch policies of insurance and evidence of the maysnof all premiums therefor. |
proceeds payable under any such policy shall,eappition of Bank, be payable to Bank to be appdie@dccount of the Obligations.

6.8 Accounts . Within fortyfive (45) days of the initial Advance, Borrower 8hapen and maintain its prime
depository and operating accounts with Bank (whfohthe sake of clarity, does not include Borro\sggayment processing accounts, w
are currently maintained with JP Morgan Chase)rrdeer’'s accounts maintained outside of Bank db@lsubject to account control agreemer
(s) or other appropriate instrument with respeauch account to perfect Baskien in such account in accordance with the temergunde
in form and substance satisfactory to Bank.

6.9 Minimum Liquidity.  Borrower shall maintain a balance of unrestrictash in accounts with Bank (not incluad
any cash held in the Collateral Account) of ati@dsee Million Dollars ($3,000,000) at all times.

6.10 Adjusted EBITDA. Borrower shall achieve a minimum Adjusted EBITDAgasured on a quarterly basis, in
following amounts:

Fiscal Quarter Minimum Adjusted
EBITDA

Fiscal quarter ending June 30, 20 $575,00C

Fiscal quarter ending September $700,000

2012:

Fiscal quarter ending December $1,000,000

2012:

Borrower shall achieve a minimum Adjusted EBITDA fascal quarters in 2013 and beyond in such amoastmay be mutua
agreed upon by Borrower and Bank with referend8doower's annual operating projections for such year(dyeedd to Bank in accordar
with Section 6.3(f).

6.11 Intellectual Property Rights .

€) Borrower shall promptly give Bank writtenotice of any applications or registrations ofeflectua
property rights filed with the United States Patant Trademark Office, including the date of suitihg and the registration or applicat
numbers, if any. Borrower shall (i) give Bank teds than 30 days prior written notice of the §liof any applications or registrations with
United States Copyright Office, including the titté such intellectual property rights to be registe as such title will appear on s
applications or registrations, and the date sugliGgiions or registrations will be filed, and (p)ior to the filing of any such applications
registrations, shall execute such documents as Bamk reasonably request for Bank to maintain it$egéion in such intellectual prope
rights to be registered by Borrower, and upon thguest of Bank, shall file such documents simuttasly with the filing of any suc
applications or registrations. Upon filing any suapplications or registrations with the United t&aCopyright Office, Borrower sh
promptly provide Bank with (i) a copy of such applions or registrations, without the exhibitsarily, thereto, (ii) evidence of the filing of ¢
documents requested by Bank to be filed for Bank#intain the perfection and priority of its setyiinterest in such intellectual prope
rights, and (iii) the date of such filing.

13



(b) Bank may audit Borrowsar’'Intellectual Property Collateral to confirm compkce with this Sectio
provided such audit may not occur more often thane per year, unless an Event of Default has geduand is continuing. Bank shall h
the right, but not the obligation, to take, at Bever's sole expense, any actions that Borrower is requinder this Section to take but wt
Borrower fails to take, after 15 daysotice to Borrower. Borrower shall reimburse amdemnify Bank for all reasonable costs and reade
expenses incurred in the reasonable exercise vfitts under this Section.

6.12 Further Assurances. At any time and from time to time Borrower shalecute and deliver such furt
instruments and take such further action as magoresbly be requested by Bank to effect the purpokess Agreement.

6.13 Post-Closing Covenant. Within 30 days of the Closing Date, Borrower stddliver to Bank, in form ar
substance satisfactory to Bank, unconditional sstguarantees duly executed by Stitch Networks @atjwn and USAT Capital Corp, LL
accompanied by incumbency and corporate authavizatrtifications in form and substance satisfactorBank.

7. NEGATIVE COVENANTS .
Borrower will not do any of the following withoulté Bank’s prior written consent:

7.1 Dispositions. Convey, sell, lease, transfer or otherwise dispaf (collectively, a “Transfer”r permit any of it
Subsidiaries to Transfer, all or any part of itsiness or property, other than: (i) Transfersmfehtory in the ordinary course of busin
(ii) Transfers of norexclusive licenses and similar arrangements forube of the property of Borrower or its Subsidigrie the ordinar
course of business; or (iii) Transfers of worn-oubbsolete Equipment which was not financed bykBan

7.2 Change in Business; Change in Control or Executiv®ffice . Engage in any business, or permit any c
Subsidiaries to engage in any business, other tti@musinesses currently engaged in by Borroweramydbusiness substantially similai
related thereto (or incidental thereto); experiem@hange in its Chief Executive Officer or Chi@fidncial Officer, or cease to conduct busi
in the manner conducted by Borrower as of the @p&ate; or suffer or permit a Change in Controlwithout thirty (30) days prior writte
notification to Bank, relocate its chief executigffice or state of incorporation or change its legame; or without Banls' prior writter
consent, change the date on which its fiscal yeds.e

7.3 Mergers or Acquisitions. Merge or consolidate, or permit any of its Sdleasies to merge or consolidate, witt
into any other business organization, or acquirepermit any of its Subsidiaries to acquire, allsubstantially all of the capital stock
property of another Person.

7.4 Indebtedness. Create, incur, guarantee, assume or be or renadile livith respect to any Indebtedness, or p
any Subsidiary so to do, other than Permitted |tethiess.

7.5 Encumbrances. Create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any igth respect to any of its property, or assig
otherwise convey any right to receive income, idilg the sale of any Accounts, or permit any oStdbsidiaries so to do, except for Perm
Liens, or enter into any agreement with any Pegbar than Bank not to grant a security interesbirotherwise encumber, any of its prope
or permit any Subsidiary to do so.

7.6 Distributions . Pay any dividends or make any other distributtorpayment on account of or in redempt
retirement or purchase of any capital stock, omiteany of its Subsidiaries to do so, except thatrBwer may repurchase the stock of for
employees pursuant to stock repurchase agreememtmg as an Event of Default does not exist pigosuch repurchase or would not €
after giving effect to such repurchase, and theeggje amount of such repurchase does not exc®J0BD in any fiscal year.

7.7 Investments. Directly or indirectly acquire or own, or makeyalnvestment in or to any Person, or permit ar
its Subsidiaries so to do, other than Permitte@stments; or maintain or invest any of its propeuityh a Person other than Bank or permit
of its Subsidiaries to do so unless such Persorehtsed into an account control agreement withkBarform and substance satisfactor
Bank; or suffer or permit any Subsidiary to be ay#o, or be bound by, an agreement that restsisth Subsidiary from paying dividend:
otherwise distributing property to Borrower.

14



7.8 Transactions with Affiliates . Directly or indirectly enter into or permit txist any material transaction with &
Affiliate of Borrower except for transactions thae in the ordinary course of Borrowgibusiness, upon fair and reasonable terms thatc
less favorable to Borrower than would be obtaimedri arm’s length transaction with a non-affiliaktson.

7.9 Subordinated Debt. Make any payment in respect of any SubordinBtelot, or permit any of its Subsidiaries
make any such payment, except in compliance with tdirms of such Subordinated Debt, or amend anyigiom contained in ar
documentation relating to the Subordinated Dehitauit Bank’s prior written consent.

7.10 Inventory and Equipment . Store the Inventory or the Equipment with a ilearehouseman, or other third p
unless the third party has been notified of Bardeécurity interest and Bank (a) has received &naadedgment from the third party that i
holding or will hold the Inventory or Equipment fBank’s benefit or (b) is in pledge possession of theelvanse receipt, where negotia
covering such Inventory or Equipment. Store or @many Equipment or Inventory at a location otthen the location set forth in Sectior
of this Agreement, or at Borrowser'facility located at 30 Spring Mill Drive, MalverrPennsylvania, other than at third party con
manufacturers listed on the Schedule where thesggge value of such Equipment or Inventory doeeroted $750,000.

7.11 Compliance . Become an “investment company” or be controllsdan “investment companyvithin the
meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940,ewdme principally engaged in, or undertake as érts omportant activities, the busint
of extending credit for the purpose of purchasingarrying margin stock, or use the proceeds of@madit Extension for such purpose. Fa
meet the minimum funding requirements of ERISAnpiea Reportable Event or Prohibited Transactiengefined in ERISA, to occur, fail
comply with the Federal Fair Labor Standards Actiotate any law or regulation, which violation ¢dihave a Material Adverse Effect, c
material adverse effect on the Collateral or therjty of Bank’s Lien on the Collateral, or permit any of its Sdizgies to do any of tt
foregoing.

8. EVENTS OF DEFAULT .

Any one or more of the following events shall c@m$¢ an Event of Default by Borrower under thisrégment:

8.1 Payment Default. If Borrower fails to pay, when due, any of thkli@ations;
8.2 Covenant Default.
(a) If Borrower fails to perform any obligatt under Article 6 or violates any of the coversaobntained i

Article 7 of this Agreement; or

(b) If Borrower fails or neglects to perfoonobserve any other material term, provision,dition, covenar
contained in this Agreement, in any of the Loan @oents, or in any other present or future agreefetteen Borrower and Bank and a
any default under such other term, provision, ctimdior covenant that can be cured, has failedute such default within ten days a
Borrower receives notice thereof or any officeBofrower becomes aware thereof; provided, howetaat,if the default cannot by its nature
cured within the ten day period or cannot afteigdiit attempts by Borrower be cured within suchday period, and such default is likely tc
cured within a reasonable time, then Borrower dhalle an additional reasonable period (which stalin any case exceed 30 days) to att:
to cure such default, and within such reasonabie period the failure to have cured such defauwtl stot be deemed an Event of Default
no Credit Extensions will be made.
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8.3 Material Adverse Effect. If there occurs any circumstance or circumstarthat could have a Material Adve
Effect;

8.4 Attachment . If any portion of Borrowes assets is attached, seized, subjected to a mdistvess warrant, or
levied upon, or comes into the possession of amstde, receiver or person acting in a similar ciéypand such attachment, seizure, wri
distress warrant or levy has not been removedhdiged or rescinded within ten (10) days, or iffBafer is enjoined, restrained, or in any
prevented by court order from continuing to condalttor any part of its business affairs, or ifumgment or other claim becomes a lie
encumbrance upon any portion of Borrower’s asseti,a notice of lien, levy, or assessment isdfitéf record with respect to any of Borrowner’
assets by the United States Government, or anyriiega, agency, or instrumentality thereof, or by sstate, county, municipal,
governmental agency, and the same is not paidmwitr (10) days after Borrower receives noticegbkrprovided that none of the foregc
shall constitute an Event of Default where suclioactr event is stayed or an adequate bond has fiestad pending a good faith contes
Borrower (provided that no Credit Extensions wél fequired to be made during such cure period);

8.5 Insolvency. If Borrower becomes insolvent, or if an InsolegriProceeding is commenced by Borrower, or
Insolvency Proceeding is commenced against Borraavet is not dismissed or stayed within thirty (3@ys (provided that no Cre
Extensions will be made prior to the dismissaludtsinsolvency Proceeding);

8.6 Other Agreements. If there is a default or other failure to perfon any agreement to which Borrower is a
or by which it is bound resulting in a right byhartl party or parties, whether or not exercisecadoelerate the maturity of any Indebtedne
an amount in excess of One Hundred Fifty Thousaalla® ($150,000) or which could reasonably be etgr:to have a Material Adve
Effect;

8.7 Subordinated Debt. If Borrower makes any payment on account of &tdibated Debt, except to the extent
payment is allowed under any subordination agre¢eatered into with Bank;

8.8 Judgments. If a judgment or judgments for the payment ofneyin an amount, individually or in the aggrec
of at least Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) shwdlrendered against Borrower and shall remain igfisat and unstayed for a period of
(10) days (provided that no Credit Extensions @lmade prior to the satisfaction or stay of suclyinent); or

8.9 Misrepresentations. If any material misrepresentation or materiatstatement exists now or hereafter in
warranty or representation set forth herein orrig eertificate delivered to Bank by any Responsibfécer pursuant to this Agreement ol
induce Bank to enter into this Agreement or anyeottoan Document.

9. BANK’S RIGHTS AND REMEDIES .

9.1 Rights and Remedies Upon the occurrence and during the continuafi@ndevent of Default, Bank may, at
election, without notice of its election and with@iemand, do any one or more of the followingpélvhich are authorized by Borrower:

(a) Declare all Obligations, whether evidesthdy this Agreement, by any of the other Loan Doents, ¢
otherwise, immediately due and payable (provided @ipon the occurrence of an Event of Default deedrin Section 8.5, all Obligations s}
become immediately due and payable without anyadiy Bank);

(b) Cease advancing money or extending titedor for the benefit of Borrower under this Agneent o
under any other agreement between Borrower and;Bank

(c) Settle or adjust disputes and claimealiy with account debtors for amounts, upon teamd in whateve
order that Bank reasonably considers advisable;
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(d) Make such payments and do such actsaa& Bonsiders necessary or reasonable to progesedurit
interest in the Collateral. Borrower agrees teagse the Collateral if Bank so requires, and tikende Collateral available to Bank as B
may designate. Borrower authorizes Bank to ehieptemises where the Collateral is located, te tald maintain possession of the Collat
or any part of it, and to pay, purchase, contastompromise any encumbrance, charge, or lien windBank’s determination appears to
prior or superior to its security interest and #y f@ll expenses incurred in connection therewifith respect to any of Borrower'ownel
premises, Borrower hereby grants Bank a licenster into possession of such premises and to gdtigpsame, without charge, in orde
exercise any of Bank’s rights or remedies providerein, at law, in equity, or otherwise;

(e) Set off and apply to the Obligations amd all (i) balances and deposits of Borrower hsidBank, o
(ii) indebtedness at any time owing to or for thedit or the account of Borrower held by Bank;

Deliver any notices of exclusive contmler any of Borrowes accounts subject to account cor
agreement(s) in favor of Bank and take such otb&oregs as may be permitted under such accountaagreements (acknowledging that B
shall not deliver such notices over such accounti$ an Event of Default has occurred);

(9) Ship, reclaim, recover, store, finishaintain, repair, prepare for sale, advertise fde,sand sell (in th
manner provided for herein) the Collateral. Bamkéreby granted a license or other right, solahgyant to the provisions of this Section
to use, without charge, Borrowsrlabels, patents, copyrights, rights of use of mauye, trade secrets, trade names, trademarkg;esenarks
and advertising matter, or any property of a similature, as it pertains to the Collateral, in ctatipg production of, advertising for sale,
selling any Collateral and, in connection with Bankxercise of its rights under this Section 9.byBwer’s rights under all licenses and
franchise agreements shall inure to Bank’s benefit;

(h) Dispose of the Collateral by way of aremore contracts or transactions, for cash oreomg, in suc
manner and at such places (including Borrow/gemises) as Bank determines is commerciallyoredde, and apply any proceeds to
Obligations in whatever manner or order Bank deapmsopriate;

0] Bank may credit bid and purchase atfamlic sale; and
()] Any deficiency that exists after dispinsi of the Collateral as provided above will bedpimmmediately b
Borrower.
9.2 Power of Attorney. Effective only upon the occurrence and during tbatinuance of an Event of Defal

Borrower hereby irrevocably appoints Bank (and ehBank’s designated officers, or employees) agd@wer’s true and lawful attorney to:
send requests for verification of Accounts or nottcount debtors of Barg’security interest in the Accounts; (b) receivd apen all ma
addressed to Borrower for the purpose of collectimg Accounts; (c) notify all account debtors wittspect to the Accounts to pay B
directly; (d) endorse Borrower's name on any chemkether forms of payment or security that may eadmto Banks possession; (e) si
Borrower's name on any invoice or bill of lading relating doy Account, drafts against account debtors, sdbedand assignments
Accounts, verifications of Accounts, and noticesatwount debtors; (f) make, settle, and adjustlalms under and decisions with respe
Borrower’s policies of insurance; (g) demand, collect, reeesue, and give releases to any account debtdhdomonies due or which
become due upon or with respect to the Accountst@medmpromise, prosecute, or defend any acti@imglcase or proceeding relating to
Accounts; (h) settle and adjust disputes and clagspecting the accounts directly with account alehtfor amounts and upon terms wi
Bank determines to be reasonable; (i) sell, assignsfer, pledge, compromise, discharge or otlergispose of any Collateral; (j) execut:
behalf of Borrower any and all instruments, docutsefinancing statements and the like to perfeatkBa interests in the Accounts ¢
Collections and file, in its sole discretion, onenpore financing or continuation statements andraiments thereto, relative to any of
Collateral; and (k) do all acts and things necgssarxpedient, in furtherance of any such purpo§d® appointment of Bank as Borroveer’
attorney in fact, and each and every one of Banijhts and powers, being coupled with an inteliestrevocable until all of the Obligatic
have been fully repaid and performed and Bank’gyalibn to provide Credit Extensions hereundeeisinated.
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9.3 Accounts Collection. In addition to the foregoing, at any time afiiee occurrence of an Event of Default, B
may notify any Person owing funds to Borrower ohBa security interest in such funds and verify theoant of such Account. Borrow
shall collect all amounts owing to Borrower for Baneceive in trust all payments as Bamk'ustee, and immediately deliver such paymel
Bank in their original form as received from theaunt debtor, with proper endorsements for deposit.

9.4 Bank Expenses. If Borrower fails to pay any amounts or furnighy required proof of payment due to tl
persons or entities, as required under the termbisfAgreement, then Bank may do any or all of fillowing after reasonable notice
Borrower: (a) make payment of the same or any theteof; (b) set up such reserves under a loaifityaim Section 2.1 as Bank dee
necessary to protect Bank from the exposure crdayesuch failure; or (c) obtain and maintain insue policies of the type discusser
Section 6.7 of this Agreement, and take any aatiith respect to such policies as Bank deems prud&ny amounts so paid or depositec
Bank shall constitute Bank Expenses, shall be iniatelg due and payable, and shall bear intereshatthen applicable rate hereinab
provided, and shall be secured by the Collatedaly payments made by Bank shall not constitute greeament by Bank to make sim
payments in the future or a waiver by Bank of amgiii of Default under this Agreement.

9.5 Bank’s Liability for Collateral . So long as Bank complies with reasonable bangiagtices, Bank shall not
any way or manner be liable or responsible foj:tl{a safekeeping of the Collateral; (b) any losslamage thereto occurring or arising in
manner or fashion from any cause; (c) any dimimuiio the value thereof; or (d) any act or defadltaay carrier, warehouseman, bai
forwarding agency, or other person whomsoever.righl of loss, damage or destruction of the Colkdtehall be borne by Borrower.

9.6 Remedies Cumulative. Bank’s rights and remedies under this Agreement, then Lacuments, and all ott
agreements shall be cumulative. Bank shall havetlaér rights and remedies not inconsistent hateas provided under the Code, by law
in equity. No exercise by Bank of one right or esiy shall be deemed an election, and no waiver &ykBof any Event of Default
Borrower’s part shall be deemed a continuing waiver. Naydby Bank shall constitute a waiver, electionacguiescence by it. No waiver
Bank shall be effective unless made in a writteausieent signed on behalf of Bank and then shallfteetéve only in the specific instance ¢
for the specific purpose for which it was given.

9.7 Demand; Protest. Borrower waives demand, protest, notice of mipteotice of default or dishonor, notice
payment and nonpayment, notice of any default, apment at maturity, release, compromise, settlemexténsion, or renewal of accou
documents, instruments, chattel paper, and guasateany time held by Bank on which Borrower nraginy way be liable.

10. NOTICES .

Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, alices or demands by any party relating to this &grent or any other agreem
entered into in connection herewith shall be irtimgi and (except for financial statements and oithfermational documents which may be ¢
by firstclass mail, postage prepaid) shall be personallyated or sent by a recognized overnight deliveeyvice, certified mail, posta
prepaid, return receipt requested, or by telefaidsita Borrower or to Bank, as the case may bésatddresses set forth below:

If to Borrower: USA Technologies, Inc.
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140
Malvern, PA 19355
Attn: Steve Herbert, CEO and David DeMedio, CFO
FAX: (610) 989-0344

If to Bank: Avidbank Corporate Finance,
a division of Avidbank
400 Emerson Street
Palo Alto, CA 94301
Attn: Jeffrey Javier
FAX: (650) 289-0124
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The parties hereto may change the address at \heghare to receive notices hereunder, by noticeriting in the foregoing mann
given to the other.

11. CHOICE OF LAW AND VENUE; JURY TRIAL WAIVER

This Agreement shall be governed by, and constiuedcordance with, the internal laws of the Stdt€alifornia, without regard
principles of conflicts of law. Each of BorrowancaBank hereby submits to the exclusive jurisdicidd the state and Federal courts locatt
the County of Santa Clara, State of California. BEDWER AND BANK EACH HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RESPECTIVIRIGHTS TO £
JURY TRIAL OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED UBN OR ARISING OUT OF ANY OF THE LOAN DOCUMENTS C
ANY OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED THEREIN, INCLDING CONTRACT CLAIMS, TORT CLAIMS, BREACH O
DUTY CLAIMS, AND ALL OTHER COMMON LAW OR STATUTORYCLAIMS. EACH PARTY RECOGNIZES AND AGREES THA
THE FOREGOING WAIVER CONSTITUTES A MATERIAL INDUCEMINT FOR IT TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT. EAC
PARTY REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS THAT IT HAS REVIEWEDHIS WAIVER WITH ITS LEGAL COUNSEL AND THAT 11
KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES ITS JURY TRIAL RIGHTS FOLLOWING CONSULTATION WITH LEGAL COUNSEL.

If the jury waiver set forth in this Section is renforceable, then any dispute, controversy omnclaiising out of or relating to tt
Agreement, the Loan Documents or any of the traissccontemplated therein shall be settled bycjatireference pursuant to Code of C
Procedure Section 638 et seq. before a referéegsitithout a jury, such referee to be mutuallyegtable to the parties or, if no agreeme
reached, by a referee appointed by the Presididgelaf the California Superior Court for Santa €l&ounty. This Section shall not restri
party from exercising remedies under the Codeamnfexercising pre-judgment remedies under applckl.

12. GENERAL PROVISIONS .

121 Successors and Assigns This Agreement shall bind and inure to the bieredfthe respective successors
permitted assigns of each of the parties; provithesyever, that neither this Agreement nor any gdidreunder may be assigned by Borr(
without Bank’s prior written consent, which conserdy be granted or withheld in Baslksole discretion. Bank shall have the right withthe
consent of or notice to Borrower to sell, transfeggotiate, or grant participation in all or anyrtpaf, or any interest in, Ban&’obligations
rights and benefits hereunder.

12.2 Indemnification . Borrower shall defend, indemnify and hold hamelé8ank and its officers, employees,
agents against: (a) all obligations, demandsmdaiand liabilities claimed or asserted by any offeety in connection with the transacti
contemplated by this Agreement; and (b) all logseBank Expenses in any way suffered, incurreghadd by Bank as a result of or in any\
arising out of, following, or consequential to tsawtions between Bank and Borrower whether underAgreement, or otherwise (includ
without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees argemses), except for losses caused by Bank’s geglggence or willful misconduct.

12.3 Time of Essence Time is of the essence for the performanceladldigations set forth in this Agreement.

12.4 Severability of Provisions. Each provision of this Agreement shall be severérom every other provision of tl
Agreement for the purpose of determining the legdibrceability of any specific provision.

125 Correction of Loan Documents. Bank may correct patent errors and fill in amgnks in this Agreement and -
other Loan Documents consistent with the agreeimietite parties.
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12.6 Amendments in Writing, Integration . Neither this Agreement nor the Loan Documents lsa amended
terminated orally. All prior agreements, underdtags, representations, warranties, and negotmti@iween the parties hereto with respe
the subject matter of this Agreement and the Loaaumments, if any, are merged into this Agreemedttha Loan Documents.

12.7 Counterparts . This Agreement may be executed in any numbecoointerparts and by different parties
separate counterparts, each of which, when exeanddlelivered, shall be deemed to be an origarad, all of which, when taken togett
shall constitute but one and the same Agreemerhem®vent that any signature is delivered by faitsitransmission or by mail delivery of
“pdf’ format data file, such signature shall create &@vahd binding obligation of the party executing ¢m whose behalf such signatur
executed) with the same force and effect as if $ackimile or “.pdf’signature page were an original thereof. Notwithding the foregoin
Borrower shall deliver all original signed docungergquested by Bank no later than ten (10) BusiDags following the Closing Date.

12.8 Survival . All covenants, representations and warrantiedema this Agreement shall continue in full foraed
effect so long as any Obligations remain outstagndin Bank has any obligation to make Credit Exi@msito Borrower. The obligations
Borrower to indemnify Bank with respect to the expes, damages, losses, costs and liabilities @escim Section 12.2 shall survive until
applicable statute of limitations periods with resjpto actions that may be brought against Bank hamn.

12.9 Confidentiality . In handling any confidential information Bankdaall employees and agents of Bank, inclu
but not limited to accountants, shall exercisesthime degree of care that it exercises with regpets own proprietary information of the sa
types to maintain the confidentiality of any npublic information thereby received or received smamt to this Agreement except -
disclosure of such information may be made (ih® $ubsidiaries or affiliates of Bank in connectwith their present or prospective busir
relations with Borrower, provided that such ensitége subject to similar confidentiality obligaton(ii) to prospective transferees or purche
of any interest in the Loans, provided that theyehantered into a comparable confidentiality agreatmin favor of Borrower and ha
delivered a copy to Borrower, (iii) as requiredlaw, regulations, rule or order, subpoena, judiordler or similar order, (iv) as may be requ
in connection with the examination, audit or similavestigation of Bank and (v) as Bank may detaeras may be necessary or approprie
connection with the enforcement of any remedieginater. Confidential information hereunder shall imclude information that is in t
public domain or in the knowledge or possessioBaiik when disclosed to Bank, or becomes part optliic domain after disclosure to B¢
through no fault of Bank.

12.10  Patriot Act Notice . Bank hereby notifies Borrower that, pursuarth® requirements of the USA Patriot Act, T
Il of Pub. L. 107-56 (signed into law on Octobed, 2001) (the “ Patriot Act “)it is required to obtain, verify and record infortioa tha
identifies the Borrower, which information includeames and addresses and other information thiaaNaWw Bank, as applicable, to ident
the Borrower in accordance with the Patriot Act.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAgreement to be executed as of the datedireve written.
USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ Stephen P. Herbert

Name: Stephen P. Herbel

Title: Chief Executive Office

AVIDBANK CORPORATE FINANCE,
A DIVISION OF AVIDBANK

By: /s/ Jeffrey Javier

Name: Jeffrey Javie

Title: Senior Vice Presidel
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DEBTOR: USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
SECURED PARTY: AVIDBANK CORPORATE FINANCE, A DIVISION OF AVIDBANK
EXHIBIT A

COLLATERAL DESCRIPTION ATTACHMENT
TO LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

All personal property of Borrower (herein referredas “Borrower” or “Debtor’)whether presently existing or hereafter create
acquired, and wherever located, including, butlinuited to:

€) all accounts (including health-carsdrance receivables), chattel paper (includimggitdle and electronic chattel pap
commercial tort claims (including all commerciaittolaims with respect to Civil Action No. 12-2399S, USA Technologies, Inc. vs. Brac
M. Tirpak, et al.), deposit accounts, securitiesoaats, documents (including negotiable documeetg)jpment (including all accessions
additions thereto), general intangibles (includipgyment intangibles and software), goods (includfixures), instruments (includii
promissory notes), inventory (including all gooaddhfor sale or lease or to be furnished underrdraot of service, and including returns
repossessions), investment property (including rséesiand securities entitlements), letter of @redhts, money, and all of Debtarbooks an
records with respect to any of the foregoing, dreddomputers and equipment containing said boottsenords;

(b) any and all cash proceeds and/or asimproceeds of any of the foregoing, includingheuit limitation, insurance procee
and all supporting obligations and the securityrdf@ or for any right to payment. All terms abdvave the meanings given to them in
California Uniform Commercial Code, as amendedumppéemented from time to time.



vidbank
CORPORATE FINANCE

& Division of Avidbank
Exhibit B

ADVANCE REQUEST FORM

Date:

Client: USA Technologies, Inc
Client ID:
Line Limit: $3,000,00(

1. Principal Balance Outstanding

2. Availability (from Client Summary)

3. Advance Request

5. Ending Availability (2-3)

The Undersigned Represents and warrants that thgdimg is true, complete and correct, and thatrtfoemation reflected in this Borrowing
Base Certificate complies with the representatams warranties set forth in the Loan and Securgyegment between the undersigned and

Avidbank.

Client:

Authorized Signor:

Bank Use Only

Received by Date:
AUTHORIZED SIGNER

Approved by: Date:
AUTHORIZED SIGNER

Funding requests require 24 hour notice. For fundig on the following business day, please submit [2y00 p.m. (PST) via fax (650)-323-
6527 or email: corpfinance@avidbank.com



Avidbank

TPORATE FI MCE

A Division of Avidbank

EXHIBIT C
BORROWING BASE CERTIFICATE

Borrower: USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC Lender: Avidbank Corporate Financ
a division of Avidbank

Commitment Amount: $3,000,0(

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (FROM INVOICED ACCOUNTS

1. Accounts Receivable Book Value as of $
2. Additions (please explain on reve| $
3. TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLL $
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE DEDUCTIONS (without duplicatid!
4 Amounts over 90 days ¢ $
5. Balance of 25% over 90 day acco $
6. Concentration Limits (in excess of J( $
7 Foreign Accoun $
8 Governmental Accour $
9. Contra Accoun $
10. Demo Accounts; Prebillin $
11. Employee Accoun $
12. Other (please explain on reve $
13. TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE DEDUCTION $
14. Eligible Accounts (#3 minus #1 $
15. LOAN VALUE OF ACCOUNTS (75% of #1. $
REVENUES FROM NOI-INVOICED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
16. Prior twe-months networking service fees/transaction prongssvenue $
17. Adjustments to Revenues, if i $
18. TOTAL PROCESSING REVENUES (#16 minug) $
19. LOAN VALUE OF PROCESSING REVENUES (theser of $1,000,000 or $
80% of #18]
BALANCES
20. Maximum Loan Amoul $3,000,00(
21. Total Funds Available [Lesser of #2(#ik5 plus #19) $
22. Present balance owing on Line of Cr $
23. AVAILABLE BORROWING / RESERVE POSITIOM21 minus #22 $

The undersigned represents and warrants that tregfong is true, complete and correct, and thatitifermation reflected in this Borrowing
Base Certificate complies with the representatiand warranties set forth in the Loan and Securigye®ment between the undersigned
Avidbank Corporate Finance, a division of Avidba

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By:

Authorized Signe



EXHIBIT D
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

TO: AVIDBANK CORPORATE FINANCE, A DIVISION OF AVIDBANK
FROM: USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

The undersigned authorized officer of USA TECHNOLGES, INC. hereby certifies that in accordance wita terms and conditio
of the Loan and Security Agreement between Borroavet Bank (the “Agreement”)j)Borrower is in complete compliance for the pd
ending with all required covenartept as noted below and (ii) all representata warranties of Borrower stated in
Agreement are true and correct as of the date heAdtached herewith are the required documenfpstting the above certification. T
Officer further certifies that these are prepanedcaccordance with Generally Accepted Accountingiéples (GAAP) and are consistet
applied from one period to the next except as éxpthin an accompanying letter or footnotes.

Please indicate compliance status by circling YeséNunder “Complies” column.

Reporting Covenant Required Complies
Schedule of Revenue Procet Weekly Yes No
Transaction Report of Cash Disbursements & Cabas! Weekly Yes No
A/R & A/P Agings Monthly within 20 days Yes No
Borrowing Base Certificate and Compliance Certifi Monthly within 20 days

Monthly statements from JPMorgan Ch Monthly within 5 days of recei Yes No

Monthly financial statemen

Monthly within 20 days Yes No

Annual financial statements (CPA Audite FYE within 120 day: Yes No
Annual Projection: within 30 days of Fiscal Year beginnii Yes No
10K and 10¢ (as applicable Yes No
A/R Audit Sem-Annual Yes No
IP Notices As required under Section 6. Yes No
Financial Covenant Required Actual Complies
Minimum Liquidity $ 3,000,00C $ Yes No
Minimum Adjusted EBITDA for quarters endin
June 30, 201z $575,000 Yes No
September 30, 201 $ 700,000 Yes No
December 31, 201! $1,000,00cC Yes No
Comments Regarding Exceptions: See Attached.
BANK USE ONLY
Received by
Sincerely, AUTHORIZED SIGNER
Date:
Verified:
SIGNATURE AUTHORIZED SIGNER
Date:
TITLE
Compliance Statu Yes No
DATE




Permitted Indebtednesg¢Section 1.1)

SCHEDULE OF EXCEPTIONS

BALANCE
TERM AMOUNT @ Monthly
LENDER COLLATERAL EXPIRES FINANCED | 05/31/2012 pmt
Oracle Credit Corporatio Hardware purchased with loiproceed Oct-14 $ 45,761.9|$ 38,733.1'|$ 4,226.0(
PNC* All Assets Nov-14 93,000.01 39,124.6 1,466.6!
Chase Equipment Finance, I Computer Hardware and Softw: Mar-13 195,000.0 57,096.01 5,839.9!
Dell Financial Services, LL* Computer Hardware and Softwe Dec-14 270,768.7 -] 58,535.7
BALANCE
TERM AMOUNT @ Monthly
LESSOR COLLATERAL EXPIRES FINANCED  05/31/201: pmt
Ricoh Copiers Ju-13 $ 42,3705|% 9,385.9/| $ 677.3¢
Dell Financial Services, LL( Computer Hardware and Softwe Aug-14 495,954.5| 362,998.0] 14,144.6

* PNC loan paid in full on June 12, 2012; lietpected to be released in approximately 10-15 legsinlays.

** _.oan commenced June 1, 2012.
Permitted InvestmentySection 1.1)

Permitted Liens (Section 1.1)

As set forth above under Permitted Indebtedness

Inbound Licenses(Section 5.6)

Prior Names (Section 5.7)

USA Entertainment Center, Inc.
Stitch Networks Corporation (wholly owned sub)
USAT Capital Corp (wholly owned sub)

Locations of Equipment/Invento(ection 5.7)

Litigation (Section 5.8)

Petition for Reassessment, Assessment No. 6343-711-103-1

On November 5, 2011, the Commonwealth of Pennsidvaaued an assessment against the Company ésraadl use taxes alleged to be due

during the period between January 1, 2007 and 30n2010. The total assessment, including intenedtpenalties, is in the amount of
$643,199.88. On January 27, 2012, the Company dilBdtition for Reassessment with the Board of Afspef the Pennsylvania Departmen
Revenue. A decision has not been rendered as dftiechereof.



Petition for Refund, Sales and Use Tax

On May 4, 2012, the Company filed a Petition fofuRe with the Board of Appeals of the Pennsylvadépartment of Revenue for a refunc
sales and use taxes in the amount of $450,000ealleghave erroneously paid by the Company on uarapital and expense purchases dt
the period of January 1, 2007 through June 30, 2@K0of the date hereof, a decision has not yehlvendered.

USA Technologies, Inc. vs. Bradley M. Tirpak, et. la Civil Action No. 12-2399

On May 3, 2012, the Company filed the above adtiahe United States Court for the Eastern DistfdPennsylvania. The complaint alleged
that the dissidents violated a non-disparagemaeeagent entered into with the Company and also rfedsie and misleading statements
regarding the Company in violation of the secusitewvs. The complaint asked for injunctive reliebe entered against the dissidents.
Following a hearing, on May 24, 2012, the Coureesd a preliminary injunction against the dissiddirtding that the dissidents had violated
the non-disparagement agreement, and enjoined ftioemfurther violations thereof. On June 8, 2012 €ompany filed an amended
complaint that in addition to asking for injunctixalief now asks for money damages in the amouat tfast $7,000,000.

SubsidiariegSection 5.14)
Wholly owned subsidiaries of Borrower:

Stitch Networks Corporation
USAT Capital Corp

Accounts(Section 5.16)

JPMorgan Chase, account number(s) 872688460



Exhibit 10.41
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SECURITY AGREEMENT is entered into as of June 21, 2012 by and bet
AVIDBANK CORPORATE FINANCE, A DIVISION OF AVIDBANK , a California corporation (* Bank ") and USA
TECHNOLOGIES, INC. , a Pennsylvania corporation@rantor ).

REcCITALS

Bank has agreed to make certain advances of marmkyoaextend certain financial accommodation ton@ra(the “Loans ™) in the
amounts and manner set forth in that certain LeahSecurity Agreement by and between Bank and Grgas amended from time to time,
“ Loan Agreement”) dated of even date herewith. Capitalized termsl iisgein have the meaning assigned in the Loanekgeat. Bank
willing to make the credit extensions to Grantart bnly upon the condition, among others, that @nashall grant to Bank a security interes
all of Grantor’s right title, and interest in, tachunder all of the Collateral whether presentlistxg or hereafter acquired

Now, THEREFORE , Grantor agrees as follows:

AGREEMENT
To secure performance of Grantor’s obligations utide Loan Agreement, Grantor grants to Bank arigdaterest in all of Grantog'
right, title and interest in Grantar'intellectual property (including without limitati those Copyrights, Patents and Trademarks list
Exhibits A, B and C hereto), including without lii@iion all proceeds thereof (such as, by way ofrgya but not by way of limitation, licen
royalties and proceeds of infringement suits). sT@curity interest is granted in conjunction wité security interest granted to Bank unde
Loan Agreement. Each right, power and remedy ofkBarovided for herein shall not preclude the stamuous or later exercise by Banl
any or all other rights, powers or remedies.

This Agreement may be executed in two or more @patts, each of which shall be deemed an oridgingall of which together sh,
constitute the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties have caused this Intellectual Prgpgecurity Agreement to be duly executed as offitise date
written above.

Address of Borrowet USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140 By: /s/ Stephen P.
Herbert

Malvern, PA 1935
Attn: Steve Herbert / David DeMed Print NameSTEPHEN P. HERBER’

Title: Chief Executive Office

AVIDBANK CORPORATE FINANCE,

Address of Bank A DIVISION OF AVIDBANK
400 Emerson Street By: /s/ Jeffrey
Javier

Palo Alto, CA 9430:
Attn: Mike Hansen / Jeffrey Javi Title: Sr. Vice Presider



Title

ExHiBIT A
Copyrights

Registration Number

Registration Date




ExHiBIT B

Patents

Serial/ Patent

Application/ Issue

Title Number Date
An in-vehicle device for wirelessly connecting diate to the internet and for transacting e- 6,856,820
commerce and-busines:
Apparatus and methods for monitoring and commuimigatith a plurality of networked vending 5,844,808
machines
Card reader assemt 7,690,49¢
Cashless vending transaction management by a VesdtAnode of operatic 7,076,32¢
Cashless vending transaction management by a VesdtAnode of operatic 7,464,867
Cashless vending transaction management by a VesidtAnode of operatic 7,131,575 C:
Cashless vending transaction management by a \wsigt enode of operatic 7,693,602
Communicating interactive digital content betweehigles and internet based data processing 6,615,186
resources for the purpose of transacti-commerce or conductin¢-business
Communication interface device for managing wirgldata transmission between a vehicle and 7,003,289
the interne
Credit and debit card operated vending mac 2,207,60¢
Credit Card and Bank Issued Debit Card OperateteByand Method for Controlling a Prepaid 5,637,845
Card Encoding/Dispensing Machi
Credit Card and Bank Issued Debit Card OperateteByand Method for Controlling a Prepaid 6,119,934
Card Encoding/Dispensing Machi
Credit Card and Bank Issued Debit Card Operatete8yand Method for Controlling a Vending 6,152,365
Machine (as Amendel
Credit Card and Bank Issued Debit Card Operatete8Byand Method for Controlling and 5,619,024
Monitoring Access of Computer and Copy Equipn
Dataport D423,474
Dynamic identification interchange method for exofiag one form of identification for anoth 6,754,641
Electronic Commerce Terminal Enclosure for a Vegdifachine D428,444
ElectronicCommerce Terminal Enclosure for a Vending Macl D437,89C
Electronic Commerce Terminal Enclosure with Brasl D441,401



Electronic Commerce Terminal Enclosi

External power management device with current neoimi¢y precluding shutdown during high
current

Laptop Data Port Enclosu

Method and Apparatus for Conserving Power Consuboyeal Refrigerated Appliance Utilizing
Audio Signal Detectiol

Method and Apparatus for Forming, Packaging, Stpridisplaying and Selling Clothing Article

Method and Apparatus for Power Management Confral@ompressor-Based Appliance that
Reduces Electrical Power Consumption of an App#:

Method and Apparatus for Power Management Confral@ompressor-Based Appliance that
Reduces Electrical Power Consumption of an App#:

Method of transacting an electronic mail, an etatit commerce, and an electronic business
transaction by an electronic commerce terminal ageron a transportation vehi

Method to obtain customer specific data for pubticess electronic commerce servi
Mounting bracket for mounting a cashless paymentiteal to a vending machir
Paper guide for a point of sale termi

Point of Sale Terminal Mountable on a Vending Mae!

Powe-conservation based on indoor/outdoor and am-light

Power-Conservation System based on Indoor/OutdabPanbient-Light

Power conservation system for computer peripht
Printer bracket for point of sale termir
Printer bracket for point of sale termir

Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandetp&rature variance during power-
conservation mod

Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandetp&rature variance during power-
conservation mod

Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandetperature variance during power-
conservation mod

Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandetp&rature variance during power-
conservation mod

Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandetperature variance during power-
conservation mod

Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandetp&rature variance during power-
conservation mod

D428,047

6,243,626

D415,742

7,286,907

6,021,62¢

6,975,926

7,200,467

6,622,124

6,606,60%
D480,948
D475,750
D543,588
6,801,83¢
1419425 (Europeat
(validated in

Germany, France, tl
United Kingdom, an

Italy)
5,477,47¢
D475,414
D476,036

2001263356
(Australian)
234363 (Mexican)
6,389,822
6,581,396

6,898,942

6,931,869



Sign Holder D418,878

System and method for locally authorizing cashiemssactions at point of se 7,630,93¢
System and Method for Networking and Controllinghdeg Machine: 6,056,194
System and Method for Networking and Controllinghdieg Machine: 6,321,98¢

System for Providing Remote Audit, Cashless Paypeard Interactive Transaction Capabilities 6,505,095
in a Vending Machine (Stitct

Temperature controller for a refrigerated vendirachine 2,409,228 (Canadia

Transacting E-commerce and Conducting E-businekgdeieto Identifying and Procuring 6,389,337
Automotive Service and Vehicle Replacement Paitisc(g

Transceiver base ur D478,577

Universal interactive advertising and payment sysfar public access electronic commerce and 6,609,102
business related products and serv

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,604,085
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,601,038
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,604,086
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,601,037
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,611,810
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,606,602
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,601,039
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,604,087
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,615,183
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,601,040
commerce and business related products and se



Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,609,103
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,629,080
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 7,089,209
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,643,623
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,684,197
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,807,532
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electronic 6,763,336
commerce and business related products and se

Universal interactive advertising and payment sysfier public access electronic commerce an@,291,015 (Canadia
business related products and serv

User interface bracket for a point of sale term D475,751
User interface bracket for a point of sale term D476,037
Vehicle related wireless scientific instrumentatiefematics 6,895,31C
Vehicle related wireless scientific instrumentatielematics 6,853,894
Vending machine cashless payment term D477,03C

Wireless system for communicating cashless venglargsaction data and vending machine audit 7,593,897
data to remote locatior

Wireless Vehicle Diagnostics Device and Method v@#rvice and Part Determination 7,502,672
Capabilities (as amende

Method of constructing a digital content play fist transmission and presentation on a public 7,805,338
access electronic termir

Method and apparatus for conserving power conslyedvending machine utilizing audio 7,856,289
signal detectiol

Cashless transaction payment moc 7,865,43(



ExHiBIT C
Trademarks

Description Serial / Registration Number Application /Registration Date

Blue Light Sequen®
CM2iQ®

EnergyMise®

ePor®

ePort Conne®

ePort Edg®

Intelligent Vendin®

PC Expres®

SnackMise®

The Office That Never Slee®
TransAc®

USA Technologies & Desi®
USALive®

VendingMise®

VM2iQ®

Pay Dot™

Creating Value Through Innovation

eSuds™



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in Begistration Statements (No. 333-173493 and 33%Q¥) on Form B of USA
Technologies, Inc. of our report dated September2R32, relating to our audits of the consoliddiedncial statements and schedule w
appear in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for tlearyended June 30, 2012.
/sl McGladrey LLF

New York, NY
September 25, 2012



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

I, Stephen P. Herbert., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKISA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgitate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the issuer as of, and for, the parjp@sented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) aretriat control over financial reporting (as definadExchange Act Rules 13E5(f) anc
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresmused such disclosure controls and procedares designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgistant, including its consolidated subsidiarissmade known to us by others within th
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financigloring, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and th@eparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registganisclosure controls and procedures and presentd#itis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the issugmnost recel
fiscal quarter (the issuerfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materially affected or is reasondiklly to materially
affect, the issuer’s internal control over finamegporting; and

5. The issues other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation, of internal rbraver financial reporting
the auditors and the audit committee of the issusvard of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal costmler financial reporting which ¢
reasonably likely to adversely affect the issuabity to record, process, summarize and repadrftial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the issues’internal contrc
over financial reporting.

Date: September 25, 2012 /sl Stephen P. Herbe

Stephen P. Herbert
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

I, David M. DeMedio, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKISA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgitate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material resp
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the issuer as of, and for, the parjp@sented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) aretriat control over financial reporting (as definadexchange Act Rules 13E5(f) anc
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresmused such disclosure controls and procedares designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgistant, including its consolidated subsidiarissmade known to us by others within th
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglating, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and th@eparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presentéuis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the issugmnost recel
fiscal quarter (the issuerfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materially affected or is reasondiklyly to materially
affect, the issuer’s internal control over finamegporting; and

5. The issues other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation, of internal rebraver financial reporting
the auditors and the audit committee of the issusoard of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal costler financial reporting which ¢
reasonably likely to adversely affect the issuabity to record, process, summarize and repadrftial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the issues’internal contrc
over financial reporting.

Date: September 25, 2012 /s/David M. DeMedia
David M. DeMedia
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repdity8A Technologies, Inc., (the “Company”) on For@K for the period ende
June 30, 2012 (the “Report”), I, Stephen P. Herb€hief Executive Officer of the Company, herebytify that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Ex@eAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faiggesents, in all material respects, the financtaldition and results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Stephen P. Herbe
Stephen P. Herbe
Chief Executive Office




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repdty 8A Technologies, Inc., (the “Company”) on For@HK for the period ende
June 30, 2012 (the “Report”), I, David M. DeMedithief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby ifgtthat to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Ex@eAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faiggesents, in all material respects, the financtaldition and results of operations of
Company.

/s/ David M. DeMedic

David M. DeMedioc
Chief Financial Office




